
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
City Council Chambers, 33 East Broadway Avenue Meridian, Idaho 

Tuesday, April 23, 2024 at 6:00 PM 

All materials presented at public meetings become property of the City of Meridian. Anyone desiring accommodation 
for disabilities should contact the City Clerk's Office at 208-888-4433 at least 48 hours prior to the public meeting. 

Agenda 

VIRTUAL MEETING OPTION 

City Council meetings can also be attended online or by phone. 
https://bit.ly/meridianzoommeeting 
or dial 253-215-8782, webinar ID: 810 9527 6712 
Meridian City Council meetings are streamed live at https://meridiancity.org/live 

ROLL CALL ATTENDANCE 

        ____Vacant, District 1                                        ____John Overton, District 4 

        ____Liz Strader, District 2                                ____Anne Little Roberts, District 5 

        ____Doug Taylor, District 3                                ____Luke Cavener, District 6 

                                      ____Robert E. Simison, Mayor 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

COMMUNITY INVOCATION 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 

1. Approve Minutes of the April 9, 2024 City Council Work Session. 

2. Approve Minutes of the April 9, 2024 City Council Regular Meeting. 

3. Movado Village Subdivision Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No. 1 
(ESMT-2024-0035) 

4. Final Plat for Foxcroft Subdivision No. 3 (FP-2023-0032), by Kent Brown Planning 
Services, located at 3720 W. Pine Ave. (Phase 3) 

5. Final Plat for Hadler Subdivision No. 1 (FP-2024-0002) by Ben Thomas, Civil 
Innovations, PLLC., located at 7200 S. Locust Grove Rd. 

https://bit.ly/meridianzoommeeting
https://meridiancity.org/live


6. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Keep West Subdivision No. 2 (H-2023-
0047) by Jarron Langston, located at 2625 E. Lake Hazel Rd. and 6519 S. Raap 
Ranch Ln. 

7. Approval of Construction Contract to Treasure Valley Drilling, LLC for Construction 
of Production Well #34 project for the Not-To-Exceed amount of $977,670.00 

8. Landscape Maintenance Services Amendment No.9 to Lawn Co. for Landscape 
Maintenance Services for Fiscal Year 2024 services for the Not-to-Exceed amount 
of $259,200.00 

9. License Agreement between Nampa Meridian Irrigation District and the City of 
Meridian for multi-use pathway along the Tenmile Sub Drain at Foxcroft 
Subdivision 

10. Equipment agreement to ECB Solutions, LLC for the Not-to-Exceed amount of 
$445,000.00 for five (5) Power Transformers at Wastewater Resource Recovery 
Facility 

11. Resolution No. 24-2448: A resolution vacating the five foot (5’) public utilities, 
pressurized irrigation, and drainage easement located along the interior side lot 
line of Lots 11 and 12, Block 7 of The Oaks North No. 1 Subdivision, being more 
particularly described in Exhibit “A”; and providing an effective date. 

12. Resolution No. 24-2449: A Resolution of the Mayor and the City Council of the City 
of Meridian Approving City Council President’s Appointments of City Council 
Members to Serve as Department Liaisons; and Providing an Effective Date 

ITEMS MOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item]  

PUBLIC FORUM – Future Meeting Topics 

The public are invited to sign up in advance of the meeting at www.meridiancity.org/forum 
to address elected officials regarding topics of general interest or concern of public matters. 
Comments specific to active land use/development applications are not permitted during this 
time. By law, no decisions can be made on topics presented at Public Forum. However, City 
Council may request the topic be added to a future meeting agenda for further discussion or 
action. The Mayor may also direct staff to provide follow-up assistance regarding the matter. 

PROCLAMATIONS [Action Item] 

13. Idaho Gives Week Proclamation 

14. Denim Day for Sexual Assault Awareness Month Proclamation 

ACTION ITEMS 

Public Hearing process: Land use development applications begin with presentation of the 
project and analysis of the application by Planning Staff. The applicant is then allowed up to 15 
minutes to present their project. Members of the public are then allowed up to 3 minutes each 
to address City Council regarding the application. Citizens acting as a representative of a 
Homeowner’s Association may be allowed up to 10 minutes to speak on behalf of represented 
homeowners who have consented to yielding their time. The public may sign up in advance at 
www.meridiancity.org/forum. After all public testimony, the applicant is allowed up to 10 

http://www.meridiancity.org/forum
http://www.meridiancity.org/forum


minutes to respond to questions and comments. City Council members may ask questions 
throughout the public hearing process. The public hearing is then closed, and no further public 
comment is heard. City Council may move to continue the application to a future meeting or 
approve or deny the application. The Mayor is not a member of the City Council and pursuant 
to Idaho Code does not vote on public hearing items unless to break a tie vote. 

15. Public Hearing to Consider the Purchase of Approximately 11.365 Acres of Real 
Property Owned by West Ada School District and Described as Lot 11, Block 25 of 
Cedar Springs Subdivision No. 3 for the Purchase Price of $4,261,875.00 

16. Fiscal Year 2024 Budget Amendment in the Amount of $4,272,130.00 for the 
Purchase of Property Described as Lot 11, Block 25 of Cedar Springs Subdivision 
No. 3 (N. Venable Ln.) 

17. Resolution No. 24-2446: A Resolution Approving that Certain Purchase and Sale 
Agreement Between the City of Meridian and Joint School District No. 2 dba West 
Ada School District Concerning the City's Acquisition of Lot 11, Block 25 of Cedar 
Springs Subdivision No. 3; Authorizing the Mayor to Execute Said Purchase and 
Sale Agreement, Authorizing the Mayor to Execute All Other Documents and 
Perform All Other Acts Reasonably Necessary to Effectuate the Purchase of Lot 11, 
Block 25 of Cedar Springs Subdivision No. 3; and Providing an Effective Date  

18. Public Hearing for Shamrock Foods Easement Vacation (H-2024-0003) by Kristen 
McNeill, Givens Pursley, LLP., located at 1495 N. Hickory Ave. 

Application Materials: https://bit.ly/H-2024-0003 

A.  Request: Vacation to vacate the ten-foot (10') irrigation easement along the 
west side of the property boundary of Lots 4 and 5, Block 2 of the Treasure 
Valley Business Center - Phase 1 Subdivision. 

19. Public Hearing for Taylor Annexation (H-2023-0062) by Robert Taylor, located at 
3840 E. Overland Rd. 

Application Materials: https://bit.ly/H-2023-0062 

A. Request: Annexation of 1.01 acres of land with an R-2 (Low-Density 
Residential) zoning district for the purpose of connecting to City utilities. 

FUTURE MEETING TOPICS 

ADJOURNMENT 



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Approve Minutes of the April 9, 2024 City Council Work Session.



Meridian City Council Work Session                        April 9, 2024. 
 
A Meeting of the Meridian City Council was called to order at  4:31 p.m. Tuesday, April 
9, 2024, by Mayor Robert Simison. 
 
Members Present: Robert Simison, Luke Cavener, Liz Strader, John Overton, Anne 
Little Roberts and Doug Taylor. 
 
Also Present:  Chris Johnson, Tina Lomeli, Bill Nary, Steve Siddoway, Crystal Campbell, 
Shawn Harper, Joe Bongiorno and Dean Willis. 
 
ROLL-CALL ATTENDANCE   
  
  __X__ Liz Strader   _____ (vacant) 
  __X__ Anne Little Roberts  __X__ John Overton 
  __X__ Doug Taylor   __X__Luke Cavener 
     ___X___  Mayor Robert E. Simison 
 
Simison:  Council, we call this meeting to order.  For the record it is April 9, 2024, at 
4:31 p.m.  We will begin this afternoon's work session with roll call attendance.  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA  
 
Simison:  Next item up is adoption of the agenda.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  We have one change to the agenda.  We will remove Item 9 from the agenda  
and with that change I move that we adopt the agenda.   
 
Overton:  Second.   
 
Simison:  Have a motion and a second to -- second to adopt the agenda as amended.  
Is there any discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The 
ayes have it and the agenda is adopted as amended.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  ALL AYES.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item]  
 
 1. Approve Minutes of the March 26, 2024 City Council Work Session 
 
 2. Approve Minutes of the March 26, 2024 City Council Regular Meeting 
 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 2 of 21 

 3. Approve Summary Minutes of the April 1, 2024 City Council Special  
  Joint Meeting 
 
 4. The Cleaning Authority Water Main Easement (ESMT-2024-0014) 
  
 5. Session Parkway Pedestrian Pathway Easement (ESMT-2024-0046) 
 
 6. Spurwing Acres Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement (ESMT- 
  2024-0050) 
 
 7. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Kilgore (H-2023-0063) by  
  Alexi Kilgore, located at 1105 N. Meridian Rd. 
 
 8. Final Order for Foxcroft Subdivision No. 2 (FP-2023-0031) by Kent  
  Brown Planning Services, located at 3500 W. Pine Ave. 
 
 9. Final Plat for Millwood Subdivision (FP-2023-0011) by Epic   
  Development Victory, LLC., located at 1975 E. Victory Rd. Vacated 
 
 10. Second Addendum to Interagency Governmental Agreement for  
  Waiver of Costs and Fees Between the City of Meridian and West Ada 
  School District 
 
Simison:  Next up is the Consent Agenda.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  With that change I move that we approve the Consent Agenda, for the Mayor 
to sign and Clerk to attest.   
 
Overton:  Second.   
 
Simison:  Have a motion and a second to approve the Consent Agenda.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes have it 
and the Consent Agenda is agreed to.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  ALL AYES.   
 
ITEMS MOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 
 
Simison:  There were no items moved from the Consent Agenda. 
 
DEPARTMENT / COMMISSION REPORTS [Action Item] 
 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 3 of 21 

 11. Parks and Recreation Commission Annual Update   
 
Simison:  So, we will move on to Department/Commission Reports.  First up is Item 11, 
Parks and Recreation Commission Annual Update and Mandi will be presenting.   
 
Roberts:  Good afternoon, Mayor, Council Members.  So great to be here with you this 
afternoon and let me tell you I am so proud to be serving on the Parks and Recreation 
Commission.  What a great Parks Department we have.  Great staff.  It's just my 
pleasure.  I grew up in Meridian and to be here, you know, at this stage of my life and 
representing Parks and Recreation is just a true delight.  So, what I would like to do is I 
have a presentation -- and thank you to Ms. Shelly Houston for helping me put this 
presentation together.  I want to walk through some of the goals that we have as a 
Parks and Recreation Commission and give you an update as to some of the things that 
we are accomplishing as we go along to meet those goals and a lot of it has to do with 
the great staff and their work.  So, first of all -- go to the next slide -- our mission -- am I 
to be turning my own slides by the way?  Okay.  Press page down or -- right arrow.  
Thank you.  Okay.  Well, here we are.  I do not know when this photo was taken, 
because I wasn't there, but it was fairly recent and this represents some of our -- where 
we sent additional commissioners to the commission and, then, of course, John and I 
were not in the picture, but we are still glad that we have diversity of representatives 
and Elle Hood is our youth representative.  Elle.  So, it's quite great -- great to have her 
with us as well.  So, just to kind of take a look at some of our goals -- and let me just say 
our overall mission is to enhance our community's quality of life by providing 
innovatively designed parks, connected pathways and diverse recreation opportunities 
for all citizens of Meridian that create lasting memories and, boy, are we doing that, you 
know, all we have to do is go out to -- to our great parks, places like Discovery Park 
that's been, you know, opening up in different phases and seeing that we are really 
setting the pace for the region with what we are doing.  Our meetings are held generally 
the second Wednesday of each month at 5:30 here in City Hall.  Our meetings are live 
streamed and open to the public and, boy, we would love to invite people to attend our 
meetings.  It would be great to have folks come and -- and listen and -- and provide 
comments.  So, each year we set goals as a commission.  We have ten goals that we 
are actively working towards currently and so our first goal is -- and we do prioritize 
these by the way, so these are in order of priority, but our first goal is to participate in the 
development of the pathways master plan update and I know that we are planning to 
embark upon that project soon.  It will be a guide for pathway development over the 
next 20 to 50 years.  The city has already done an incredible job of inventorying their 
system, monitoring improvements needed and completing the gaps and working with 
those.  Recently the city selected Alta Consulting to assist with the project and we are 
expecting that that project will take approximately one year to complete and we will be 
working with staff as we complete that work.  So, in addition to supporting the master 
planning effort, just supporting on an ongoing basis the development of a connected 
pathway system across the city, with a focus on user experience, amenities and 
improved connectivity.  So, over the past year we have seen major progress in our 
pathway system, including work along the Five Mile Pathway, which is a priority 
pedestrian route, including the golden spike, a segment of the pathway that connects 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 4 of 21 

Ten Mile and Black Cat Roads and a new pedestrian bridge across Nine Mile Creek that 
you may have seen that was just delivered and installed not too long ago.  So, last 
month we also celebrated the ribbon cutting of a new pathway segment that connects 
Mary McPherson Elementary School to the nearby Reflection Ridge Subdivision, not too 
far from where I live, and really provides students with a safe route to school and 
eliminates the need for some students to ride the bus, which is really a wonderful need 
there that -- that's been served.  So, if we go to just a few photos of some of these 
events, including some of the wonderful public art that is part of trailheads, as well as 
some of the ribbon cutting and activities that I just mentioned.  This is the bridge over 
Nine Mile Creek and this new pathway will connect with several miles of existing 
pathways to the southeast, resulting in over eight miles of connected pathways along 
Five Mile Creek, which is the longest pedestrian route in Meridian to date.  Okay.  
Moving on.  Goal three is super exciting, again, because so much is happening at the 
Lakeview Golf Course.  So, our commission is supporting the improvements that are in 
process and future improvements, as well as those that are already happening before 
our eyes, including the clubhouse and patio improvements and new on-course 
restrooms that are being installed.  So, the remodeling efforts are really going extremely 
well now, if you folks have been out there lately, but the weather's getting nice, so I'm 
sure more people will be going out to enjoy these improvements.  We have been taking 
care of painting, carpeting, furnishing.  There is a custom -- custom golf bar top.  We got 
to see it in our meeting last week.  It's quite extraordinary.  I think that will just be 
drawing the golfers in left and right to see this new bar top and, then, we do plan to hold 
a ribbon cutting for the remodel in early May.  That date will be announced soon, so stay 
tuned for that.  And two new on-course restrooms also will be added this year and we 
will be adding two planned for next year as well.  So, here are just some photos of some 
of the improvements that are happening out at the golf course, including interior and 
exterior views.  Work on the patio, including shelter area, new furnishings and whatnot.  
There will also be a new putting mat of artificial turf that runs the entire length of the 
driving range.  So, give that other golf place a little bit of a run, won't we?  Because I 
won't name that place.  Go for it.  Participant in the partnership with Meridian Arts 
Commission by adding themed by -- to add theming and identify reinforcing art in our 
parks along pathways and a focus this year is on Discovery Park, Seasons Park and 
Chateau Park, which is very exciting.  If some of you have been out to Discovery Park 
you perhaps have seen some of the artwork that's been installed out there, including the 
benches, which are really interesting designs made out of recycled materials and some 
of the pieces that are really interactive, you kind of need to walk around to get different 
views and understand, you know, what -- what the art is all about to really experience it.  
This is the -- if you haven't been out there to see the new enhancements at Seasons 
Park with the theme of seasons and different colors throughout the seasons and these 
kind of translucent panels really light up with sun shining through and it's just so 
dramatic when you are out there experience -- experiencing them in person in the 
changing colors and what an enhancement to kind of an older park in our community; 
right?  So, really cool.  Chateau Park, which is by where my mom lives, we are talking 
about installing some artwork there.  In the early stages of working through some theme 
concepts and working with local artist Ken McCall to create some art elements that will 
be located there.  So, again, one of our older parks, but an opportunity to really 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 5 of 21 

recognize our history and what's special about our community through the art that -- the 
art project that will be installed there.  All right.  Almost halfway through.  So, everyone is 
super excited about our new community center and I know the process is moving 
forward.  We as a commission will be participating in the design process and 
programming efforts, working of course with staff and understanding, you know, what 
our needs are for the community center.  The new site that is being reviewed for the 
community center is adjacent to Settlers Park as shown in this map and it's been 
tentatively selected as the new Meridian Community Center site.  So, the purchase sale 
agreement goes before City Council and the West Ada School Board soon and there 
will also be public hearings on this matter.  Once this is approved we will move forward 
into the concept design portion of the project and in addition to a new community center 
the property will also accommodate additional parking, which is important for this 
location, and it will be useful for those attending athletics at Sellers Park, which has a lot 
of demand for parking there on an ongoing basis.  So, pretty exciting to be a part of that 
project as it moves forward.  Another specific project is the replacement of the Settlers 
Park splash pad.  Just a little bit of a photograph of construction underway, which will 
install an all new splash pad at the park.  The previous splash pad had been in place for 
more than 15 years.  That's the other thing that I love about Meridian parks is we take 
such good care of our parks and our facilities.  They last a long time, but they don't last 
forever, so we do have to make replacements and make some changes as you all know.  
So, thank you for being willing to invest in these improvements that are needed.  And, 
you know, one of the things that -- that we learned from these projects is that trying to 
find parts, for example -- over time they become obsolete, it's hard to find them, so we 
just have to replace some of our facilities from time to time, which was the case with -- 
with the splash pad.  All right.  So, every year there are a number of different park 
improvements and enhancements that happen throughout the year and we function as 
kind of a sounding board for those as the commission, so staff and others will bring 
those projects to us and we will look at different aspects of those and make comments 
and provide guidance.  So, that's really an important part of our job.  There is really a 
wide variety of those kinds of things that come through, anything from playground 
replacements, to updated signage and, then, you know, parts and pieces of different 
parks.  Discovery Park has been a big focus as you can imagine.  One of our biggest.  
So, some of the more recent things that we have been involved in include the 
replacement of the Chateau, Bear Creek and Tully Park playgrounds.  The remodel of 
Home Court space six to create classroom and activity space.  Plenty of new cherry 
trees at Kleiner Park.  Of course the development of Discovery Park phase two.  The 
skate park murals at Tully Park.  Addition of pickleball courts at Kleiner Park and the 
donation of additional land from the Hill family to Hillsdale Park.  All right.  Goal eight is 
really about collaborating and engaging partners and other task forces and 
commissions and entities and we do this in a number of different ways, whether it's 
collaborating in workshops or outreaching in partnership opportunities, you know, we -- 
we frequently invite certain entities to come in and give us updates.  We had a great 
presentation from the Lions Club rodeo a few months ago, which was super interesting 
to me to understand that history of the rodeo and -- and how that's evolved over time.  
We work on community service projects together and so, you know, just to list a few of 
our frequent collaborators -- oops.  Sorry.  I will go back.  You know, Meridian Youth 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 6 of 21 

Baseball and softball.  Meridian P-A-L.  Meridian PAL.  The Main Street Market.  Ada 
county parks and waterways.  Co-op -- Co-op Gardeners, Republic Services, Idaho Fish 
and Game, West Ada School District and many others are involved and linked with us 
as a commission and as a staff.  All right.  Let's talk about the pool.  Pretty exciting as 
well to see how the city has really done so well with assuming the responsibility for 
operations of the pool.  I used to swim there when I was a kid and it's today still a very 
lively great place for -- for our community to enjoy swimming and swimming lessons 
throughout the summer and so a number of different improvements have been made to 
make sure that the pool is really in tip top condition and it's being provided in a safe and 
efficient manner as a facility for our community.  You know, some of the improvements 
that I'm sure you have noticed out there include new fabric shade structures, new 
lifeguard chairs.  A diving board was replaced and we are anticipating summer opening 
Monday, June 3rd, in case folks want to know about that and the hiring of lifeguards, 
which is always a big deal every year trying to find enough lifeguards.  That's going 
really well.  We anticipate being able to offer some weekend open swim hours this year 
in addition to the weekday open swim and swimming lessons.  So, wonderful news on 
that regard.  Oh, did I go too fast?  Maybe I did.  Sorry.  All right.  Last -- last, but not 
least, we are really committed to improving our communication and engagement.  As we 
look out to the community we want more people to know about us and to be involved 
and to share comments with us.  So, we are going to be having more of a -- of a face on 
social media, Instagram and other venues and we just want to improve and broaden our 
communications to engage the community and disseminate information.  So, with an 
Instagram account for Meridian Parks and Recreation and for Discovery bike and skate 
park that is -- those are some recent activities that have really helped us kind of create 
more of an online presence and hopefully garner a bit more attention out there in the 
community.  And, then we are also developing a monthly e-newsletter that highlights 
relevant news, information, upcoming classes, activities and events and that will be e-
mailed to everyone that is in our Rec One database.  So, I just want to close by 
covering some accolades and awards that we really need to mention and recognize our 
folks for.  So, in February 2022 at the City of Meridian's annual all golf meeting 
recreation coordinator Jenna Fletcher was presented with one of the city's prestigious 
Care Champion Awards.  So, we really want to congratulate Jenna.  Mayor Robert 
Simison was also honored -- also honored.  Excuse me.  Seasonal staff members 
Darrell Freter pictured and Sterling Hadley, not pictured, with Meridian Way coins for 
their role in assisting a resident who needed help with their child during a visit to Settlers 
Park.  Seasonal staff member Andrew Carlson was also awarded a Meridian Way coin 
by Mayor Simison for voluntarily assisting a citizen who was struggling to load some 
heavy bags of concrete into the back of his truck.  So, we -- we thank our citizens for 
that and it is one of the things that we love about Meridian is just our community and 
how helpful we are to each other.  So, we really want to recognize that.  Let's see.  If 
this was for the last -- last set of talking points.  But we will move on.  So, very recently 
we had a team go up to the Idaho Recreation and Parks Association Awards, which is 
IRPA.  This photograph is actually from last year's awards, which we won some awards 
last year, but this year hot off the press, thank you, Shelly, we have breaking news.  We 
were awarded outstanding innovative program for some of the play equipment that we 
replaced.  We actually repurposed that across the country.  I'm sure you guys heard 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 7 of 21 

about that.  Across the world.  And being able to provide that equipment, which was still 
in good working order to third world countries for their use was a great honor for us and 
it also resulted in our city being awarded the Outstanding Innovative Program Award.  
We also were awarded -- and this just happened last week, right, Steve?  Yeah.  I think 
so.  We also were awarded the Discovery Park phase two project as an outstanding 
park or facility award and, boy, is it; right?  It really is.  And, then, last, but not least, our 
own parks Director Steve Siddoway was awarded -- this is very prestigious -- the Dr.  
Leon Green Fellowship Award, which is -- and Steve didn't want me to say this, but I'm 
going to say it anyway -- it's the highest and most prestigious individual honor award 
given by IRPA to recognize vigorous activity in the parks and recreation field.  So, I 
would like to give a round of applause for everyone, including Steve.  So, I think that 
covers all of the points I was going to make tonight and I just want to thank you all so 
much and I'm available to stand for questions.  We will try to answer them.  I might have 
to call on Director Siddoway to help, but --  
 
Simison:  Yeah.  Thank you.  Council, any questions?  And I think that was a little bit 
more of a department report than necessarily a commission report all the way around,  
so, yes, you can phone a friend.   
 
Roberts:  Thank you.   
 
Little Roberts:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Overton:  Mr. Mayor? 
 
Simison:  Council Woman Little Roberts.   
 
Little Roberts:  Mr. Mayor.  Mandi, thanks so much for your presentation.  It was 
wonderful.  I am such a huge fan of our whole system.  It's amazing.  I'm just having 
finished four lessons at Home Court in pickleball, are we catching up with the demand 
for pickleball courts would be my question?   
 
Roberts:  Yes.  And that is a phone a friend answer that might be needed.  I know from 
some of the presentations that staff has given us they are really trying.  They are 
working on that, so -- yeah.   
 
Siddoway:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor and Council Woman Roberts.  The -- I don't know if 
there is any true catching up.  The demand is -- is exponential, but we continue to add 
pickleball courts.  I just had an interview just yesterday with a reporter doing a story on 
pickleball and the demand for it in the community, so you will probably see that coming 
out in the Idaho Press with their summer activity guide, but just in the last couple of 
years we have added four new courts at Kleiner Park and, then, in October we opened 
six new courts that are dedicated in Discovery Park, as well as two that were -- are dual 
striped on the tennis courts.  We can play a net or bring -- or four more bring-your-own-
net style pickleball courts.  In addition we are about to resurface the pickleball courts in 
Settlers Park and, then, there is a renovation project scheduled for this spring-summer 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 8 of 21 

in Reta Huskey Park for those pickleball courts, which have developed a large crack in 
them and need some -- some renovation.  So, we continue to add.  I don't think I would 
say that it -- that we have met demand.  The net demand continues to climb, but it's very 
popular and Home Court continues to see just an amazing amount of use indoors as 
well, so --  
 
Overton:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Overton.   
 
Overton:  Mandi, thank you for that report.  Last year I had the opportunity to be the 
liaison for Parks and one of the things I learned really quickly is what a great job you 
and the rest of the commission do with your support, your dedication, your service, 
helping our Parks Department.  It's a -- it's a proud moment in our city when we can 
have not just a commission, but an entire department of Parks personnel that can take 
such pride in our city and be so proud of having probably the best parks in the entire 
state of Idaho.  But we only have that because we have such dedicated personnel that 
want to keep working on that and keeping our parks looking so nice and, yes, phase two 
of Discovery Park is pretty amazing.  I hope we get every award possible for that park.  
Thank you.   
 
Roberts:  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Council, any additional questions, comments?   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  Mandi, appreciate your report.  Moreover, I really 
appreciate your enthusiasm.  I love when our commissioners come very enthusiastic 
about the role that they serve and it's infectious, it gets me excited about some of the 
things you are talking about.  So, I'm always curious -- you know, you present the goals 
of kind of the Commission and the departments are helpful.  What's -- what's your 
vision?  What's the commission's vision for Meridian's Parks and Recreation long term?  
Like when you close your eyes -- and you are someone who has spent a lot of time in 
our community, I'm just curious what does the future look like from your perspective  
and what should we be thinking about as a city council?   
 
Roberts:  Yeah.  Thank you for asking that very important question.  I think one of the 
things that stands out to us is just the need to better connect with our community, which 
is why we have the communication goals that we do, is just to make sure that, you 
know, people are out there and enjoying our parks, they are enjoying our pathways.  It's 
part of their daily lives and we want them to know how committed we are to keeping that 
level of service for them going and what a great staff we have and a little bit of how 
much effort and investment it takes to really make that happen and so just really 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 9 of 21 

building awareness with the community about those activities and what's needed on an 
ongoing basis is really important and if you were to ask me, you know, what do we need 
to do kind of like on the ground for improvements as we move forward, I mean we are 
doing a great job -- I think one of the things I will be kind of watching is just with the 
growth that we are experiencing, particularly in our downtown area and public areas that 
maybe can't rely as much on private sector parks and recreation, what are some of the 
things that we can do downtown to kind of serve those needs as we grow, so --  
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor, one additional one if I may.   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Kind of dovetails with that and thank you for -- for acknowledging and 
recognizing our Parks staff.  I wasn't aware of -- of Mr. Siddoway's national recognition.  
That's really incredible and a testament to Steve's passion and enthusiasm for our 
community.  When you talk about downtown it's something that I'm always keenly 
interested in and -- and last week the Council discussed some changes to the kind of 
proposed Rail with Trail segment that runs along here around downtown and pathways 
certainly is your number one priority.  From a -- from a council perspective help us see 
how important that Rail with Trail segment is in the commission's eyes to our overall 
pathway network.   
 
Roberts:  Yeah.  We do see that that's an important piece, especially for access 
downtown to connect people from one place to another.  Some of our streets downtown 
are not necessarily -- they don't rise to the top of being pedestrian and bicycle friendly.  
You know, they are really dedicated to a lot of movement of traffic, which they need to 
be to get people, you know, through town.  But in terms of people -- especially now that 
we have more people living downtown and more people working and that's going to 
increase with some of the projects that are being built -- we need to improve mobility for 
pedestrians and bicyclists and so whatever we can do through pathways and the Rail to 
Trail conversion and other activities, even on-street -- you know, I have worked for some 
communities, for example, that have identified green streets or ped bike streets that are 
kind of, okay, we have these other big corridors that are for the cars and they are 
carrying a lot traffic.  These are the corridors that we want to make sure really enhance 
for pedestrians and bicyclists.  So, let's make sure we are doing what we can to improve 
access along those streets, whether it's enhancing the crossings, making sure we have 
dedicated bike lanes or sharrows or trails or brake pads, things like that.  So, you know, 
I think as we grow and more people are in downtown, whether they are living, working 
or even visiting here, we owe it to them to really improve the connectivity in -- in a safe 
manner.  So, yeah.   
 
Cavener:  Thank you.  I appreciate that.   
 
Simison:  Council, any additional questions or comments?  All right.   
 
Roberts:  Thank you so much.   



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 10 of 21 

 12. Ada County Sheriff's Office Update 
 
Simison:  Appreciate it.  Up next is Item 12, which will be Ada County Sheriff's Office 
update, presented by Sheriff Clifford.   
 
Clifford:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  Mayor and Council, appreciate you letting me have 
some time today.  I'm doing kind of my biannual report, if you will, just to -- every couple 
of years you get new council members, sometimes new mayors, and so it's nice to 
come back every couple of years to say here is what the sheriff does in your community.  
I was paging through here and there are quite a few things that we do with Meridian 
police specifically and I did not design it that way, it just naturally will come out like that.  
So, we will get started.  The Ada County Sheriff's Office is the largest law enforcement 
agency in the state of Idaho.  We have about 150 employees.  Of those employees 
about 400 of them are commissioned and are spread out through three different -- three 
or four different bureaus and I will go over all those bureaus.  Our mission statement is 
to make Ada county a safe place for you to live, work and play.  The bureaus are split up 
into five different -- different bureaus, so -- because we do a lot of different functions that 
police departments do not.  Statutorily we are required to do certain things and we 
provide a lot of programs for the community that just are not really in the purview of a 
police department.  So, we are divided up into police services, jail services, court, 
administrative and communication.  As you see on the map kind of the area of Ada 
county.  We are responsible for over 1,100 square miles of land and about 2,100 square 
miles of road.  You could see Meridian's the purple on the left there.  Everything that's 
white is unincorporated.  So, all of the call load will come to the sheriff's office in that 
white area and, then, of course, we contract with the cities of Star, Eagle and Kuna for 
police services.  I will go into police services really quickly.  This is the -- the things you 
see outside your window, on the news usually, kind of the face of the agency, if you will.  
All the things that the Meridian Police Department does with patrol and canine.  We 
have a metro SWAT, so we team up with Garden City, Meridian police and us and have 
our own SWAT team that covers all those areas -- every area except Boise.  Some of 
the other places where we overlap -- overlap are our drone program.  We have a pretty 
robust drone program, as does Meridian, so we find ourselves on a lot of calls for 
service together where we can, you know, throw drones up and battery dies on one 
agency's drone, they bring it and they send the next one up while they are changing out.  
We just -- we work together on a lot of those tactical operations.  Some of the things you 
don't see in the police departments -- Meridian patrol, we do that in the summer.  We 
are contracted with the Army Corps of Engineers who take care of Lucky Peak corridor 
up there.  We also have an off-road team, so UTVs and some dual support bikes -- a 
handful of dual support bikes so we can do search and rescue or other calls for service 
up in the foothills or out in the desert.  Administrative Services Bureau.  This is kind of 
all the inner workings of the sheriff's office.  It's a lot of different things.  We manage 
property and evidence for the Boise Police Department and, of course, for the Sheriff's 
Office.  Statutorily we are required to issue driver's licenses and concealed weapons.  
We, of course, added that second driver's license location not that long ago here in 
Meridian.  It is going very well.  It's a very nice facility and it's -- it's really improved a lot 
of operations for the citizens of Meridian.  Our fleet manages over 300 vehicles or some 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 11 of 21 

type of -- we call them assets.  Some of those are trailers and the UTVs and all those 
types of things.  But we have an in-house mechanic right on site at Barrister that can 
service all of those things.  Makes it very efficient.  My finance department -- I very 
much appreciate them, since as you know we are all in the throes of budget process.  
Our budget last year was 115 million.  So, it's a lot of moving parts of a large agency 
and counting every penny.  So, they do a really great job and they love budgets.  So, I 
like having them around.  And, then, of course, we have data analytics where we can 
create the crime maps for -- we see Meridian and Ada county.  Garden City asked me 
why they weren't on there and we are adding them now that they have gone over to the 
ITS system that was created by Meridian.  Now that they will be on there we will be able 
to also get their statistics up there as well.  We also have in the admin bureau at our 
community engagement team.  So, a lot of things that also Meridian police does with, 
you know, safety fairs and National Night Out.  Of course you are all familiar with that.  
We do that as well.  Both agencies have canine units that do a lot of demonstrations in 
schools and at different functions and, of course, we are busy out in the public with our 
different city contracts as they have their different festivals and normal city functions that 
-- that you don't see in unincorporated Ada county very often and, then, we do a lot of 
crime prevention on social media as well through that team.  It's something that I have 
been starting to bring up, because people don't really understand it's out there a lot of 
times, but this -- this America's Promise youth plate is specific to the sheriffs of Idaho.  
So, all -- the 25 dollars from your initial registration of this plate and 15 dollars for -- of 
your renewal goes specifically to the Ada County Sheriff's Youth Foundation.  So, here 
in Ada county.  So every sheriff has one of these setup for the plates that are issued in 
their county.  We use the money to put back into programs, like Big Brothers, Big 
Sisters.  I sit on that board director, as does the Mayor.  We sit on the board of directors 
there and we are able to give back and help them support programs.  The Boys and 
Girls Club.  The Y.  It's kind of spread out towards specific youth, whether it's mentorship 
or at risk youth.  So, throw that out there, because people see those plates, but they 
don't realize that that's what that specifically does when you register under those plates.   
 
Simison:  Matt, while you are -- sheriff, while you are right there, maybe we want to talk 
about the Bigs in Blue.   
 
Clifford:  Absolutely.  I would love to talk about the Bigs in Blue.  Bigs in Blue program is 
a program through Big Brothers, Big Sisters.  It's a national program and we participate 
in it here where we try and match bigs and littles specifically to law enforcement.  Now, 
law enforcement officers are very busy generally, but we are able to find a good handful 
of them that can be mentors to these kids that are in the program and really, you know, 
kind of help them through parts of their lives that might be missing at home or can help 
them get -- get them out of that situation of being an at risk youth.  So, it's -- it's really 
great.  The Bigs that we have at the sheriff's office really find it rewarding and, of course, 
if you are one of the littles that participate, having a cop be your Big Brother or Big 
Sister is -- is a really cool thing to them.  So, it's -- it's a really great program.  Thank 
you, sir, for reManding me of that.  Something we started a couple of years ago was -- 
you see it around everywhere was no shave November.  We had never been allowed to 
do this with previous administrations.  So, we decided that we would give it a go.  It 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 12 of 21 

started because I walked into our victim services -- into a conference room where our 
victim services were having a bake sale and I said what is the bake sale for and they 
said it's for our victim fund, because we can't fund that with our county taxpayer money  
and I said, okay, well, you are having a bake -- why -- how much money is in there and 
they said, well, there is no money in there, that's why we are having a bake sale and we 
could do better than that.  So, we jumped on no shave November and we -- you know, if 
you are a commissioned deputy you could grow a beard.  Our -- our professional staff 
can already grow beards.  And, of course, females aren't growing beards that I know of,  
so we said they could buy into it and do -- wear jeans one day a week.  So, with jeans 
and beards were able to raise over 11,000 dollars this year.  So, who would have 
thought that that's what would inspire money to inspire people, but jeans and beards are 
a big deal apparently.  Let's see.  One of these -- another -- nope.  That's messed up.  
Sorry about that.  That didn't match.  So, our emergency communications bureau -- it's 
going to be our dispatch center.  We run the largest dispatch center in the state of 
Idaho.  We dispatch for all police, fire and EMS.  They took -- they took about 504,000 
calls for service last year.  I shouldn't say calls for service.  Those are calls in and out of 
the dispatch -- dispatch center.  It's funny when you talk to certain people and they say, 
well, how many of those are really real calls?  It doesn't matter.  The dispatcher has to 
pick up the phone, they have to answer the call or call someone back, whether they are 
asking at what temperature to bake bread or they have an emergency on the other line.  
It takes up time from a dispatcher who has to do their job when other calls keep coming 
in.  This is one of my -- been one of my focuses.  Last year's budget, if you -- if you saw 
any of that we are -- we are deficient in the amount of dispatchers that we actually have 
in this dispatch center by about 20.  We are fully staffed right now, but we are still 
deficient 20 positions.  So, I will probably be harassing the commissioners again this 
year about getting more dispatchers.  But they were able to give me a couple last year, 
so I appreciate that.  One of the big things we did through the legislature, with the help 
of Idaho Chiefs of Police and Idaho Sheriffs Association, we were able to classify 
dispatchers as first responders in Idaho.  A lot of states do not classify them as first 
responders and we were also able to develop them into the PERSI retirement system 
under first responders.  So, they go through a lot of mental anguish that actually causes 
them physical issues because of working in a dispatch center and -- and experiencing 
trauma that literally they can only hear.  We don't think about, you know, what that does 
to them and so we -- we were able to bring them in and finalize that this year with the 
legislature.  So, it was really really great.  Court Services Bureau is the bureau that does 
a lot of things.  We -- if you were here when I came in and talked about the jail bond last 
year and talked a lot about what this bureau does with all of our programs that help us 
identify people that we can supervise outside the jail, instead of inside the jail, and also 
identify those that need to stay inside the jail.  So, that's going to be my misdemeanor 
probation.  It's the largest misdemeanor probation we have in Idaho.  Our pretrial 
services and alternative sentencing, we usually supervise somewhere between 2,000 
and 2,300 people outside the walls of the jail where the jail usually has about a 
thousand people inside.  So, if we weren't overseeing those folks they would almost 
likely be inside of our jail, which we cannot accommodate.  Also our transport unit is in 
that bureau.  They did over 1,200 transports outside of Ada county last year.  They are 
also responsible for traveling outside of the state of Idaho to retrieve fugitives that have 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 13 of 21 

been caught elsewhere.  So, we go everywhere from Alaska to Florida to Texas to go 
retrieve inmates and bring them back -- and bring them in front of the court.  My civil -- 
civil team is also in that Court Services Bureau.  Statutorily the sheriff is required to 
perform certain civil functions and -- like evictions and service of court documents.  Last 
year in person we served almost 8,200 court documents -- court documents.  Also our 
training just kind of got lumped into that bureau as well, so we run our own academies 
for detention, dispatch and patrol and we run those all through the Court Services 
Bureau, so we have a team of trainers and a facility where that all takes place.  So, jail 
services -- again if you were here when I talked about the bond I talked a lot about jail 
services.  We are not going to talk about the bond today.  But the jail is like a -- it's like a 
small town.  There are more people that live and work in there than a town I came from 
in Idaho and -- for real and -- but some of the things that they do in there are pretty 
amazing, but we have a big health services unit in there, which is able to care for a 
thousand inmates whatever medical needs they have.  We do a lot of medical 
transports to the hospital and back and special transports to special -- specialty care.  
But we can handle quite a few things.  We can't do surgery and -- and those types of 
things, so -- but we can handle most of your normal ailments that -- that are going on 
with inmates.  Our laundry facility does -- I think it's like 2,500 loads of laundry a month.  
A sewing program where female inmates can go and kind of learn a trade and have 
something to do.  They also participate with a program called the Lioness program 
where they make quilts and donate them to at risk children and, then, we have our 
special response team, which is, basically, a jail SWAT -- I call it indoor SWAT.  It's 
basically like a jail SWAT team.  So, specialized deputies that can go in and handle 
specific instances anywhere in the jail.  Another thing that we are doing in the jail that 
we implemented last year was our ServSafe certification.  We are trying to at least 
provide some skills to people that -- if they are going to be in there for a longer period of 
time it's not that easy to do, because we have a very transient population.  We are not 
meant to hold inmates that are serving time, so they are -- they are awaiting their trials 
most of the time, but we can't -- we do have some long standing inmates that we can 
get through the ServSafe certification.  Inmates run the kitchen.  So, we -- once they get 
that certification they can go out in the public and just go right into a kitchen and start 
working, instead of having to go get the certification.  So, they are kind of one up on 
someone that doesn't have that and we have had about 15 people graduate from that 
so far.  That's my shameless plug right here.  So, I put this picture up here because, like 
everywhere else, we are really looking for talented females to work at our agency.  This 
picture -- we have a jail sergeant, patrol deputy, a nurse, a property and evidence tech.  
I mean we have so many positions, but I really really am looking for female deputies  
that -- that we can have working in the jail in the courthouse or on patrol.  Just one of 
those things where I -- I truly believe they are out there and there are probably more 
people -- more -- more females that don't know that they can do the job, so our 
recruiting is pretty heavy towards females to say, hey, by the way, you are qualified and 
you can do this job, don't -- don't let somebody tell you can't, so -- they are out there.  
We are looking for them.  And I just -- I would throw that up there in case somebody 
wants that -- that will take you to our career page.   
 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 14 of 21 

Simison:  Thank you, Sheriff Clifford.  One thing you didn't touch on is in addition to 
allowing facial hair you have also allowed top hats.   
 
Clifford:  Top hats?  Is that --  
 
Simison:  Cowboy hats.  Top hats.  Whatever you want to call them.   
 
Clifford:  Yeah.  That is something that kind of evolved through a bunch of talk of a -- 
you know, be kind of cool if we did that.  We are a western sheriff's office and, then, they 
-- they were allowed to wear them at the Eagle rodeo and they went over very well and, 
then, I said I would allow them at the Star Fourth of July parade and stood out in the sun 
about three days before that parade and have fair skin, skin cancer runs in my family, 
and I just stood out there frying and decided I'm going to go buy my first cowboy hat 
where it's going to make it happen.  So we did.   
 
Simison:  Excellent.  Council, any questions or comments?   
 
Overton:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Overton.   
 
Overton:  Sheriff, great presentation.  I appreciate it and I want to tell you how much I 
appreciate the long-standing relationship you have had with Meridian police.  I 
remember when 20 -- over 20 years ago we did not have a great relationship between 
the two agencies and it was critical then and it's critical now that we have the tight 
relationship through all the different aspects of what you do.  You know, we forget some 
days as Meridian city grows and the county grows, unfortunately, your population in jail 
grows.  It's kind of a relationship that sometimes gets overlooked and we appreciate 
everything you do to work with our department and try to keep our community safe and 
one last thing -- I hope this means I will see you again at the pancake feed at Dairy 
Days again this year.   
 
Clifford:  Absolutely.  Absolutely.   
 
Overton:  Thank you, sir.   
 
Clifford:  Mayor, Council I -- I do appreciate the -- I appreciate the relationship as well.  
It's always existed kind of at the line level.  The trick is getting it to exist at that agency 
head level and we certainly have really great relationships, the chiefs and the sheriff 
and the prosecutor and we -- it's -- it's been really great over the last couple of years to 
see a lot of friendships grow and a lot of working together.  I always say that, you know, 
the thing I say -- and the chief's probably heard me say it a million times, you are going 
to wake up tomorrow and Meridian is going to be across the street from the city of 
Nampa and that's -- that's probably going to be the truth someday and we have to 
prepare as law enforcement heads how are we going to work together when we are all 
growing together.  You know, there is not -- not that many farm fields separating the 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 15 of 21 

cities anymore and so you are just right next door to your agent -- your next door 
agency and it's been great partnership with Meridian.  It has been fantastic.   
 
Overton:  Thank you.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Thank you, sheriff.  I just want to compliment you.  I appreciate the work that 
you are doing, particularly your efforts to reclassify the dispatchers as first responders.  I 
think that was really important and very thoughtful.  Understanding this isn't a jail bond 
discussion, but, you know, do you have interim plans to keep moving forward?  
Obviously, not the ideal set of resources, but how are you kind of planning to move 
forward in the meantime?   
 
Clifford:  Mayor and Council, great question.  I didn't mean I didn't want to talk about the 
jail bond,  it's just I wasn't presenting on it.  However, I can answer that question for 
sure.  You know, in the beginning -- at the beginning of this year I was very adamant of, 
hey, we should just run this, run this, run this right away.  Some of the data didn't kind of 
match up with that being a great idea until we could get a better information campaign 
out there, so I have been in discussions with the commissioners.  It's all been on the 
record, so not worried about talking about it -- where they have the 20 million dollars in 
hand that they have always had and the bond was to supplement that to get the whole 
project done.  Well, now we are having discussions of, well, we have the 20 million, we 
better do something.  We can't just sit around and wait for the next bond election even.  
So, we have to do something.  Phasing it in is probably what's -- what's going to 
happen.  The commissioners haven't voted on that yet, but I have given them all the 
information they need to make a decision.  The problem with that is it takes a lot longer 
and it costs a lot more money.  So like I said, well, I wish I just had the whole pot of 
money, but it's just a wish.  So, I think if we take that 20 million and we start putting in 
some of that infrastructure, so that we can fund the rest of it, either next time or at a 
later date, it's ready to go.  So, we are looking at hopefully starting on our kitchen as 
soon as possible and doing all the civil work to put plumbing and electrical into that big 
swath of land that we own that's blank.  So, that's -- that's the plan.  Again, the 
commissioners haven't voted on it, but that's the information that I have given them.  
Thank you for the question.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  I think that's a fantastic response and I -- I know we all appreciated the 
foresight of the commissioners in continuing to save over the years to have those 
resources available.  It may not be what would have been ideal, but I really appreciate 
your can do attitude about it and just tackling those issues head on the best that you 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 16 of 21 

can with the resources that you are given and certainly want to support you in that.  So, 
I just appreciate that.  Thank you.   
 
Clifford:  Thank you very much.  Appreciate it.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Sheriff Clifford, always nice to have any here.  Appreciate it.  And I just want 
to reinforce I think on the Council Member Overton talked on, which I really appreciate, 
which is that Median residents are county residents and I think you and your department 
have really embraced that and I want to know it's seen on my side of the table and it's 
really appreciated.  I like it when you come do these presentations, because it requires 
me to look and really recognize there is a lot of what you do that I'm never in a situation 
where I see play out, you know, face to face and you and your staff are faced with on a 
daily basis and appreciate that you have a passion and desire to serve and we are lucky 
to have you.  I also know that because of that often lots of problems everyone looks to 
you for solutions, which is challenging, recognizing that I have got a problem that I'm 
looking to see if maybe you have got an idea to solve and that's the subject of animal 
control.  I know that you are continuing to do more with limited resources and that's 
another conversation at the commission level, but has your department -- have you 
explored animal control and if that's something that the sheriff's department could 
eventually handle or address for the -- for the county, as opposed to this kind of part and 
piece mentality that each local jurisdiction has to take on?   
 
Clifford:  Mayor and Council, great question.  The short answer is we have not explored 
that recently.  When I was the chief of police in Eagle was when we really did explore it, 
because Eagle was looking at the contract with IHS and decided, hey, maybe we can do 
this cheaper.  So, one of the sergeants and I sat on a big committee of really great 
people that had different kinds of interests.  We had these crazy cat ladies and I will say 
that because they called themselves that, the crazy cat ladies and the dog lovers and 
the guy who volunteers at IHS -- it was a really really diverse group.  It was great.  And 
we all kind of went in -- into it with kind of that can do attitude and we came out of it 
saying this is a really tough thing to do on your own.  It -- because it does -- it's not just 
enforcement, it requires facilities, it requires vet care.  Some people love their dogs 
more than they love their kids and, you know, you put a dog in a kennel with the wrong 
dog and it gets hurt and now, you know, you have angry citizens.  So, in the end when 
we reported back to the city of Eagle we reported back that it would probably be a good 
idea to stick with the contract, just because we didn't have the resources and the 
facilities to handle that.  It really is -- it goes beyond are we willing -- willing to go be dog 
catchers and animal control people, it's -- we are, but we just don't have the resources 
for facilities and vet care and all of that and, then, having to deal with euthanasia 
maybe, all those -- all those hot topic items were it's kind of -- some is unknown, but 
other parts of the state that a sheriff's office does animal control, talking to them, to be 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 17 of 21 

frank none of them like doing it, but -- so, that's kind of where we have not revisited that 
in three years.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Who that?  Councilman Cavener?   
 
Cavener:  Sheriff, I appreciate that.  And I think it's a big lift and it's a big lift for any 
jurisdiction and I don't probably disagree with any sheriff.  In Meridian we used to do it 
internally and we have turned it over to the Humane Society and maybe Humane 
Society has been there because nobody else has been able to step up and I think that -- 
my ask would be is if there is an opportunity for the cities to come together and work 
with the county and help support that -- again, not here is our problem, county you 
figure out how to solve it, but back to my good colleague's comments about a 
collaborative can do attitude, I think that we are a city that would like to at least be at the 
table if those conversations ever emerge.   
 
Clifford:  Absolutely.  I appreciate that.  Talk to your chief.  I'm willing to have a 
discussion about anything.  So, if that comes up and maybe that is the future we can 
talk about that.   
 
Taylor:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Taylor.   
 
Taylor:  Just for a quick comment -- and, Sheriff Clifford, thanks for the presentation.  
Appreciate it.  Just want to highlight something.  A few months ago we had a really 
unfortunate situation in Meridian.  It played out in front of my home, so I was able to 
absorb it from my second story window and observed Ada county, our own police force 
and Boise PD and it was very impressive to watch everyone work together.  It was a 
pretty serious situation, didn't end super well for some, but it was -- it gave me a high 
level of confidence just in the way that you work together, since you mentioned that with 
our own police department and -- and others and so I think for our public to see that 
kind of teamwork in the community I think really increases our level of confidence and 
our feeling safe and so just want to compliment you and we have our leadership team 
from the police department here as well just to compliment them on -- on how well you 
have worked together and I think what it speaks to is a lot of planning and effort behind 
the scenes on both parts to make sure that that happens.  So, just wanted to -- to say 
that, so thank you.   
 
Clifford:  Thank you.  And, Mayor and Council, that -- you are right, a lot of planning and 
effort kind of goes into that; right?  We are pretty blessed in this entire valley to have 
agencies that are willing to work together.  There are other places in the country and 
even some places in this state that are very territorial and silo -- silo each other off.  It's 
usually pretty detrimental to your agency and it's not very efficient for your -- for your 
community.  So, we really do have -- in this valley really do have that, hey, this is all a 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 18 of 21 

partnership.  Nobody cares what color your shirt is or what shape your badge is when 
they call 911.  They just don't.  And so let's all work together and get out there and do 
public service.   
 
Simison:  Council, any additional questions or comments?   
 
Little Roberts:  No.  But, Mr. Mayor, I can't help -- 
 
Simison:  Council Woman Little Roberts.   
 
Little Roberts:  -- but to add my thank you.  It's -- I have been on ride-alongs where both 
agencies have worked together and it's just been absolutely seamless, so -- so thank 
you for you and all that your team does.  And, of course, thank you to our officers.  They 
are the best.   
 
Simison:  All right.  Thank you very much, Sheriff Clifford.  See you soon.   
 
Clifford:  Thank you so much, sir.  You guys have a great night.  
 
 13. Public Hearing continued from March 26, 2024 for Community Input  
  on Meridian's Community Development Block Grant Program Action  
  Plan 
  
Simison:  Thank you.  Next item up is Item 13, which a public hearing continued from 
March 26th, 2024, for the community input and Meridian's Community Development 
Block Grant program.  Turn this over to Crystal for any additional comments.   
 
Campbell:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council.  I wanted to give you guys a 
brief update on the feedback we did receive.  I will make it super quick, but -- well, as 
quick as possible.  So, we did provide some public outreach.  You can read through it.  
But e-mail, social media, we tried to touch all the bases that we could and ask our 
partners to share it and we did a few in-person interactions as well.  Our public 
comment period was open from March 15th to April 7th and we accepted feedback 
however people wanted to, including an online survey.  We did receive 50 responses 
from residents through the survey and in that survey 50 percent of respondents said 
that they or someone that they knew did actually need to access some of these 
services.  This chart shows how easy it was to access those services, as well as the 
services that were accessed.  Childcare assistance was definitely the forerunner for that 
and emergency rental assistance was second.  We also asked about barriers to 
accessing those resources and the main one was eligibility requirements, but, 
unfortunately, we can't really do anything about that.  It's the bare minimum that is 
required by HUD, which is 80 percent or less of the area median income and they must 
be a Meridian resident and, then, other than that it was dates and times available and 
paperwork.  People did suggest some partnerships and it's categorized into three 
different areas.  The first one is current contacts and those are the ones that were 
already reaching out to and asking them to submit an application for funding and that 



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 19 of 21 

was mental health, childcare and Jesse Tree for emergency rental assistance.  And, 
then, additional outreach suggestions for this time around people were asking about 
public transportation and potentially credit repair and, then, there was also an ineligible 
activity for clothing for teens, so it's just not something that we could fund through this.  
We had a couple of in-person interactions two of those are public hearings and one of 
those is tonight and also last week we were out in the community two different times.  
Once was in the lobby of City Hall and, then, we also had a booth at the Do The Right 
event and with that we had an activity where people could vote on the services that they 
thought were most important and this is a little bit different than the other voting -- or on 
the survey and the survey was people actually needing those and this is just the 
perception of what's needed in the community.  So, we did receive 83 individuals 
participating and they each got four coins and so it was a total of 332 votes and intimate 
partner violence that was 25 percent of the votes and, then, childcare and emergency 
rent were each 24 percent, but -- didn't quite add up.  So, there is something wrong 
there, but it was definitely -- the intimate partner violence followed by childcare and 
emergency rent.  Our timeline for the rest of the action plan, it's due to HUD no later 
than August 16th.  So, the application is opened through the end of this month and in 
May, then, we will work with our scoring committee to review the application, select 
projects and develop our action plan.  It will be developed and, then, June 11th through 
July 14th it will be open for public comment and I will be back here for a public hearing  
and I hope to have it approved by all of you and submitted to HUD by the end of July.  
And with that I will stand for questions.   
 
Simison:  Thank you, Crystal.  Council, any questions?   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Not a question, just a comment.  It feels like you are getting a lot of public 
engagement, which is very encouraging, and I think your different approaches to try to 
get that feedback is really working.  So, I just wanted to compliment you on how you are 
trying to engage the community on this.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Action tonight is just to close the public hearing?   
 
Campbell:  Correct.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Is there anybody present who would like to provide testimony on this open 
public hearing?  Seeing nobody.   



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 20 of 21 

Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Appreciate all the presumptive on my end to not see the usual suspects that 
want to testify this evening, but I appreciate that opportunity and, boy, to Council 
Member Strader's point, this wonky stuff is hard to engage the public on and, Chris, I do 
-- I really want to commend you.  Last week we had the event for Council Member 
Borton and with the art gallery you were out with the jars and the coins, I just thought it 
was a very low barrier approach to get people to engage and just encourage you to 
keep doing stuff like that and finding that right nexus of inviting feedback and critical 
feedback and I appreciate that you share with us.  So, Mr. Mayor, I move we closed the 
public hearing on Item 13.   
 
Overton:  Second.   
 
Simison:  Have a motion and a second to close the public hearing.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes have it 
and the public hearing is closed.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  ALL AYES.   
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION per Idaho Code 74-206(1)(d): To consider records that are 
exempt from disclosure as provided in chapter 1, title 74, Idaho Code. 
 
Simison:  Next item up is Executive Session.  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor, I move that we go into Executive Session per Idaho Code 74-
206(1)(d).   
 
Cavener:  Second.   
 
Simison:  Have a motion and a second to go into Executive Session.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not clerk will call the roll.   
 
Roll Call:  Cavener, yea; Strader, yea; Overton, yea; Little Roberts, yea; Taylor, yea. 
 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carries and we will go into Executive Session. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  ALL AYES. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  (5:35 p.m. to 6:08 p.m.) 
 
Simison:  Council, do I have a motion?   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor, I move that we adjourn the meeting.   



Meridian City Council Work Session 
April 9, 2024  
Page 21 of 21 

Simison:  Move to come out of Executive Session?   
 
Strader:  So moved.   
 
Simison:  Got a second?   
 
Overton:  Second.   
 
Simison:  Have a motion and a second to come out of Executive Session.  All in favor, 
please, signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes have it and we are out of 
Executive Session.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  ALL AYES.   
 
Simison:  Now do I have another motion?   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor, I move that we adjourn the meeting.   
 
Simison:  Motion to adjourn.  All in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay.  The ayes 
have it and we are adjourned.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  ALL AYES.  
 
MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:08 P.M.   
 
(AUDIO RECORDING ON FILE OF THESE PROCEEDINGS)  
 
__________________________________ ______/______/______   
MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON   DATE APPROVED 
 
ATTEST:  
 
_____________________________________  
CHRIS JOHNSON - CITY CLERK  



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Approve Minutes of the April 9, 2024 City Council Regular Meeting.



Meridian City Council                          April 9, 2024. 
 
A Meeting of the Meridian City Council was called to order at  6:08 p.m. Tuesday, April 
9, 2024, by Mayor Robert Simison. 
 
Members Present: Robert Simison, Luke Cavener, Liz Strader, John Overton, Anne 
Little Roberts and Doug Taylor. 
 
Also Present:  Tina Lomeli, Bill Nary, Bill Parsons, Stacy Hersh, Linda Ritter, Shawn 
Harper, Joe Bongiorno and Dean Willis. 
 
ROLL-CALL ATTENDANCE   
  
  __X__ Liz Strader   _____ (vacant) 
  __X__ Anne Little Roberts  __X__ John Overton 
  __X__ Doug Taylor   __X__Luke Cavener 
     ___X___  Mayor Robert E. Simison 
 
Simison:  Council, we will call this meeting to order.  For the record it is April 9th, 2024, 
at 6:08 p.m.  We will begin tonight's regular City Council meeting with roll call 
attendance.   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Simison:  Next item up is the Pledge of Allegiance.  If you would all, please, rise and join 
us in the pledge.   
 
(Pledge of Allegiance recited.) 
 
COMMUNITY INVOCATION 
 
Simison:  Today's community invocation will be delivered by Rabbi Mendel Lifshitz.  If 
you would all, please, join us in the community invocation or take this as a moment of 
silence and reflection.   
 
Lifshitz:  Thank you.  Before I begin I would like to take a moment to personally thank 
the City Council and the City of Meridian.  A number of months ago you graciously 
donated a stock of protective vests and I really want to thank the body here for 
authorizing that and for allowing that to be used for -- in a public private-partnership.  It's 
really beautiful when the city joins together with nonprofits.  Thank you for donating 
those to our organization and you should be proud that it has reached its destination for 
people in need.  Almighty God, we stand before you at a critical time for our country, our 
state and our city.  Your guidance, wisdom and grace is ever more crucial.  We 
recognize that alone we cannot succeed.  Almighty God, look favorably upon the Mayor 
and Honorable Members of the City Council of the great City of Meridian.  Bestow upon 
them the joy of life, good health and prosperity.  We beseech you merciful God to 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 2 of 36 

extend your kindness to these distinguished individuals, who have been chosen to 
make laws and ordinances for the citizens of this city with understanding and 
compassion and their noble pursuit of justice and equality.  Assist them to embody and 
encourage a spirit of mutual cooperation respect and peace.  Give them guidance so 
that they will always be conscious of your presence and will strive to enact laws with 
honesty and integrity and in accordance with the values of your universal and moral 
code.  As the cold and sometimes harsh winter recedes we look at the promising spring 
bloom and we look toward you our Creator.  We stand in awe and appreciation of the 
masterful and beautiful world you allow us to partake of.  We stand committed to 
partnering with you to tend your garden and to safeguard your creation.  Grant this 
august body the wisdom to turn adversity into opportunity and to transform the hard 
challenges we face today into the seeds from which will sprout the growth of tomorrow.  
Bless the City of Meridian that it may serve as a beacon of light to our great state of 
Idaho and for people of all faiths and walks of life.  May the leaders and citizens of 
Meridian blossom as the flowers of the season and realize the goal so powerfully stated 
in our nation's Pledge of Allegiance that we just recited, so that America is truly one 
nation under God, indivisible, with liberty and justice for all.  May God bless all of us and 
God bless America.  Now let us say amen.  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA  
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Okay.  Next up will be adoption of the agenda.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  I move that we adopt the agenda as published.   
 
Overton:  Second.   
 
Simison:  Have a motion and a second to adopt the agenda as published.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes have it 
and the agenda is adopted.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  ALL AYES.   
 
PROCLAMATIONS [Action Item] 
 
 1. Week of the Young Child Proclamation 
 
Simison:  Next up will be proclamation for the Week of the Young Child.  Is Lorena 
here?  If you wouldn't mind joining me at the podium.  So, Council, we will go ahead and 
read this proclamation for the Week of the Young Child and, then, turn it over to Lorena 
for some comments.  Whereas the City of Meridian, in conjunction with the Idaho 
Association for the Education of Young Children, are celebrating The Week of the Young 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 3 of 36 

Child April 6 through April 12, 2024, and whereas Idaho AEYC is working to promote 
and inspire high quality early childhood experiences for our state's youngest citizens 
that can provide a foundation of learning and success for children in Meridian and 
whereas teachers and others who work with or on behalf of young children from birth 
through age eight make a difference in these lives and deserve thanks and recognition 
and whereas public policy supporting early learning for all are crucial to young children's 
futures to the prosperity of our society and whereas this is a time to recognize the 
importance of children's earliest years in shaping their development, to recommit 
ourselves to ensuring that each and every child experiences a type of environment at 
home, at childcare, at school and in the community that will promote early learning.  
Therefore, I, Mayor Robert E. Simison, proclaim April 6 through 12, 2024, to be the 
Week of the Young Child in the City of Meridian and encourage all citizens to work to 
support the efforts of the Idaho AEYC and NAEYC in support and invest in early 
childhood in our community.  Dated this 9th day of April 2024.   
 
Lorena:  Sorry.  I wasn't expecting it.  I just want to thank the city -- City Council, Mayor.  
Thank you all for the proclamation and just for thinking of helping support children and 
families throughout the state of Idaho.  I think it's incredible work and extremely exciting 
and we know that everyone can help make a huge difference in the life of a child.  So, 
thank you.   
 
PUBLIC FORUM – Future Meeting Topics 
 
Simison:  Next item up is public forum.  Madam Clerk, do we have anybody signed up 
under the public forum?   
 
Lomeli:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  No one has signed up.   
 
DEPARTMENT / COMMISSION REPORTS [Action Item] 
 
 2. Election of City Council President 
 
Simison:  Okay.  Then with that we will move on to Item 2, which is Department/ 
Commission Reports.  Election of City Council President and I will turn this over Council 
Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor, Fellow Council Members.  This is an important business 
decision that we have to make today as a Council.  I -- I know we still have one Council 
seat that is open, but I think it's really important for us to elect a City Council president, 
because we have a lot of critical processes that need to move forward, including the 
budget.  After many conversations I would like to nominate Luke Cavener.  I think he is 
the right leader for us at this time of transition and I'm very grateful for him that he is 
willing to make the sacrifice of a significant amount of his extra time to help us move 
forward as a group.  That means a lot to us.  He has my full support.  I think we should 
rally around Luke and that way we can have a successful year.   
Simison:  Thank you.  I have a nomination.   



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 4 of 36 

 
Overton:  Second.   
 
Simison:  And the second.  Is there a further discussion on the topic or further 
nominations from the body?  Okay.  Then all those in favor signify by saying aye.  
Opposed nay?  The ayes have it and, Councilman Cavener, you are now Council 
President.  Would you like to do a speech, a coronation, gala?  What's your preference?   
 
Cavener:  No -- no speech, no gala, no coordination.  We have got important work 
ahead of us.  So, appreciate the nomination and the vote.  Enjoy working with all of you.  
Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Thank you very much.  All right.  So, moving on to the rest of our action  this 
evening.  The first item up is Item 3, public hearing -- 
 
Cavener:  Just for clarification, do we need to take an action on the vice-president role?   
 
Simison:  No.  It's existing.   
 
Cavener:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you, Mr. Mayor.   
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
 3. Public Hearing for The Oaks North No. 1 (Lots 11 and 12, Block 7) (H- 
  2024-0004) by Kyle Prewett, Toll Brothers, located at 5662 W. Daphne  
  Dr.  
 
  A. Request: Vacation of the permanent easement for public utilities,  
   pressure irrigation and lot drainage over the five (5) feet adjacent to 
   the interior side lot lines of the pre-adjusted Lot 11 and Lot 12,  
   Block 7 of The Oaks North Subdivision No. 1. 
 
Simison:  Okay.  Next item up is Item 3, public hearing for The Oaks North No. 1, Lots 
11 through 12, Block 7, H-2024-0004.  We will open this public hearing with staff 
comments.   
 
Ritter:  Good evening, Mayor and Council.  I'm Linda Ritter, associate planner for the 
City of Meridian and tonight we are here for The Oaks North No. 1, Lots 11 and 12, 
Block 7, H-2024-0004.  The applicant is requesting to vacate five feet of a public utility 
pressurized irrigation and drainage easement located along the interior lot lines of a Lot 
11 and 12, Block 7, of The Oaks North Subdivision.  A property boundary adjustment 
application PBA-2023-0015 was approved in November of 2023 to reestablish the 
easements.  So, these properties that I have mentioned are located at 5662 and 5684  
West Daphne Drive and they are located on 0.156 and 0.14 acres of land that is zoned 
R-8.  There are currently no structures located on this property at the time.  The 
applicant was proactive to make this happen before the homes were built and so at this 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 5 of 36 

time -- so, staff is asking for approval of this proposal and so at this time I will take any 
questions that you may have and the applicant's representative is here if you have 
questions.  
 
Simison:   Thank you, Linda.  Council, any questions for staff?  Okay.  Would the 
applicant like to come forward and make any comments?  Okay.  Applicant waives.  
Madam Clerk, is there anyone signed up to provide testimony on this item?   
 
Lomeli:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  I have a couple people signed up, but they did not mark 
that they wish to testify.  Do you want me to call --  
 
Simison:  If you would read their name and we will see if they want to come up.   
 
Lomeli:  Kris Moncapa.  No?   
 
Simison:  The applicants.  Okay.   
 
Lomeli:  Hank Boeger.   
 
Simison:  He is also saying no.  There was only two?   
 
Lomeli:  That's the only two, yes.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Is there anybody present in the audience or online who would like to 
provide testimony on this item?  If you are online use the raise your hand feature on the 
Zoom call and we can bring you in.  Seeing no one raising their hand online and no one 
walking forward -- the applicant waive final comments?  Applicant waives final 
comments.  Council, what's your direction?   
 
Overton:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Overton.   
 
Overton:  This seems like a pretty straightforward vacation request and if there is no 
further public comments, I move that we close the public hearing.   
 
Little Roberts:  Second.   
 
Simison:  Have a motion and a second to close the public hearing.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Oppose nay?  The ayes have it 
and the public hearing is closed.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  ALL AYES. 
 
Overton:  Mr. Mayor?   
Simison:  Councilman Overton.   



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 6 of 36 

 
Overton:  After considering all staff, applicant and public testimony, I move to approve 
File No. H-2024-0004 as presented in a staff report for the hearing date of April 9th, 
2024.   
 
Little Roberts:  Second.   
 
Simison:  Have a motion and second to approve Item 3.  Is there discussion?  If not, 
Clerk will call the roll.   
 
Roll Call:  Cavener, yea; Strader, yea; Overton, yea; Little Roberts, yea; Taylor, yea. 
 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carries and the item is agreed to.  Thank you very much. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  ALL AYES. 
 
 4. Public Hearing for Keep West Subdivision No. 2 (H-2023-0047) by  
  Jarron Langston, located at 2625 E. Lake Hazel Rd. and 6519 S. Raap  
  Ranch Ln.  
 
  A. Request: Annexation and zoning of 16.25 acres of land from RUT to 
   R-2 (low density residential) zoning district 
 
  B. Request: Preliminary Plat consisting of 22 buildable lots, one  
   existing home and 5 common lots on (16.25 acres of land) in the R- 
   2 zoning district 
 
Simison:  Next item up is Item 4, public hearing for Keep West Subdivision No. 2, H-
2023-0047.  We will open this public hearing with staff comments.   
 
Ritter:  Thank you.  Again Linda Ritter, associate planner for the city.  So, tonight we are 
here to -- for a request for Keep West Subdivision, H-2023-0047, for annexation and 
preliminary plat.  The site consists of 16.25 acres of land, zoned RUT and it's located 
south of East Lake Hazel Road.  So, the property itself is -- the comprehensive -- the 
future land use map is low density and medium density residential and since the 
property is designated with two land use designations, the plan allows the flexibility to 
float the more dominant designation.  The applicant has chosen to apply the low density 
designation across the entire property.  Again this is the annexation of 16.25 acres of 
land from RUT in Ada county to R-2, low density residential zoning district, and a -- and 
a preliminary plat consisting of 21 new buildable lots and one existing home and eight 
common lots for a total of 15.76 acres of land.  The density is 1.4 dwelling units to the 
acre, which is consistent with the LDR designation.  The proposed building lots range in 
size from 12,008 square feet to 38,274 square feet.  The subdivision is being proposed 
to be developed in one phase.  Again there is an existing structure that is on the 
property and there are several other structures on the property, but the existing home is 
proposed to remain.  All the other structures are proposed to be removed.  So, prior to 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 7 of 36 

the city engineer's signature on the final plat all the existing structures that don't comply 
with setbacks of the district shall be removed.  A new address will be required for the 
existing home and the lot number for the existing home will need to be changed to 35 
and the renumbering of the remaining lots in that location.  So, this proposed plat 
complies with the dimensional standards of the district.  So, again, the -- again the 
proposed subdivision is required to comply with the design improvement standards of 
the UDC.  The face block on the west side of the north and south street segments 
exceed 750 feet.  However, the code allows a block length up to a thousand feet when 
the pathway connects to the common space open area and the applicant has provided 
a connected pathway to the open space to allow the extended block.  And also per the 
UDC the Council may approve a dead-end street up to 750 feet in length where the 
emergency access is proposed or where there is a physical barrier, such as a steep 
slope, railroad tracks, an arterial roadway or a large waterway that prevents or makes 
impractical extensions and a pedestrian -- pedestrian connection is provided from the 
street to an adjacent existing or planned pedestrian facility.  The code for the proposed 
plat -- it was greater than 900 feet, which exceeded the maximum approval allowed by 
the City Council of 750 feet in length.  The applicant revised the plat map to shorten the 
length of the cul-de-sac and submit the revised plat map 15 days prior to this meeting.  
So, access to this property is proposed -- is proposed via East Wickham at the east 
boundary of the site, which terminates on to South Netherfield Way.  Direct -- direct 
access is not proposed or allowed from East Lake Hazel Road, except for an 
emergency access.  There are two common driveways proposed for lots 22, 23, 20 -- 
and, then, 27 and 28.  There are two waterways along the boundaries of this proposal.  
The Farr Lateral existing on the western boundary, which is within a 50 foot easement 
and the Grimmett Lateral along the eastern boundary -- the east boundary, which is 
within the 40 foot easement.  The UDC requires irrigation easements wider than ten feet 
to be included in a common lot that is a minimum of 20 feet wide outside of a fenced 
area, unless modified by the City Council at a public hearing with notice to the 
surrounding property owners.  The applicant proposes to place the Farr and the 
Grimmett Laterals within common lots as required.  However, the applicant will be 
requested a modification of this and they will present that to you at the time they do their 
presentation.  Other irrigation districts crossing the site that aren't being improved as a 
water amenity or linear open space as defined by the UDC shall be piped or otherwise 
covered as set forth in the UDC, unless otherwise waived by the City Council.  Again, 
the applicant has been working to tile a portion of the Grimmett Lateral and has been 
working with the Boise Project Board of Control for approval.  The Farr Lateral will 
remain open.  If tiled the Boise Project Board of Control will not approve any 
landscaping, other than gravel, within its 25 foot easement.  Staff has asked the 
applicant to work with the irrigation district to leave the Grimmett Lateral open in a 
natural state to avoid the area being improved with gravel only.  There is a 25 foot wide 
landscape buffer that is required along East Lake Hazel Road, which is an arterial and it 
measures from the back of the sidewalk.  A buffer is depicted on the landscape plan that 
appears to meet this requirement.  So, this is the landscaping along East Lake Hazel 
Road.  The buffer has been depicted on the plat in a common lot as proposed within the 
landscape and per the standards of the UDC.  Common open spaces and amenities.  
The applicant is proposing about 1.37 acres of open space consistent at 50 percent of 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 8 of 36 

the street landscape buffered along East Lake Hazel Road, six foot wide parkways, 
pathway along the emergency access and open grassy areas.  The applicant provided 
9.41 percent, which is 59,596 square feet or 1.37 acres of open space, which exceeds 
the eight percent that is required.  Per UDC for each five acres of gross land area one 
point of site amenity is required.  As the property is 15.76 acres, a total of three amenity 
points are required.  The applicant is proposing a covered pavilion, which is a picnic 
area and that's for two points.  A sports court for pickleball, which is four points,  as 
these amenities total six amenity points, which is -- which exceeds the requirement.  
Several building conceptual elevations of homes were submitted and as shown.  
Building material consists of a variety of stone, brick, veneer accents and stucco.  At 
The Planning Commission meeting there were no oppositions to this subdivision -- 
proposed subdivision.  We did have people making comments at the hearing and we 
had one written testimony and the concerns that were key issues were the proposed 
street connectivity that -- because they felt it would bring additional traffic to the existing 
neighborhood.  Go back to a previous slide.  This is the connection that they were 
concerned with.  And the only discussion of key issue by Commission were that they 
were -- were required to bring the cul-de-sac into compliance prior to the City Council 
meeting, which they did.  There were no changes recommended -- no changes to the 
staff recommendation -- recommendation and there were no outstanding issues to bring 
before the City Council.  And at this time I will stand for any questions that the City 
Council has regarding this application.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, any questions?   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Linda, thank you so much for your presentation.  I reviewed the file a while ago 
and I did not see a letter from the West Ada School District.  I also did not check the 
agency reports today.  So, just wanted to check have we received a letter from West 
Ada or are we in communication with them?   
 
Ritter:  I have not received anything from them.  It did go out to them, but I have not 
received anything.  I don't know if it's too small of a subdivision, but I have not received 
anything.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  And I apologize, because that wasn't meant to trip you up or anything, it's just 
we have been expressing our desire to hear from the West Ada School District and this 
particular annexation opportunity is in very close proximity to another one that we have 
reviewed recently.  So, I felt like -- I guess I'm a little surprised that they haven't taken 
that opportunity to provide that information here, although I understand it is not a huge 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 9 of 36 

subdivision, it still seems important to hear from them.  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Council, any additional questions for staff?   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Linda, I appreciate you have got this -- this image up and as I was -- and you 
are doing a good job going through the staff report and keeping us up to date on -- on 
history.  I appreciate that.  I noticed that the exhibit of the open space looks a little bit 
different than the preliminary plat that's in the staff report.  I'm not sure if that is because 
of the -- the cul-de-sac piece or if the -- if the plat is showing what appears to be maybe 
some -- some pathways.  The reason why I'm bringing this up is that one of the parcels 
that I think is kind of near the open space -- I believe the existing home, I'm trying to 
figure out how that -- the parcel of land that's right just to the left of your arrow -- down a 
little bit.  Right there.  Yep.  How somebody's getting there.  Is it -- is it a common drive 
in and exit?  In the staff report it looks like a pathway, but I'm not -- I'm not quite clear.   
 
Ritter:  Council Member, so that's actually a panhandle lot and that particular lot has to 
provide a fire turnaround because of the length of it and we have -- we relayed that to 
the applicant.   
 
Cavener:  Okay.  Thank you and I appreciate it.   
 
Simison:  Council, any additional questions for staff at this time?  Okay.  Would the 
applicant like to come forward?   
 
Ritter:  Oh.  And before the applicant speaks -- so I -- this is different from what is in my 
staff report.  I didn't get a chance to change it out, so -- but that's why I made sure that I 
put the correct ones up here for the hearing.   
 
Simison:  Good evening.  It's nice to see a representative of the Borton Lakey law firm 
here, right, Council?   
 
Lakey:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  Short the Borton, but still in the name.  Mayor, Council 
Members, appreciate the opportunity to be here tonight.  For the record my name is 
Todd Lakey with Borton Lakey Law here on behalf of the applicant Jarron Langston.  
Council Members, I will be brief.  Hit some of -- some of the high points on this project, 
but we do appreciate the recommendation of approval and the work that staff's done on 
this and also the recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission and if you 
do have any particular technical questions we have Ted Burke, our engineer, here as 
well to answer questions.  Council Members, as noted in the staff report the application 
meets the requirements of your zoning ordinance, your subdivision ordinance and we 
conform with the Comprehensive Plan.  We are a little bit less dense than those things 
that are around us and this is phase two of The Keep Subdivision.  I imagine you are 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 10 of 36 

familiar with that project.  That's -- this -- this will be a continuation of that project, the 
same quality, the same caliber of development.  It's really a project that the City of 
Meridian can be proud of.  Our request is for low density R-2 zoning and, as I said, 
that's the same or less dense than the surrounding zoning and our adjacent 
subdivisions.  We have R-4, R-2, R-8 and R-15.  Twenty-two lots with just about a 
20,000 square foot average lot size and staff mentioned the gross density at 1.46.  We 
exceed -- meet or exceed the open space requirements with our pathways, our covered 
pavilion, the sport court and the grassy areas and also exceed the amenity points 
required by the city and that's in addition to the larger lots that we have that people are 
going to be able to use and recreate on their own property in addition to those amenities 
in the subdivision.  The three accesses for the property will be closed, with the 
exception of the emergency access that we will be providing onto Lake Hazel and that 
access will meet city requirements, but also provides pedestrian connectivity to Lake 
Hazel from the project.  We will have the 25 foot landscape buffer along Lake Hazel  
and we are, as was mentioned by staff, trying to leave open the irrigation facilities that 
border this project.  It's an odd shaped parcel as you can see, so it took a little bit of 
creativity to -- to make this project work and from our perspective -- I think from staff's 
perspective and some of our neighbors' perspective, they wanted to keep those 
irrigation laterals open and make them really more of an amenity than simply a long 
wide -- what looks like a gravel road separating two projects.  So, that was our effort 
with the irrigation jurisdictions and we are keeping the Grimmett Lateral open to the 
north of that East Wickham Street.  That's what we worked out with them and, then, the 
Farr Lateral along the side with the Apex Subdivision will be open in its entirety.  We do 
agree with the conditions in the development agreement.  The recommendations of 
approval.  As requested by staff we did reduce that distance for the cul-de-sac to 750 
feet, so we fit with the Uniform Development Code.  We do that because we have that 
emergency access and, then, we are also providing that connectivity from that street to 
the other pedestrian facilities, particularly along Lake Hazel and, then, widened that 
access -- that continuation -- or extension of that cul-de-sac back to that open area 
common space, so it's a little bit wider to provide that additional pedestrian connectivity.  
With that, Mayor and Council Members, again, appreciate the efforts on staff's part.  Ask 
for your approval.  Be happy to answer questions if you have them.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, questions for the applicant?   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  I appreciate you laying some of that out.  Maybe continuing Council Member 
Strader's question for staff, have you or your client engaged and had any conversations 
with the West Ada School District about -- not so much about student generation, I don't 
anticipate this development would generate a lot of students, but particularly about 
where they would be slated to attend school.   
 
Lakey:  If you would give me just a moment I can maybe talk about the specifics of that.   



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 11 of 36 

 
Cavener:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Maybe while that's occurring, Mr. Parsons, do we have an idea when the 
school district plans to start transmitting letters on the ones that they have yet to do  
while -- while we are moving forward?   
 
Parsons:  Mayor, Members of the Council, I don't have a specific date, but I know it's -- 
it's imminent based on the discussions that -- the joint meeting that you had with them.  
What I can tell you is based on some of the e-mails that I have seen on this topic, the 
school district plans on providing letters for developments that are 45 or more lots and 
so in these types of situations you may not get any comments from the school district 
because they are under that threshold.  So, I just wanted to let Mayor and Council know 
that, there will be a threshold moving forward with -- but, yeah, we can start expecting to 
see more and more letters in the near future.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Lakey:  Mayor and Council Member Cavener, I appreciate the question.  We did not 
have any specific conversations with West Ada and appreciate the comments from staff 
on kind of their threshold.  I will say -- or we will note this is a smaller project at 22 lots,  
but I think it's also worth noting this is a type of project that's going to be well above your 
homeowners exemption and contribute more than your typical standard subdivision  
from a property tax standpoint to the school district.   
 
Simison:  Council, any additional questions?  Okay.  Thank you very much.   
 
Lakey:  Thank you, Mayor and Council Members.   
 
Simison:  Madam Clerk, do we have anyone signed up to provide testimony on this 
item?   
 
Lomeli:  Mr. Mayor, we have no one signed up.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Is there anybody present that would like to provide testimony on this 
item, either in the room or online?  If you are online use the raise your hand feature.  I 
see no one coming forward and no one raising their hand.  Would the applicant like to 
make any additional comments?  So, Council, we will turn this back to you for further 
dialogue.   
 
Overton:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Overton.   
 
Overton:  Mr. Lakey, I just got to tell you that it's a little refreshing to have a project in 
front of us with this low of a density, because that's not what we tend to see anymore  



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 12 of 36 

and when I first saw this I had to read it twice to make sure I wasn't seeing a typo.  I 
think it's perfect for that area as a phase two of The Keep.  It's already there.  It looks 
beautiful.  I think this will be like the missing puzzle piece going next to it and won't add 
a lot of traffic trips onto Lake Hazel because of it.  I think it looks like a really well done 
project and it's going to be a great addition to our community.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  I really like the estate lot products.  I think it's a nice addition to Meridian and 
does help us, you know, provide something a little bit different.  The only area I am 
struggling -- and it's not actually something that the applicant can solve, but we do have 
concerns about school overcrowding in another development that is close by this area  
and I think it is going to be important for us to find some sort of a consistent philosophy 
and how we are approaching that issue.  I do take a lot of comfort from our joint meeting 
with the West Ada School District where we asked them directly what do you need from 
us and they felt confident that they still had all the tools available to try to manage the 
student population.  I expect them to rise to the occasion and do that.  I think the -- the 
answer for some of these where it is really overcrowded is less density and you have 
already got that, so that gets me comfortable with this one.  I don't have any major 
concerns.  But, again, it's more of just a philosophy kind of conversation about how we 
are going to be approaching these in this area, particularly where Mountain View is 
extremely overcrowded and we have some other issues like that.  You know even with 
the student generation rate, which I don't even think this would probably reach of, you 
know, even half of a student per unit, it's a very manageable number.  So, again, I'm 
okay with this one, but I think getting that feedback from West Ada really closely on 
these going forward is going to be important for us.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  This one to me is a little bit of a -- for me going to be an exercise of discipline 
for The Keep game changer for South Meridian.  Appreciate you being forward thinking 
and investing your dollars to bring something to South Meridian that many in our 
community have been asking for.  I love driving past it.  Hope one day maybe I could 
live there and I -- to Council Member Overton's point, it is refreshing to see something 
that's different.  We talk a lot about diversity and oftentimes diversity means density and 
it's nice to see something that is less dense.  I struggled a little bit with kind of location 
of open space and the alley load side, but given the really unique geographical 
challenges I think you have really put together something that works with a very limited 
canvas.  Being up front, where I'm struggling is that Mountain View High School, Victory 
Middle School, are over capacity and I have no doubt that if this is built will help 
alleviate in terms of providing extra funding to the district long term.  That's a school that 
has been really challenged for a long time and continues to be challenged and I can't 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 13 of 36 

get frustrated about high density products that are putting students into an overcrowded 
school and say, well, this is not as many, so it kind of makes it okay.  So, I wish we had 
the magic wand to solve the challenges that are going in the schools.  These are 
challenges that are not your making, but you are kind of at the tail end of being forced to 
address.  I am not going to be supportive this evening and it's not because I don't want 
this and I don't want more of this, it's that for me I don't think it is the right time given the 
challenges that our school district is currently faced and it -- frankly, it pains me, 
because I want to encourage more of this particularly in South Meridian.   
 
Simison:  Council, any additional questions, comments?  Close the public hearing?   
 
Overton:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Overton.   
 
Overton:  If there is no more public testimony, I move we closed the public hearing.   
 
Simison:  Motion to close the public hearing.  And a second?   
 
Little Roberts:  Second.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  All in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes have 
it and the public hearing is closed.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  ALL AYES.   
 
Overton:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Overton.   
 
Overton:  After considering all staff, applicant and public testimony, I move to 
recommend -- to approve File No. H-2023-0047 as presented in the staff report for the 
hearing date of April 9th, 2024.   
 
Little Roberts:  Second.   
 
Simison:  Have a motion and a second to approve Item 4.  Is there discussion on the 
motion?  If not, Clerk will call the roll 
 
Roll Call:  Cavener, nay; Strader, yea; Overton, yea; Little Roberts, yea; Taylor, yea. 
 
Simison:  Four ayes.  One nay.  The item is approved.  Thank you very much. Have a 
good evening. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  ONE NAY.   
 5. Public Hearing for Rosalyn Subdivision (H-2023-0056) by Givens  



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 14 of 36 

  Pursley, LLP, located at 200 E. Rosalyn Dr.  
 
  A. Request: Annexation of a 0.014-acre of land from RUT in Ada  
   County to the R-8 zoning district, including the remaining portion of  
   E. Rosalyn Street cul-de-sac right-of-way. 
 
  B. Request: Combined Preliminary/Final Plat consisting of 6   
   residential building lots and 1 common lot on 0.733 acres in the R-8 
   zoning district. 
 
Simison:  Next item up is Item 5, public hearing for Rosalyn Subdivision, H-2023-0056.  
We will open the staff hearing -- or this public hearing for staff comments.   
 
Hersh:  Good evening, Mr. Mayor and Members of the Council.  The applicant is here to 
present their project for Rosalyn Subdivision.  The applications that were submitted our 
annexation and combined preliminary/final plat.  The site consists of 0.733 acres of 
land, a small portion of right of way that is currently zoned RUT and the larger piece of 
the property is zoned R-8 and it's located at 200 East Rosalyn Drive.  History on the 
property.  There was a short plat that was approved and a right of way -- right of way 
vacation instrument number.  The Comprehensive Plan FLUM designation is low 
density residential.  This designation is intended to allow for the development of single 
family homes on large estate lots at a gross density of three dwelling units or less per 
acre.  This property was annexed in 2005 with an R-8 zone and granted approval for a 
step up in density, which was allowed under the previous Comprehensive Plan.  This 
policy was removed from the Comprehensive Plan in the 2019 update.  The applicant is 
proposing to annex 0.014 of an acre of land with an R-8 zoning district, including the 
remaining portion of East Rosalyn Street cul-de-sac right of way.  A legal description 
and exhibit map for the annexation area is included with the application.  The property is 
within the city's area of city impact boundary.  The applicant proposes a six lot 
subdivision for six single family residential detached homes.  Since the majority of the 
property is already annexed and zoned with an R-8 district, staff must analyze the 
project based on the merits of the governing zoning district regardless of the proposed 
density.  The proposed preliminary plat consists of six building lots and one common lot 
on 0.733 acres of property in the existing R-8 zoning district.  Proposed lots range in 
size from 4,060 to 5,219 square feet.  The subdivision is proposed to develop in one 
phase.  An existing home on the property is proposed to be removed from the site.  Any 
outbuildings located on the site should be removed with the development of the 
property.  The proposed plat and subsequent development are required to comply with 
the dimensional standards listed in the UDC.  The proposed plat appears to comply with 
the dimensional standards of the district and per the UDC lots taking access from a 
common drive do not require street frontage.  Access is proposed from East Rosalyn 
Drive and a common driveway on Lot 6, Block 1.  The interior Lots 3, 4, 5 and 7, Block 
1, are proposed to take access via a common drive to East Rosalyn Drive meeting the 
street access requirements of the UDC.  Common driveway shall serve a maximum of 
four dwelling units and in no case shall more than three dwelling units be located on one 
side of a driveway.  The applicant is proposing six dwelling units, with four taking access 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 15 of 36 

off the common drive -- driveway.  Three dwelling units are also located on one side of 
the driveway in accordance with the UDC requirements.  Off-street parking is required to 
be provided in accordance with the standards listed in the UDC for single family 
dwellings based on the number of bedrooms per unit.  Staff will confirm compliance with 
these standards at the time of building permit submittal for each residence.  There are 
no street buffers required along local streets per the UDC table.  The applicant has 
provided a landscape plan and that actually is not required per the UDC.  East Rosalyn 
Drive is improved with an existing five foot wide attached concrete sidewalk abutting the 
site in accordance with the UDC standards.  All fencing is required to comply with the 
UDC standards and according to the submit -- submitted plans the applicant is not 
proposing fencing with this project at this time.  Two conceptual building elevations were 
submitted that demonstrate what future homes in this development will look like.  
Variations that appear to be single story and two story detached homes with a two car 
garage are proposed.  The submitted elevations depicts several different architectural 
and design styles with field materials of lap siding, different colored accents, roof profile, 
stone and front porches.  The summary from the Commission hearing.  In favor was the 
applicant from Givens Pursley.  In opposition was Jan Larrea, Paul Pelletier, Ken Freeze 
and Nick Nauslar.  Commenting again is the applicant from Givens Pursley.  Written 
testimony -- multiple letters of written testimony were submitted and can be found in the 
record online and key issues discussed at the Commission public hearing.  The 
Comprehensive Plan depicts the property as low density residential in the future land 
use map.  There are too many lots proposed within the subdivision.  Lot -- lots smaller 
than 5,000 square feet should not be proposed for a development this small.  Concerns 
with additional traffic and noise.  Key issues of discussion by Commission were none.  
Commission changes to staff report is none.  Outstanding issues for City Council are 
none.  And written testimony since the Commission hearing.  We received a letter from 
Robin Hatcher with concerns with increased traffic and the density proposed on the lot.  
And that concludes staff's presentation and I stand for any questions.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, questions for staff?   
 
Overton:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Overton.   
 
Overton:  Stacy, just to make sure I understand correctly, when it comes to sidewalks it 
lists East Rosalyn Drive is improved within the existing five foot wide attached concrete 
sidewalk abutting the site.  The only sidewalks going in are the ones abutting this actual 
site.  We are not improving the roadway of Rosalyn out to the west of Meridian Road.   
 
Hersh:  Mr. Mayor, Councilman Overton, yes, that is correct.  So, that -- that sidewalk is 
existing and none are required along the common drive and no roadway improvements 
are being -- are happening with this project.  The applicant is annexing the cul-de-sac 
that is in the area on the plan.  Maybe I can't -- it's not on the plan here.  That was 
basically left to be a cul-de-sac at one time, but that didn't happen for that -- for those 
projects that were developed in that area.   



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 16 of 36 

 
Overton:  Thank you.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor? 
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Question for you, but if you are unable to answer it, the applicant hopefully 
could address it, but help me zero in on what part of the property is already annexed 
and what part of the property is not.  I think that's going to be really important tonight.   
 
Hersh:  Mr. Mayor, Council Woman Strader, so I don't have a really good picture.  I 
believe the applicant -- she does in her presentation that you can see the cul-de-sac to 
the south.  So, this whole area on this plat that's proposed is already annexed as R-8.  
It's just a little piece of right of way that ACHD owned that was supposed to be a cul-de- 
sac that is no longer taking place.  So, we asked them to annex that piece and to clean 
up the GIS map and zoning, so that wasn't left in the county.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  So, when the Rosalyn Subdivision was originally annexed was this a 
preliminary plat that came through and was reviewed by Council at that time and were 
there six dwelling units at that time?  Or help me understand -- sorry.  It's kind of a 
convoluted question.  What I'm getting at is -- just to be very upfront, I don't like step-
ups in density.  I was very happy that that policy was eliminated in our Comprehensive 
Plan update and so I'm hesitant to do those, unless I'm told legally we are forced to, but 
I just want to understand if I'm looking at this property like, which you -- what were -- 
what was kind of approved in their original annexation?   
 
Hersh:  Mr. Mayor, Council Woman Strader, so that original annexation I believe was 
approved in 2005.  I'm not a hundred percent sure.  But that piece of land -- that whole 
area, actually, including the other subdivisions surrounding it, were all stepped up to R-
8.  So, they are completely surrounded by R-8 subdivisions.  If you look at the FLUM 
designation in the center, that entire area where those medium density residential 
homes are are low density on the FLUM designation.  But if you look to the zoning, 
every one of those lots is zoned R-8, so they that entire area asked for a density bump 
up -- bump up and prior to the comp plan changes in 2019 where we no longer have 
that.  However, we did make UDC changes to the code in 2016 to remove the density 
requirements for each residential zone.  So, there are no density requirements attached 
to each residential zone in our UDC code.  However, it's based on dimensional 
standards.  Can the applicant meet the 4,000 square foot lot and the street frontages.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 17 of 36 

 
Strader:  If you don't mind -- and I, apologize because I'm sort of taking us down a rabbit 
hole, but at -- before -- we don't have density standards now, but we did before, so help 
me understand what the dense -- because I feel like -- what I'm worried about is I don't 
want to have a -- like have your cake and eat it too situation where the applicant is 
relying on the most advantageous parts of zoning and grandfathered in under step up, 
but at the same time avoiding the requirements that would have existed at that time.  
Are -- and I'm sorry, because it's kind of -- if you want to get back to me later in the 
hearing totally fine, but my curiosity is just what would have been the density 
requirement at that time?   
 
Hersh:  Mr. Mayor, Council Woman Strader.  So, that entire area, including the slot, 
were zoned R-8, so densities are three to eight units per acre.   
 
Strader:  Three to eight.   
 
Hersh:  Yes.   
 
Strader:  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Anything you want to add?   
 
Parsons:  Mayor, Members of the Council, just a little bit more context.  So, on this 
particular property -- so, if you -- if Stacy being -- had that aerial there.  I can't see it on 
my screen, so I apologize, but if you see this particular property and, then, the three lot   
-- the common drive and the three lots to the east, that annexed in in 2005 as one big a 
lot.  So, as part of that it was just one home on one lot the way you are seeing it and, 
then, in 2018 the previous owner subdivided even more and added the three lots and 
we went through a short plat process that this Council approved and now we are left 
with this even smaller piece that is in front of you tonight to even subdivide it even 
further.  Stacy also looked at the density for Council tonight and I believe that Larkspur 
came in at about 4.75 dwelling units to the acre, so that it did fall well within that density 
range of three to eight as requested with the step up.  I just -- we just wanted to give 
you that context that this is -- it was one lot, then, went to four lots and now this one lot 
is going to six lots.  But it's still -- based on some of the discussion at the Commission 
hearing as well, these lots are fairly compatible to the adjacent lots around this 
development and we were able to verify that with the Commission as well.  So, just at 
least wanted to let the Council know that as well.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Stacy, you made a comment I want to make sure that I heard it correctly,  
which is that the annexation element of tonight's application is because the city asked 
the applicant to annex that piece highway district land in with their application.  Is that 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 18 of 36 

what I heard correctly?   
 
Hersh:  Mr. Mayor, Councilman Cavener, that is a hundred percent correct.  We wanted 
to clean up the map and they also needed it in the southwest corner to complete their 
configuration.  So, their allotment -- the dimensional standards -- one of their lots.  And 
so ACHD agreed with them to allow them to obtain that piece.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor, follow up.   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  I think just kind of for me at least the crux of the issue -- if the Council were to 
recommend -- if the Council were to deny the annexation request, because the bulk of 
the land already has an annexation and zone that's been granted, they could build what 
is proposed.  The only difference is we wouldn't clean up some of this highway district 
business.  Is that -- is my reading of your staff report and your presentation accurate?   
 
Hersh:  Mr. Mayor, Councilman Cavener, so if you do not grant the annexation for that 
little piece -- that sliver, one of the lots will not meet the dimensional standards for the 
front yard or the garage layout, so I'm not sure if they are able to reorientate those -- 
that house to make it work or not.   
 
Cavener:  Okay.   
 
Hersh:  So, that's the main reason.   
 
Simison:  Maybe to ask that a different way, would they only be allowed, then, to do five 
lots potentially, if that was the case?   
 
Hersh:  Mr. Mayor, that would be correct.  They would probably have to lose a lot, 
because they couldn't meet the dimensional standards of the R-8 zoning district.   
 
Little Roberts:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Little Roberts.   
 
Little Roberts:  What is the ACHD property that's being annexed currently used for or is 
it just sitting there?   
 
Hersh:  Mr. Mayor, Council Woman Roberts.  So, again, it was just -- it's just sitting 
there.  As you will see it on the applicant's presentation, she blows it up nicely where 
everyone can actually get a look at what that -- we are talking about.  It -- it's basically 
carved out as a roundabout, but was never made a roundabout.  It's just a regular local 
road.  So, there is just a piece that are sitting on people's properties that ACHD owned.   
 
Little Roberts:  Thank you.   



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 19 of 36 

 
Simison:  Council, any additional questions for staff?   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Sorry.  Just one more.  Help me understand the not proposing fencing.  How    
-- does that violate our policy?  I wasn't really clear on whether that's like a violation of 
our policies or if you are just noting that.   
 
Hersh:  Mr. Mayor, Council Woman Strader, I was just noting it.  They didn't propose 
any, but if they do in the future with the building permits they need to meet the UDC 
code.   
 
Strader:  Okay.  So, it was just noting that at that time they would have to.  Got it.  Thank 
you.   
 
Simison:  Council, any additional questions for staff?  Would the applicant like to come 
forward.  Good evening.   
 
Koeckeritz:  Good evening, Mayor, Council Members.  Elizabeth Koeckeritz, with Givens 
Pursley.  601 Bannock.  Am I controlling or -- all right.  Good evening.  My name is 
Elizabeth Koeckeritz.  I am here on behalf of the applicant team tonight.  I am land use 
counsel with Givens Pursley.  Hear with me tonight is Julie Bingham, who is one half of 
the applicant team.  It's just a husband and wife.  But Bingham is a local vet in the area 
and so this is sort of their first foray into buying this in-fill lot and deciding to do 
something with it.  They are the owners of the project.  They are not career developers, 
but they felt like this was a great location and something that they wanted to look at 
doing.  So, let's go right into it.  Let's -- so, this is the vicinity map.  This goes so fast for 
me.  As you can see this really is surrounded by development by the City of Meridian on 
all sides, except for there is a small portion that's completely directly to the west that's 
completely -- that is still Ada county, but the Ada county piece is completely surrounded 
by Meridian.  If you look here this is the exhibit -- this is the annexation.  Rosalyn 
Subdivision is a replat of a portion of the San Gorgonio -- I think is maybe -- I have no 
idea how to pronounce it -- Subdivision.  It was approved by the Meridian City Council in 
2020.  There is three homes to the direct east of this plat where it was made very clear 
on the plat that this was the -- sort of the original parcel, the original home is standing 
there.  I don't know who carved it off, but the three homes were then built along the 
eastern boundary of it and this larger lot remained with the original home on it.  The 
area highlighted in yellow is .01 acres, which is approximately 600 feet.  It was the 
former ACHD right of way when this was intended to be a cul-de-sac that actually, I 
believe, didn't go at the time through out to the main street, but rather it dead ended.  
Right there was the intention, but that little portion was ACHD right of way that then has 
been -- now they went through -- the applicant went through the vacation process with 
ACHD, who was like we didn't even know that we owned this small portion, because 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 20 of 36 

they have been taking care of it and it has been landscaped and it's just part of the 
streetscape there and so this was recently vacated and so, then, when you look at it 
what the city asked us to do, in addition to the 600 square feet, was also just to clean up 
the whole cul-de-sac area to make -- just to clean up these boundaries and annex the 
larger area into it.  As mentioned, the main property was annexed into the city in 2005  
and for unknown reasons the vacated property was not included in the annexation at 
the time, so that is why we are here today with the annexation request for that 600 
acres.  One other thing -- I actually want to backup, because I always start by thanking 
staff, because this truly, for being six lots, has gone rounds and rounds and rounds with 
coming in, meeting with Bill Nary, talking to staff, realizing we had to get ACHD for a 
vacation, coming back, meeting with staff, not realizing until the last minute that this tiny 
sliver had not been annexed, adding an annexation, having another neighborhood 
meeting, proposing attached dwelling units, meeting with the neighbors and, finally, 
settling on detached single family neighborhood and so we have worked really closely 
with Bill and Stacy and legal counsel and all sorts of people here to get to where we are.  
It was originally zoned -- annexed and zoned into the property going on to the bigger 
parcel as R-8.  If you look at this parcel you can see that what's directly to the north, to 
the east and to the south is also zoned R-8 and this does meet all of the R-8 
dimensional standards.  This site is ideally situated for a small housing development.  It 
does help meet the city's goal for housing.  There is the sidewalk already existing along 
the road that was put in when the San Gorgonio Subdivision was originally approved in 
2020.  That's why there are no additional street improvements that are required to be 
made at this point in time.  Based on the feedback, as I mentioned, originally there were 
seven lots proposed, including duplex or townhomes along the back, but that has been 
now reduced to just the three homes along the back, three in the front.  There is fencing 
-- there currently exists fencing around the back of the property and also to the 
eastward abuts into those other three homes in the San Gorgonio Subdivision.  There is 
fencing there and that fencing is intended to stay.  There were discussions about using 
that hammerhead, then, as emergency access through.  That started getting very 
complicated and so it's just been with this layout we can leave it as is with the fence 
right there.  It meets multiple goals of the Comprehensive Plan, including that it's in-fill 
development, it's prioritizing the development of vacant and underdeveloped parcels.  
All your public facilities are available.  There is -- the infrastructure is already in place 
and it does help support diverse housing throughout the city.  I'm looking at the 
preliminary plat.  It does qualify, because it is small.  It qualifies for the preliminary and 
final plat process.  The dimensions meet all city -- city code standards for the R-8 as set 
forth in the code.  One note and comment to Council Woman Strader's comment is that 
with -- I don't believe if the annexation were denied if this exact plat could be approved.  
However, with a small shift over to the right of the private drive this -- a very similar plat 
could be approved that would be almost identical to what's being presented here, it just 
would be without that 600 square feet of annexed property.  There is public financial 
capability to support the project.  They will be paying all the required impact and other 
fees.  There is property tax revenue coming from this.  Overall it's not a burden on the 
city, it really fits in well with all of the surrounding project.  The traffic impacts are so 
small that ACHD's comment letter said we have nothing.  We did not receive a school 
letter.  The schools here are Sienna, Victory and, then, Mountain View, which I do know 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 21 of 36 

are some of your more crowded schools here.  The final plat is in conformance with the 
preliminary plat.  All the requirements for the UDC for a final plat and all the engineering, 
architectural and surveying and required standards -- everything is being met here.  
They are looking at doing a high quality site and architectural design that does 
complement the surrounding neighborhood.  They have craftsman style architecture, 
front porch areas facing the street, complimentary landscaping and each home is 
actually -- they are looking at doing one and a half, which is -- stories, which is really 
primarily two and three bedrooms on the main floor with a bonus room upstairs and one 
of the things that the Binghams developed this for is they do have their older 
grandmother, they are looking at being able to live here in one of these units and not 
have to worry about stairs.  Their sewer and water -- we just have some aerial pictures 
here.  Sewer and water is available.  In speaking with the trash collection they do -- 
because of how this hammerhead is made they will be able to go in and collect trash 
inside.  The trash bins should not need to be all drug out to the street and, then, we just 
did receive approval for the location of the mailbox, which will be right at where the 
hammerhead comes in.  The access and parking.  It meets all of the requirements.  
There is two car garages, plus a parking apron for two cars for each one of these, for a 
total of four.  So -- yeah.  And with that we have reviewed the staff report and we are in 
agreement with all of the conditions of approval and so we are requesting approval for 
annexation and the combined preliminary and final plat and I will stand for any 
questions.   
 
Simison:  Thank you, Elizabeth.  Council, questions?  I will go and take a crack at 
questions, since I won't be voting tonight one way or the other.  So, when you look at 
the -- what I thought I heard staff say was the -- while everything -- the surrounding is R-
8, it's really about density of 5.96; is that correct?  It was in the surrounding 
neighborhood.  What?  4.75.  You know, the fact that this isn't even on one acre -- again 
if you just -- if you just extrapolate the numbers -- I mean you are putting -- you are 
pretty much on a one -- eight homes per acre if you were to take this all the way up to 
an acre, compared to the surrounding, which seems a little -- more than the surrounding 
neighborhoods and I think if you use the three homes to the east, those three homes 
would almost take up this entire place where you have six, but if you use the four homes 
to the north you can fit those four and maybe one more.  I guess my kind of just looking 
at round numbers and look at this -- five seems to be like the right size number based 
on the dimensional standards, based upon the surrounding area.  Why would five not be 
a good fit for this location?   
 
Koeckeritz:  Mayor, that is a great question.  One is because it actually -- it can have 
more and it does really nicely fit in -- one of the things when you are dealing with the 
density -- let me find this picture.  Oh, I went past it.  This is so twitchy.  Is that you look 
at some of these other developments that came in much larger that have the roads 
going through them, that have public roads, they have got open space, things of that 
nature start taking away and making the density less, but if you were to just take this red 
square and slide it right up -- directly up, you would actually have one, two, three, four --
It looks like eight houses on there.  So, it really is matching into really almost identical 
as to what is being directly to the north.  There really is no difference in the density in 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 22 of 36 

how it looks and feels, because this -- because of the small size of it it's not required to 
have those other amenities and things.  It doesn't have the public road going through it.  
They wouldn't have been required in a larger development, but in this case when you 
just move that red square up, you can really see the size of the lot surrounding it and, 
then, all of those green numbers are all lot sizes that are 5,000 square feet or less 
surrounding it.   
 
Simison:  I would bet you lunch that it doesn't fit.  It would be more than an acre for 
those eight straight above it.  You could maybe in that -- in that direction get six, but if 
you want to put money on it, I will be happy to take the free lunch from you, because it 
won't fit.  That's -- that's more than an acre on those other to get eight -- the next eight.  
It's wider and it's taller.  But point being the four to the north are definitely a different size 
than the three to the east, which goes back to my point is you got a wide variety of 
product in this area that averages out to well below the dimensional standard.  Really, if 
you proportionate it out, the six is close to eight per acre that you are -- that's what the 
number comes out to, compared to the rest of the -- everything around you, which is 
closer to five per acre.  They have a lot more space to work to average that out, but, you 
know, setting a point -- I don't know if it's the -- just the .733 or plus the annexation puts 
it up the .738, but just -- just doing math -- math and looking at pictures, that's all I'm 
doing, and trying to understand that that -- the six, when you got to shoehorn a house in 
sideways, to me says, well, are we really doing what we would normally do on a project 
like this.  On a cul-de-sac, yes.  On stuff that's not a cul-de-sac it just seems a little 
awkward.  Like we are trying to make something fit that doesn't really fit.  I have said my 
piece.  There is no -- you can respond if you want, but there is really no question, it's 
just a blanket comment for consideration.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Elizabeth, thanks for the presentation and especially -- I always appreciate 
when -- when staff asks for something you try to be responsive and so I think you have 
heard at least some initial deliberation there is some real challenges I think for some 
Members of the Council on this and so I assume you forecast that there was a little 
conversation about this at Planning and Zoning.  Is your client seeking that annexation 
request.  You are ambivalent to it?  If -- if the request is granted that's great.  If not, it's 
no big deal.  Help me kind of understand your motivation around that.   
 
Koeckeritz:  Mayor Simison, Council Member Cavener, our client would like to have the 
property annexed, because it's actually -- I believe it's with -- inside their current fence 
and they have been taking care of it for years -- or for as many years as they have 
owned the property, which is just a couple of years.  But also it helps square up the 
corners.  I believe we still could come back with the dimensional standards for six on a 
pre-plat, that it would still work without this property, but it does make it easier by 
squaring that corner up.   
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor? 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 23 of 36 

 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  I know we have got some public that are going to provide some testimony,  so 
I'm just going to queue this up for you.  I'm not going to be supportive of the annexation 
request with six units.  So, I think that's a fair question for you to at least take back to 
your -- your client say one Council Member is not going to be supportive this way and 
that will give you guys some opportunity to discuss before you come back for closing 
comments.  I know that some other Council Members who wants to share their 
thoughts, but just try to be fully transparent with you where I'm going to be sitting 
tonight.   
 
Taylor:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Taylor.   
 
Taylor:  Elizabeth, thanks for the presentation.  Just in terms of the -- considering the -- I 
would say product type -- the types of homes being presented here, high marks for 
creativity, though, and fitting six units in a space like this.  Would you -- can you just 
answer maybe two questions.  Would you consider these almost like a patio home and 
what sort of the approximate square footage we are looking at.  Because you mentioned 
stairs maybe for a bonus room only, but how would you sort of describe the type of 
home it is and kind of the square footage?   
 
Koeckeritz:  Mayor Simison, Council Member Taylor, I would -- they are very similar to a 
patio home and they are -- the estimated size is between 1,500 and 1,800 square feet.  
So, really just the single floor, a bonus room upstairs, something for newer couples, 
older retirees, a place that you can lock and go.  I mean it's smaller yards.  It's a really 
convenient in like the location there.   
 
Taylor:  Mr. Mayor, a quick follow up.   
 
Simison:  Councilman Taylor.   
 
Taylor:  Speaking of just sort of -- there is no fences between homes, is this going to be 
something where people would take care of their home or they would have a -- part of 
the HOA would take care of the home -- or the landscaping?  What's the intent?   
 
Koeckeritz:  Mayor Simison, Council Member Taylor, I believe the intent is there will be 
an HOA, but I believe the intent is for the individuals to take care of their own homes.  
There will certainly be -- and there already is -- they do intend on fencing these units.  
No fencing plan was required as part of this application.  So, none was provided.  But 
there already is the standard -- the taller fence along the back and on the east and they 
will be doing some sort of lower sort of neighborhood friendly fence between these 
units.   
Taylor:  Between the units.   



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 24 of 36 

 
Simison:  Council, any additional questions for the applicant?  Thank you, Elizabeth.  
Mr. Clerk, who do we have signed up on this?   
 
Johnson:  I apologize if I mispronounce it.  Jan Larrea.   
 
Simison:  Good evening.  If you would, please, state your name and address for the 
record and you will be recognized for three minutes.   
 
Larrea:  Jan Larrea.  100 East Rosalyn Drive.  I am the owner of the five acres to the 
west of this property and I am the one that has always mowed the cul-de-sac.  That 
used to be a cul-de-sac.  There was four houses on this road and that was the end of 
the cul-de-sac.  It didn't go any further.  I take care of it, because I mow all along the 
road along my pasture and now they are talking about not putting a fence between them 
and my pasture.  So, they are going to have a barbed wire fence and electric fence on 
most of the houses there.  It's too dense.  I don't care if people want to build stuff on 
their property, but this is just too many houses.  It will fit four houses or three houses 
real nicely and they will still come out ahead and that's -- and I had to give him 
permission to even annex that, because I own all that other property and you are setting 
the precedence.  I have five acres across the street.  There is five acres undeveloped.  
We are Ada county.  So, when I die and the kids get the property they can put 30 
houses there.  Five times, you know, six.  So, you are kind of setting the precedence.  I 
think it's a poor one for that area.  That is not the kind of area that we want.  That's it.  
Any questions?   
 
Simison:  Council --  
 
Larrea:  And the sidewalk was there from 2005 when Ron did all of the development 
behind there.  I have been there since '75.   
 
Simison:  Council -- I think we do have a question for you, Jan.  Councilman Overton.   
 
Overton:  Thank you, Jan.   
 
Larrea:  You are welcome.   
 
Overton:  I have lived here since '77 and I remember the Larrea family living on Rosalyn 
Drive since then.  Since 1975.   
 
Larrea:  Right.   
 
Overton:  That is still an unapproved road; correct?   
 
Larrea:  Correct.   
 
Overton:  No gutters.  No sidewalks.   



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 25 of 36 

 
Larrea:  No.   
 
Overton:  No streetlights.   
 
Larrea:  No.   
 
Overton:  All the way from where this project would be all the way to Meridian Road.   
 
Larrea:  Correct.  That's my land.   
 
Overton:  And did you just state that you would be more open to a development that 
was either three or four houses?   
 
Larrea:  I would.  They have a right to do with their property.  I mean everybody wants 
that; right?  They have a right to do that.  I don't want to stop that.  This is just too much.  
It's too much for the neighborhood.  Put it down to three or four.   
 
Overton:  Thank you, Jan.   
 
Larrea:  You're welcome.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.   
 
Johnson:  Mr. Mayor, Ken Freeze.  Mr. Mayor, Ken is representing an HOA.   
 
Freeze:  Good evening, Mr. Mayor, Council Members.  I'm speaking on behalf of the -- 
and Lord help me trying to pronounce it -- the San Gorgonio HOA.  That's about as 
close as I can get.  I do have a PowerPoint to present to you that I'm going to contradict 
a lot that was said here.  Can we get that up there?  Thank you.  So, I think this -- this 
current project as it's laid out is bad for a number of reasons.  One, the development is 
not in line with Meridian's own Comprehensive Plan and future use -- land use.  Too 
many units for the current zoning and it's out of character with the street -- with a street.  
Now, I have heard a lot about the Comprehensive Plan.  I have read a lot of -- a lot of it 
and, you know, it sort of strikes me that it was talking about it's an effective vision and 
source document for the general public.  We all want Meridian to be a premier place to 
live.  I think everybody wants that and a key component for the Comprehensive Plan 
and the development that occurs is the future land use map.  Now, we have already 
seen it, here it is again.  X marks the spot where 200 Rosalyn is.  Future land use -- 
future land use has this is low density and if you look right now these lots basically 
match that zoning.  These lots are all large lots.  So, lots right directly across the street.  
They are putting another high density housing, trying to put as many as you can cram 
into a piece of property is not going to fit.  That's actually a step backwards for the plan.  
Medium high density.  I was looking at some of our neighbors, Ada county R-8, lot size 
minimum is 5,000 square feet.  Eagle is 5,000 square feet.  Nampa has a -- kind of a 
hybrid.  It's an 8.5.  It's 8,500 square feet.  And Boise jumps from 9,000 square feet for a 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 26 of 36 

home down to 3,500 feet for condos.  Why -- why did Meridian opt for 4,000 square 
feet?  Well, you know, it gives developers some more options.  I'm sure you have seen 
a lot of plans come across here -- there are some weird shaped properties and they 
have some weird things going across them and trying to get that worked in with eight 
units per acre can be a real challenge.  Here is a plan that was approved -- let's see.  It 
was last year I believe and if you look there you will see that minimum lot size is 4,300 
square feet, but the average lot size is over 6,000 square feet.  Right there.  It's 6,000 
square feet.  Now, this is going to be put -- assuming that you approve the annexation -- 
.733 acres, with each one having, according to the code, a minimum of 4,000 square 
feet.  I -- I believe -- and granted this isn't chiseled any place -- that the use of the 4,000 
square foot lots in a lot that's less than an acre is really kind of an abuse of that 4,000 
square foot when you look around and see everybody else has got 5,000 square foot.  I 
think it's very appropriate for a larger development of several acres, especially when 
they are a weird shape, but I don't think it's appropriate in this particular project.  If you 
look on the street, all these homes in green are over 5,000 and most of them are over 
6,000 and the three lots that are directly across the street vary from 12,000 to 16,000 
square feet.  So, trying to cram high density housing in that lot on this street I think is 
the wrong place to do it.  The other thing they have is this hammerhead, which I think is 
a real safety issue and what I would propose for, again, safety, for fire, emergency 
vehicle, is that they put three homes on that property.  This gives adequate space for 
homes, for backyards, for front yards.  It becomes a -- much easier for the Fire 
Department to access, for emergency vehicles to access.  Don't have to worry about a 
fire taking place and somebody had parked on that hammerhead, which I have to 
wonder who is going to keep that hammerhead policed to make sure there is no parking 
on it 24/7, because that's what it's going to take if you want to get an emergency vehicle 
in there at 3:00 a.m. in the morning.  I think this system here of three homes will be 
much better.  You can see it practically mimics the property lines directly across the 
street from it.  I think three homes on this street would fit in very nicely.  It would -- it 
would add to the street and it wouldn't be another one of these -- let's see how many 
homes we can cram into a lot type of development.  The HOA is not against the 
development.  Six homes just -- it's just -- just too many.  Too dense.  We would not be 
opposed to fewer homes as I showed.  I think three homes fits in there very nicely and 
it's very appropriate for the neighborhood.  Fewer homes that fit into the surrounding 
homes would really be a nice addition to the neighborhood.  During this whole process I 
have talked to a lot of people in the neighborhood and I assured them that their voices 
will be heard.  However, this is some of the comments I got from a lot of people.  Can't 
fight city hall.  It's useless to try to do anything.  The city only listens to developers.  I 
really hope that that is not the case tonight.  Thank you.   
 
Overton:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Freeze:  Do you have any questions for me?   
 
Simison:  You are going to probably have questions.  Councilman Overton.   
 
Overton:  Ken.   



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 27 of 36 

 
Freeze:  Yes.  Yes.   
 
Overton:  I have stood where you are standing for my HOA multiple times before I ever 
got on this Council and I have always found previous councils to listen to what people 
had to say.   
 
Freeze:  That's what I have been telling people.  
 
Overton:  Okay.  I just want to make sure I have that --  
 
Freeze:  I -- I have come to a lot of Council meetings.  I -- I hear what goes on and I was 
assuring them, look, let the Council -- write your letters.  They will listen.   
 
Overton:  And, Ken, can I also assume that the number of homes that you would like to 
see on that lot is three homes?   
 
Freeze:  Yeah.  I think -- I think three would be very nice there.   
 
Overton:  Thank you, sir.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Ken, we always think folks who represent HOAs.  It's a hard gig.  I also just 
want to appreciate your role on HPC and you have been vocal on some stuff with that 
as well.  So, you have spent a lot of time at City Hall and I appreciate you kind of share 
both sides as you meet with the public.  Ken, has the -- has the HOA discussed if they 
would want this proposed development if approved to be part of your existing HOA or 
has the homeowners association said we want them to be their own separate HOA?   
 
Freeze:  The homeowners association hasn't expressed that either way.  Right now  
Amy Wessel, who is the president, she does everything.  They don't have a -- a service 
or anything like that and she's trying to save money and it's just -- it's just the three 
homes that are -- that are there now.  Personally I think they could get some synergy by 
adding three more homes to it.  I'm not sure Amy would want to do that.  Unfortunately, 
she couldn't be here tonight.  She got tied up with work.  It would be easy to just turn 
around and ask her about that, because she -- she really is the HOA.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Thanks.  So, Ken, because -- because you have been to a lot of these 
meetings -- I know you have been involved in our community is kind of maybe why I'm 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 28 of 36 

asking a more direct question, which is this property is -- already received its annexation 
and zoning.  They have entitled rights to develop within the zoning that's already been 
applied to them.  Really the big discussion for the Council tonight is this small strip of 
land that's being proposed for an annexation.  Help me understand -- I mean what I'm 
hearing from you is opposition to the totality of the development.   
 
Freeze:  Correct.   
 
Cavener:  So, somewhat that decision has already been addressed.  We have got a plat 
that's before us and there is limited basis for denial of a plat.  So, again, it's back to this 
small strip of land that's an annexation request.  So, does the HOA have an opinion 
about where the Council should be on that -- on really what is the decision before us, 
which is approve or deny the small tenth of an acre annexation request?   
 
Freeze:  Well, I would say if it prevents six homes from being built there, then, yes, we 
would be against it.  But you are right on one level.  They do have a right to build there.  
But you as a Council have a responsibility to the people of the city to make sure that it's 
all done responsibly and I think six homes on this piece of property in this area is not a 
responsible option.  I think three homes, as I -- as I showed would -- would fit in very 
nicely there and I think they could still make their profit, because that's -- that's what this 
is all about and I don't blame -- I don't blame people for wanting to make money.  We all 
need to make money.  I just want something to be done responsibly, that fits right with a 
neighborhood and the neighborhood being that street.   
 
Cavener:  Thank you, Ken.   
 
Freeze:  Thank you.  Anything else?   
 
Simison:  Thank you very much.   
 
Freeze:  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Mr. Clerk, anyone else signed up?   
 
Johnson:  That was everyone who signed up.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Is there anybody else present who would like to provide testimony on 
this item, either in the audience or online?  If you are online use raise your hand feature.  
If you are in the audience if you want to come forward.  Okay.  Seeing no one raising 
their hand or coming forward, would the applicant like to come forward for any final 
remarks.   
 
Koeckeritz:  Mayor, City Council, Elizabeth Koeckeritz.  Givens Pursley.  So, I have had 
an opportunity to speak with the applicant and at this point in time we do want to go 
forward with the annexation.  That's something that they had worked very closely with 
the city on based on the dimensional standards with or without that portion.  It will just 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 29 of 36 

require a simple lot line adjustment on the northern boundary of that corner lot is what it 
looks like and they would still be able to get the six lots on this subdivision, which is 
what they are really looking at doing.  They originally had looked at seven lots.  They 
had had to detach -- they have had attached homes.  They have made some real 
concessions based on working with the neighbors, talking more to the city, because it 
did actually work with -- there is enough property here to get seven lots that all meet the 
dimensional standards on this piece of property.  At this point in time it is a good little in-
fill development.  The services are all available to the development and so we are 
asking for approval of the annexation and the preliminary plat at this time.  Preliminary 
and final plat.  I will stand for any more questions.   
 
Simison:  Council, additional questions for the applicant?   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Thanks, Elizabeth.  So, it sounded like this is your client's first development in 
the City of Meridian.  I guess just to share some perspective, you could legally move 
forward without annexing that piece of property, so you are right.  However, I would 
personally encourage you to think about being a good neighbor as part of your 
consideration and think about a continuance to evaluate whether you could make it 
work with five units.  You know, it's a partnership and the city and developers and 
neighbors have all been partnering together for a long time.  The most successful 
developers that I have seen long term in the City of Meridian do try to make these 
compromises to get a better outcome for everybody.  I think that we get a much better 
outcome for everybody when we try to seek that kind of compromise.  So, that's just a 
piece of perspective.  You know, again, you could certainly try to move forward without 
that annexation of that little piece and see if you can manage to fit six lots.  You might 
be able to and you might not.  I don't have a piece of graph paper to sit here with you to 
evaluate whether that's possible.  I do feel like on the one hand this was annexed, that 
that decision was made.  On the other hand, it's been a long time and we have changed 
the direction that we are going as a city since before I think you got involved here.  With 
our Comprehensive Plan update we no longer allow step ups in density.  So, there has 
been a big change in philosophy in the City of Meridian and how we approach these 
properties.  If this was a brand new annexation for me I would really struggle with 
approving it and I do feel like we have a little bit of opportunity to make a decision here 
and, unfortunately, for the neighbors -- and they need to understand that the outcome 
could be -- if there was a denial it's very possible that the developer will simply try to 
push forward.  They may very well find a way to fit those six lots under what is legally 
allowed, but I do agree that at the end of the day the citizens of Meridian need to rely on 
their City Council to make the best decisions holistically for the city and I don't feel like 
this is an appropriate transition for the surrounding neighborhood.  The math that I am 
doing -- I know Councilman Cavener is doing on his phone -- works out to be over eight 
units per acre.  That's kind of what I'm struggling with.  You know, I feel like you are 
getting some of the benefit of the previous zoning and Comprehensive Plan, but maybe 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 30 of 36 

not owning all of the restrictions that would have come with it at that time.  So, that's just 
some feedback.  You know, I'm likely a no tonight and I am sad about that, because I 
would hope that, you know, you might seek a continuance and you might find a way to 
change your business plan a little bit and come back and be successful with everybody 
kind of in partnership.  So, that's just some feedback.   
 
Koeckeritz:  Mayor, Council Member Strader, based on that feedback and Councilman 
Cavener's, we would request a continuance just for a few weeks just so that we can talk 
with the whole client team versus just part of it being here.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Do we have a time frame from which we want to look at that?  Two 
weeks?  Three weeks?   
 
Koeckeritz:  Do you mind if I grab my phone?   
 
Simison:  Not at all.   
 
Overton:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Overton.   
 
Overton:  While the applicant's doing that I would still like to get some more comments 
on the record tonight before that continuance.   
 
Simison:  Well, why don't you go ahead and make some great comments.   
 
Overton:  Mr. Mayor, I'm kind of looking at this a little bit differently I think than most of 
the folks tonight.  Maybe similar to some of the residents on Rosalyn.  But one of the 
things that was very important to me when I came onto this Council was traffic safety 
and transportation and I just cannot in good conscience approve a development that's 
going to be an R-8, that's going to be driving on low density residential roads out to 
Meridian Road.  There just -- for bicycles and pedestrians there is not a sidewalk, there 
is not a streetlight, there is no safe way for them to get down that roadway and yet we 
are here tonight being asked to approve that.  You are going to use a low density 
residential road -- I think we have heard it loud and clear.  I think it needs to be built to 
low density residential lots.  We have heard from the residents close that they would go 
with three or even four and I think that's as much as I would ever get a yes vote for on 
this project.   
 
Taylor:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Taylor.   
 
Taylor:  Just a question that came up to me for our Fire Department.  Mr. Bongiorno,  
when I'm looking at this hammerhead and, Elizabeth, maybe you can help answer this 
question.  So, the -- the way that this common driveway is I'm kind of concerned about 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 31 of 36 

that public safety access in there a little bit and the reason I say that is I know there is a 
two car garage and, then, there is a parking apron for four cars, but I have a two car 
garage and there is no cars in it.  I have got two cars.  I got a third car that I just bought 
for my teenage daughter.  And I got a 15 year old doing driver's ed who is going other 
directions with sports.  I'm thinking there is going to be four cars there really quickly.  
Next to it my neighbor has got five cars.  Street allows it, but it gets pretty crowded.  But 
I also live -- right across the road are a lot of patio homes and there has been -- the fire 
department in that community every few months -- there is elderly people there and so 
as I'm looking at the product type, maybe might find more elderly people occasionally in 
a smaller location, but did you -- did the department look at that and have you 
considered sort of that access in there?  Because there is three homes that you have to 
access through this drive where there could be -- you know, it doesn't look too big and if 
you have cars on each side can you stick a fire truck down that?  I'm actually kind of 
concerned.  But have you looked at that and what would you -- how would your 
response be to that?   
 
Bongiorno:  Mr. Mayor, Councilman Taylor, so the gentleman that spoke earlier about 
the hammerhead is correct.  You cannot park on it.  Period.  It would be considered a 
fire lane.   
 
Taylor:  On the access from Rosalyn you cannot park on that?   
 
Bongiorno:  No, you cannot.  That is fire lane.   
 
Taylor:  Okay.   
 
Bongiorno:  So, it would be for fire, police and EMS to access the houses into the back.  
So, that's why I was kind of chuckling to myself when I saw the renderings, because it 
showed cars parked on there and that's a no no.  So, they would be signed no parking 
fire lane.  I had messaged Stacy to tell her, hey, by the way, make sure that they sign 
that no parking fire lane, because they can't park on it.  Because that's one of my -- 
when I became the fire marshal seven or eight years ago or however long it's been, 
that's what I all of a sudden became is the parking guy and -- and the problems that we 
have is people don't put cars in their garages anymore.  They put junk in their garages 
and their stuff.  So, we -- if you have five cars -- okay?  I was in your same boat.  I had 
two teenage daughters and so we had five cars.  It doesn't work.  The math doesn't 
work.  Two in, two out, plus a third -- where are you going to put them?  And that's 
always a concern for me with some of these bigger projects to make sure that we have 
adequate parking and, then, you throw a holiday in there, now you have grandma, 
auntie, whoever coming over to visit, where are they going to park?  Well, they are 
going to park right on the -- in the hammerhead where it's not allowed and so to answer 
your question again about who is going to police that, it's going to be the HOA is going 
to have to police it and, unfortunately, our police officers -- Lieutenant Harper here is 
going to have to stick somebody on them, because if it is posted no parking fire lane, we 
can ticket against it.  There you go.  So, very much of a concern.  Hammerheads, 
common driveways, are always a problem, because as soon as they see common 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 32 of 36 

driveway, the person that buys those houses that's now automatically their boat parking 
area.  It -- they don't realize that, no, that's for fire, police and EMS and so it -- I don't 
like them, because they turn into parking places.   
 
Taylor:  Yeah.  And I think that's -- I appreciate you clarifying that, because that was kind 
of a missing piece for me.  Maybe I will just add some of my thinking, so as you are -- 
the continuance for a few weeks.  I look at this -- there are some things I like and there 
is some things I'm concerned about.  You know, you have checked all the boxes in 
terms of what you are allowed to do.  So, there is no real legitimate reason to say you 
can't have that.  I liked that they are smaller product, like smaller homes.  I think that's 
beneficial.  You know, the price point would reasonably be less than maybe some of the 
surrounding homes.  I think that helps add some diversity.  But I do think the public 
safety component of it really does concern me.  I think -- like I said, I have -- I have 
some -- my neighbors are some patio style homes.  Now, we have good access, it's not 
a problem, but, you know, just this week my elderly neighbor, the fire department had to 
come and help her out, take care of her.  If those back three homes -- you know that 
common driveway is going to have people parking on it and so I actually think there is a 
really legitimate public safety concern for people who live in the back.  So, I would 
probably -- my thinking is that -- I actually share my council member's concern about the 
density here and I'm especially concerned about the public safety at the back.  It seems 
to be a bit of a challenge.  Otherwise, I -- you know, a lot of it like I really like, but I am 
concerned about that as well.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, any additional comments?   
 
Little Roberts:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Little Roberts.   
 
Little Roberts:  Elizabeth, thank you so much for requesting the continuance.  I hope 
that that will really give you and your team an opportunity to take in all that we have 
considered and I realize that you have stayed within the parameters, but I don't feel in 
this case it's the best fit after what we have seen, what's around it, especially five acres,  
that doesn't seem like it's going to change anytime soon.  It just seemed like this area, 
especially with the concern of parking and density and the hammerhead, just seems like 
it's not a good fit and I hope that you can come back with something that works for 
everyone, because I think that we would like to see that little sliver annexed in and have 
something as a whole that fits more into that community area.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  And, Council, I know you have been -- Councilman Cavener, you have 
been talking to the Clerk, you know, to share dates.   
 
Cavener:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  It's like you are reading my mind this evening.  So, 
Elizabeth, three dates for you to maybe look at.  Both the 23rd and 7th are our next two 
Council meetings.  Want to be upfront.  Those are somewhat already full agenda items, 
although, depending on where you come back this may be relatively quick, it may take a 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 33 of 36 

while, so I will leave that to you.  The other option is the 14th, which is currently wide 
open.   
 
Koeckeritz:  Of May.   
 
Cavener:  Of May.  Yes, ma'am.   
 
Koeckeritz:  So, I know I can't do the 23rd.  I have a hearing that night.  The 6th is -- we 
will take the May day.   
 
Cavener:  May 7th or May the 14th?  And, Mr. Mayor, I see -- I see Bill reaching for his 
mic.  I want to be sensitive to vacation requests of our staff as well.  As much as they 
love this, they also want to spend time with their friends and family.   
 
Parsons:  We love spending time with Mayor and Council.  It's always a pleasure.  But I 
do appreciate the discussion tonight, but I do want to close the loop on a few topics that 
were brought up this evening.  One was setting a precedent.  We are not -- we are not 
setting a precedent.   
 
Simison:  Bill, can we get the dates before we --  
 
Parsons:  I just want to just -- yes, please do that and, then, we will -- but the dates are 
fine for staff, too.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.    
 
Koeckeritz:  May 14th.   
 
Cavener:  May 14th.  Okay.  That's good to know.  And, Mr. Mayor, a couple of thoughts 
and I think staff's got some things to wrap up and so, Elizabeth, thanks for that request  
and -- and I want to thank the Binghams -- I know they are sitting back -- making an 
assumption.  I try not to make assumption.  Ms. Bingham sitting back there.  As I have 
kind of tried to look at this issue and our role is somewhat to be fair and I certainly can 
appreciate if a -- if a resident looks at our future land use map, sees low density and if 
you are someone who wants to invest in real estate and do development and you see 
R-8, this application -- you can come to the same conclusions looking at -- at this 
particular piece of dirt.  So, I don't fault the applicant for trying to do what they believe 
could be accomplished within the zoning.  I don't fault our neighbors for saying, hey, that 
-- that's too heavy handed here and I think that's ultimately our role as Council is to 
listen to both sides, look at the map, look at zoning, what's been entitled and make a 
decision about what is best for our community, because from everything I have read 
about Binghams they care about our community just as much as the neighbors that are 
going to live next to it and I think have that desire to get it right, not just for them, but for 
the people that are going to be living in these homes as well.  So, that's -- that's my two 
cents.  Mr. Mayor, I think staff did have a couple of clarifications they wanted to make 
before I will make a motion.   



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 34 of 36 

 
Simison:  Mr. Parsons.   
 
Parsons:  Thank you.  Appreciate that, Mayor and Members of the Council.  Just -- just 
clarify the record.  I mean the Council would not be setting a precedence here.  As we 
mentioned in our presentation to the Council, this was afforded R-8 based on a previous 
comp plan.  So, we have already established zoning is in place.  In the case of the 
adjacent county acreage, they are LDR or low density residential.  If they want to do 
something similar they have to go through a Comprehensive Plan map amendment.  
So, there is another level of review in order to get to that three to eight, because -- or 
those properties are going to develop at three or less and I imagine with them being 
fronted on Meridian Road I don't anticipate they are coming in with LDR.  Someone is 
going to probably do something different on that, given the transportation corridor.  
Councilman Overton, I appreciate those comments on the roadway.  I think staff and the 
Commission were tasked with when zoning is in place -- I think Councilman Cavener hit 
on it, too.  We are looking at does it comply with the zoning code.  With us already 
granting that zoning, the comp plan kind of loses some of the weight in the discussion 
and we have to focus on does this meet the code and that's what we have done and I 
believe that's -- and that is what the Commission has done.  So, I wanted to put that in 
context.  To Councilman Cavener's request, what if we denied the annexation.  I would 
strongly urge against that as well and the only reason is we should have annexed that 
right of way when it all came in in 2005 and we missed that opportunity.  The Binghams 
have purchase that property.  So, essentially, if we do not annex that in we are going to 
have a small enclave in the county that we may never get in the city and we don't want 
to create that and the Comprehensive Plan does not support that.  So, we have got to 
be -- we got to tread a little lightly when we make that decision, but you are absolutely 
right, if that was pulled and they could still meet the dimensional standards, we would 
still have to support the project.  So, I just at least wanted to let you contemplate that as 
we go through the continuation process with the applicant and I do appreciate the time.  
Thank you.   
 
Simison:  It may maybe just for one -- couple items, because -- so, on that -- when 
these are considered, can they be split out or is it one land use decision by Council in 
the future date?  The annexation versus the preliminary and final plat.   
 
Nary:  Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council, I mean it's one application, so it really -- at 
this juncture we couldn't split it out and if you -- if you were to deny the annexation -- I 
think the problem you have on this one is it doesn't fit.  The plat won't fit anymore.  I 
think what Ms. Koeckeritz has said is they would, then, redraw it without that in it and    
so --  
 
Simison:  I guess if Council chooses to deny in the future, we could come back with a 
friendly annexation and do a city-initiated annexation for that piece of property to -- we 
can't do that?   
 
Parsons:  Mayor, Members of the Council, the Binghams own that piece of property.  



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 35 of 36 

They went through ACHD and bought it and purchased it, so they -- clearly they own 
that sliver now.   
 
Simison:  Well, yeah, I mean -- but we could still go through and annex them for them 
outside of the application process.  It's less than five acres.  They could do a city-
initiated annexation to bring it in.  I'm just trying to get to the -- get the Council to the 
point moving forward.  Hopefully it doesn't come to a point where they don't have to 
decide to vote yes on something that they don't want to, because of annexing a small 
piece of property, which we have another mechanism to do if it's that important.  That's 
all I'm saying.  We can talk about that offline.  But my understanding of the law is we -- 
we could do that.  Maybe, Elizabeth, you did agree or disagree, but we don't need to 
worry about that now.  Just trying to set the framework, so -- so, with that do I have a 
motion?   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener into his microphone.   
 
Cavener:  Dean appreciates that.  Mr. Mayor, I move we continue Item 5, application H- 
2023-0056 to May the 14th.   
 
Overton:  Second.   
 
Simison:  Have a motion and a second to continue the public hearing to May 14.  Is 
there any discussion on the motion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed 
nay?  The ayes have it and the public hearing is continued until the 14th.  Thank you.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:   ALL AYES.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION per Idaho Code 74-206(1)(d): To consider records that are 
exempt from disclosure as provided in chapter 1, title 74, Idaho Code  
 
Simison:  Council, next up is Executive Session.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Move we go into Executive Session pursuant to Idaho State Code 74-
206(1)(d).   
 
Overton:  Second.   
 
Simison:  Have a motion and a second to go into Executive Session.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, Clerk will call the roll.   
Roll Call:  Cavener, yea; Strader, yea; Overton, yea; Little Roberts, yea; Taylor, yea. 



Meridian City Council  
April 9, 2024 
Page 36 of 36 

 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carries and we will go into Executive Session. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  ALL AYES. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  (8:00 p.m. to 8:34 p.m.) 
 
(Motion to come out of Executive Session: Cavener.  2nd by Little Roberts.) 
 
MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8:35 P.M.   
 
(AUDIO RECORDING ON FILE OF THESE PROCEEDINGS)  
 
__________________________________ ______/______/______   
MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON   DATE APPROVED 
 
ATTEST:  
 
_____________________________________  
CHRIS JOHNSON - CITY CLERK  



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Movado Village Subdivision Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement No. 1 
(ESMT-2024-0035)



Project Name or Subdivision Name: 

Movado Village Subdivision 

Sanitary Sewer & Water Main Easement Number: 
Identify this Easement by sequential number if the project contains more than one easement of 
this type. See instructions/checklist for additional information 

For Internal Use Only 
Record Number: 

--------

SANITARY SEWER AND WATER MAIN EASEMENT 

THIS Easement Agreement made this __ day of _______ 20 between 
=-=---:----=--=-=------,-------,:-:-=----:-:-:----- ("Grantor") and the City ofMeridian, an Idaho 
Municipal Corporation ("Grantee"); 

WHEREAS, the Grantor desires to provide a sanitary sewer and water main right-of- way 
across the premises and property hereinafter particularly bounded and described; and 

WHEREAS, the sanitary sewer and water is to be provided for through 
underground pipelines to be constructed by others; and 

WHEREAS, it will be necessary to maintain and service said pipelines from time to time by 
the Grantee; 

NOW, THEREFO RE, in consideration of the benefits to be received by the Grantor, and 
other good and valuable consideration, the Grantor does hereby give, grant and convey unto 
the Grantee the right-of-way for an easement for the operation and maintenance of 
sanitary sewer and water mains over and across the following described property: 

(SEE A TT ACHED EXHIBITS A and B) 

The easement hereby granted is for the purpose of construction and operation of sanitary 
sewer and water mains and their allied facilities, together with their maintenance, repair and 
replacement at the convenience of the Grantee, with the free right of access to such facilities at 
any and all times. 

TO H A  VE AND TO HOLD, the said easement and right-of-way unto the said Grantee, 
its successors and assigns forever. 

IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOO D AND AGREED, by and between the parties hereto, that 
after making repairs or performing other maintenance, Grantee shall restore the area of the 
easement and adjacent property to that existent prior to undertaking such repairs and 
maintenance. However, Grantee shall not be responsible for repairing, replacing or restoring 
anything placed within the area described in this easement that was placed there in violation of this 
easement. 

_,anitary Sewer and Water Main Easement Page I Version O 1/01/2024 

ESMT-2024-0035

23rd April 24

gdavis
Text Box
Meridian Movado Village Investors, LP / C4 Investments LLC



THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees that Grantor shall not place or allow to be 
placed any permanent structures or obstructions within the easement area that would 
interfere with Grantee's use of said easement, including, but not limited to, buildings, trash 
enclosures, carports, sheds, fences, trees, or deep-rooted shrubs. 

THE GRANTOR covenants and agrees with the Grantee that should any part of the right-of
way and easement hereby granted shall become part of, or lie within the boundaries of any 
public street, then, to such extent, such right-of-way and easement hereby granted which 
lies within such boundary thereof or which is a part thereof, shall cease and become 
null and void and of no further effect and shall be completely relinquished. 

THE GRANTOR does hereby covenant with the Grantee that Grantor is lawfully seized 
and possessed of the aforementioned and described tract of land, and that Grantor has a 
good and lawful right to convey said easement, and that Grantor will warrant and forever 
defend the title and quiet possession thereof against the lawful claims of all persons 
whomsoever. 

THE COVENANTS OF GRANTOR made herein shall be binding upon Grantor's 
successors, assigns, heirs, personal representatives, purchasers, or transferees of any kind. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said parties of the first part have hereunto subscribed their 
signatures the day and year first herein above written. 

GRANTOR: Meridian Movado Village Investors, LP

by Ferguson & Brewer Investment Company, its GP

STA TE OF IDAHO ) 
) ss 

County of Ada ) 

, as president of the GP

This record was acknowledged before me on ------- (date) by
_________ (name of individual), [complete t o lowing ifsigning in a
representative capacity, or strike the following ifsi ·n in an individual capacity} on 

executed), in the following representative a �.it .'> (type of 
behalf of __________ (name

� 
1 on behalf of whom record was 

authority such as office·r· or t(1.1stee) X\ 'f\ · 1°\ \
Notary Stamp lkluw C , / � \ \

Notary Signature 
My Commission Expires: _____ _ 

Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement Page 2 Version 01/01/2024 



CALIFORNIA ACKNOWLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE§ 1189 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the Individual who signed the document 
to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of tllat document. 

Name(s) of Slgner(s) 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) ls/are subscribed 
to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same In his/her/their 
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument tl1e person(s), or the entity 
upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

Place Notwy Seal and/or Stamp Above 

I certify under PENAL TY OF PERJURY under the 
laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature of Notary Public 

OPTIONAL 

Completing this information can deter alteration of the document or 
fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document. 

Description of Attached Document 

Title or Type of Document: __________________________ _ 

Document Date: ____________________ Number of Pages: ___ _ 

Signer(s) Other Than Named Above: _______________________ _ 

Capacity(les) Claimed by Signer(s) 

Signer's Name: ___________ _ 
□ Corporate Officer - Title(s): ______ _
□ Partner - D Limited D General
D Individual 
o Trustee 
D Other:

□ Attorney in Fact
o Guardian or Conservator

Signer is Representing: ________ _

Signer's Name: 
□ Corporate Officer - Title(s): ______ _
o Partner - o Limited o General
□ Individual o Attorney in Fact
o Trustee □ Guardian or Conservator
D Other:
Signer is Representing: ________ _

,g{fw3}g��;8;;��l:l,�:l/.ll&'fil!l'JBl@@oo:m.�,sg.'ij.g�l�IJ��EeflI8$&'}l8?8!t{Jmi�,g;,t;fm"�!l·�<mm1®ll! 

©2019 National Notary Association 



GRANTOR: C4 Investments LLC 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 

) ss 

County of Ada ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on �NJ <g� Q�c../ (date) by

Jim Conger (name of individual), [complete the following if signing in a 

Representative capacity, or strike the following if signing in an individual capacity] on 
behalf of C4 Investments LLC (name of entity on behalf of whom record was 

Executed), in the following representative capacity: __ m_e _m_b_e _r ______ _
(type of 

Authority such as officer of trustee) 

Notary Stamp Below 

Notary Signature 

My Commission Expires: 8'-3-d�Y' 



GRANTEE: CITY OF MERIDIAN 

RobertE. Simison, Mayor 

Attest by Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

STATE OF IDAHO, ) 
ss. 

County of Ada ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on ______ (date) by Robert E. Simison 
and Chris Johnson on behalf of the City of Meridian, in their capacities as M ayor and City 
Clerk, respectively. 

Notary Stamp Bclmv 

Notary Signature 
My Commission Expires: ______ _ 

Sanitary Sewer and Water Main Easement Page3 Version 01/01/2024 

4-23-2024

4-23-2024

4-23-2024



Sawtooth Land Surveying, LLC 

p, (208) 398-8104 f: (208) 398-81 05 
2030 S. Washington Ave., Emmett, ID 83G 17 

BASIS OF BEARING is South 89°13'35" East, between brass cap marking the N1/4 corner of Section 
21 and an aluminum cap marking the northeast corner of Section 21, Township 3 North, Range 1 East, 
B.M., City of Meridian, Ada County, Idaho.

An easement located in the NW1/4 of the NE1/4 of Section 21, Township 3 North, Range 1 East, B.M., 
City of Meridian, Ada County, Idaho, more particularly as follows: 

COMMENCING at the N1/4 corner of said Section 21; 

Thence South 89°13'35" East, coincident with the north line of said NW1/4 of the NE1/4, a distance of 
703.00 feet; 

Thence South 00°11 '04" West, 56.00 feet to the southerly right of way of E. Overland Road, marked by 
a 5/8" rebar/cap PLS 11574; 

Thence continuing South 00°11 '04" West, coincident with the east boundary of Movado Apartments 
Subdivision, as shown in Book 119 of Plats, at Page 18449-18452, Ada County Records, 141.35 feet to 
the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

Thence South 89°50'39" East, 19.80 feet; 

Thence South 00°46'25" West, 16.28 feet; 

Thence South 89°13'35" East, parallel with said north line, 310.56 feet; 

Thence North 71 °29'32" East, 41.13 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left; 

Thence 38.03 feet along the arc of said curve, having a radius of 321.00 feet, with a central angle of 
6°47'14", subtended by a chord bearing South 17°49'18" East, 38.00 feet; 

Thence South 71 °29'32" West, 28.96 feet; 

Thence North 89°13'35" West, parallel with said north line, 353.47 feet to said east boundary; 

Thence North 00°11 '04" East, coincident with said east boundary, 48.07 feet to the POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

The above described easement contains 0.29 acres, more or less. 

P:12021 I I EMT\ 121341-MOV ADO MUL TJ-F AMIL Y PH 2\Survey\Drawings\Descriptions\30 City Meridian Utility Ease 
Rcvised.docx 



NX/4�SB:..21 BJ.SIS OF SEA..�INGS 
SEC_,,. 

--'y�� \./ \ __ ;ui_OO'--��f· 
s89"ms:�er ······�- �;i�"ERLA..,W ROAD --··•-··---·--·-··--- EJ/16� A CF¥11'#1JJ51$5l09 l6 . l5 

·4>----~�---v' l»BM--------;:�-;
�;g 
�;� 

----------'!'· 7... -,, ,- _r---------

,. 
" • � 
� i 

1LTTI 

I !

i 1 

--==-!�-
,@

�. 
I N 89°13'35" W 353 47 S 11.¥� <P ' • 

2� \ • ......: \. ,,. -' " 'o \ \ % \.

I @'n'rASCE I \ \ o ™;MCu:r1AAt$.IS,Qe;,AAwil(a,.c;wBEJJiiiiG,pcmi.e/tmi 4 \_ c: , J& ...:i1.w, �n-r- ,sJJ"IWfr-eJ .38..llO" 
\ \ 'Y,..t. \ ' 
"'"' 

\ ' 
\ \ 

\ 
\ \ 

\ \ 
\ 

\ 

\ I 
\ \ 

\ 

) ) 
i r 

L _ _ _ _ _  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  L..J 

\ \
I 

� 1/IS/:2.4� 

�". 
✓/i>;;,p BE t. <:; \, � 

1JNJ'U'ITED 

� 
� 
• 

j 
� 

_§ 
j CJ 

; rn 

> 

MOVADO CRKENS SUBDMSJ:ON NO. 1 

BK 114, PG 17017 ) E1/',alR..SS:.2l •• 
NTS 

T. 3 N., R 1 E., B.M.

PROJECT: 

32-FOOT CITY OF MERIDIAN UTILITY 
EASEMENT 

NW1/4 OF THE NEl/4 
SECTION21 

CITY OF MERIDIAN, 
ADA COUNTY, IDAHO 

OWNER/DEVa.t)PER: 

BRECKDN LAND DESIGN A
2030 S. WASHINGTON AVE. 

EMMETT, ID 83617 
P: (208) 398-8104 

::;;Mroort1 
F: (208) 398-8105 

f-c. DA�TE�: -1-/2-02_4___ Lar,I ::5urvcyir4, LLC WWW.SIIWTOOmLS.COM 

DWG# 
121341-EX 
PROJECT# 

121341 
SHEET 

1 OFl 



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Final Plat for Foxcroft Subdivision No. 3 (FP-2023-0032), by Kent Brown 
Planning Services, located at 3720 W. Pine Ave. (Phase 3)



 
 

 Page 1  
  

HEARING 
DATE: 

4/23/2024 

 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Stacy Hersh, Associate Planner 
208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: Foxcroft No. 3 FP 
FP-2023-0032 

LOCATION: Phase 3 is located at 3720 W. Pine 
Avenue, in the SE 1/4 of the NE 1/4 of 
Section 10, Township 3N, Range 1W. 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Final Plat consisting of 30 residential building lots and 12 common lots on approximately 8.072 acres 
of land in the R-8 zoning district, by Kent Brown Planning. 

II. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Owner: 

Corey Barton, Viper Investments – 1977 E. Overland Road, Meridian, ID 83642 

B. Applicant Representative: 

Kent Brown, Kent Brown Planning – 3161 E. Springwood Drive, Meridian, ID 83642 

III. STAFF ANALYSIS 

Staff has reviewed the proposed final plat for substantial compliance with the approved preliminary 
plat (H-2020-0113) and associated conditions of approval as required by UDC 11-6B-3C.2. There are 
two (2) more building lots depicted on the proposed final plat compared to the number indicated on 
the approved preliminary plat (32).  However, the proposed final plat for Phase 2 depicted eight (8) 
fewer buildable lots compared to the number indicated on the approved preliminary plat. 
Additionally, there was one (1) less lot in Phase 1 than originally planned.  The submitted final plat 
depicts the required street buffers and pathways as required by the Development Agreement (Inst. # 
2021-126693) and the same amount of common open space as previously approved. 

Staff finds the proposed final plat is in substantial compliance with the approved preliminary plat as 
required. 

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 



 

 Page 2  
  

IV. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed final plat with the conditions of approval in Section 
VI of this report. 

 

V. EXHIBITS  

A. Preliminary Plat (dated: February 2021) 

  



 

 Page 3  
  

B. Final Plat  

 

 

  



 

 Page 4  
  

C. Landscape Plans (Revision date: 2/12/2024) 

 

 



 

 Page 5  
  

D. Common Driveway Exhibits  

 



 

 Page 6  
  

  



 

 Page 7  
  

VI. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. Planning Division 

Site Specific Conditions: 

1. Applicant shall comply with all previous conditions of approval associated with this 
development: H-2020-0113 (DA Inst. #2021-126693); A-2022-0088 (Foxcroft No. 1 Pathway 
ALT); FP-2021-0049; A-2022-0184 (CZC and DES); A-2022-0224 (Foxcroft No. 2 pathway 
ALT); ; FP-2023-0031; ESMT-2024-0043 (Pedestrian Pathway Easement). 

2. The applicant shall obtain the City Engineer’s signature on the subject final plat within two 
years of the City Engineer’s signature on the previous phase final plat (i.e. by February 13, 
2026); or apply for a time extension, in accordance with UDC 11-6B-7. 

3. Prior to submittal for the City Engineer’s signature, have the Certificate of Owners and the 
accompanying acknowledgement signed and notarized. 

4. The final plat shown in Section V.B, prepared by Bailey Engineering, by Cody M. 
McCammon, is approved with the following conditions to be completed at the time of Final 
Plat Signature: 

a. Plat Note #11, add a reference regarding the maintenance of the common drives. 

b. Plat Note #12, include recorded instrument number. 

c. Plat Notes #14, include recorded instrument number. 

d. Add Note #15, include the recorded instrument number of the existing City of Meridian 
Development Agreement. 

e. Add Note #16, include the recorded pathway easement number (ESMT-2024-0043) on 
the plat. 

5. The submitted landscape plans, as shown in Section V.C, prepared by Bailey Engineering, 
with a revision date of 2/12/2024, is approved as submitted shall be revised prior to submittal 
of the final plat for City Engineer signature, as follows: 

a. Stormwater swales incorporated into required areas shall be vegetated with grass or other   
appropriate plant materials.  Such swales shall also be signed to accommodate the 
required number of trees as per Section 11-3B-7 if located in a street buffer or other 
required landscape area in accordance with UDC 11-3B-11. 

 b. The Ten Mile Drain shall be protected during construction of the subdivision in  
  accordance with UDC 11-3A-6. 

 c. Provide a detail of the covered shelter on the landscape plans submitted with the final plat  
for signature.  

6. Staff’s failure to cite specific ordinance provisions or conditions from the preliminary plat  
and/or development agreement does not relieve the Applicant of responsibility for 
compliance. 

B. PUBLIC WORKS 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=341644&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=341644&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=341644&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


 

 Page 8  
  

C. IDAHO DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (DEQ) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=343053&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity 

D. IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT (ITD) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=341787&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=343053&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=343053&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=341787&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=341787&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Final Plat for Hadler Subdivision No. 1 (FP-2024-0002) by Ben Thomas, Civil 
Innovations, PLLC., located at 7200 S. Locust Grove Rd.



 
 

 
Page 1 

 
  

HEARING 

DATE: 
4/23/2024 

 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Linda Ritter, Associate Planner 

208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: FP-2024-0002 

Hadler Subdivision No. 1 - FP 

LOCATION: Located at 7200 S. Locust Grove Road, 

approximately 1/2 mile south of the 

Locust Grove and Lake Hazel 

intersection on the east side of Locust 

Grove, in the N 1/2 of the SW 1/4 of 

Section 5, Township 2N, Range 1E. 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Final Plat consisting of 51 building lots and 5 common lots (1 common driveway and 4 landscape) on 

9.74 acres of land in the R-15 zoning district for Hadler Subdivision No. 1.  

II. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant: 

Ben Thomas, Civil Innovations, PLLC – 1043 E. Park Blvd, Ste. 100, Boise, ID 83712 

B. Property Owner: 

Laren Bailey, Conger Group – 4824 W. Fairview Avenue, Boise, ID 83706 

C. Representative: 

Same as Applicant 

III. STAFF ANALYSIS 

Staff has reviewed the proposed final plat for substantial compliance with the approved preliminary 

plat (H-2022-0064) as required by UDC 11-6B-3C.2. The submitted final plat is for the first phase of 

construction for the approved with the preliminary plat; therefore, the proposed plat is in substantial 

compliance with the approved preliminary plat as required.  

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

IV. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed final plat with the conditions of approval in Section 

VI of this staff report.  

V. EXHIBITS 

A. Preliminary Plat (dated 11/01/2022) 

  



 

 
Page 3 

 
  

B. Final Plat (dated: 3/13/2024) 

 

 



 

 
Page 4 

 
  

 

 



 

 
Page 5 

 
  

  



 

 
Page 6 

 
  

C. Landscape Plans (date: 3/13/2024) 

 

  



 

 
Page 7 

 
  

 

 

  



 

 
Page 8 

 
  

D. Open Space Exhibit (1/30/2024) 

  



 

 
Page 9 

 
  

E. Common Drive Exhibit (dated 3/12/2024) 

  



 

 
Page 10 

 
  

F. Conceptual Building Elevations (8/3/2022) 



 

 
Page 11 

 
  

VI. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. PLANNING DIVISION 

1. Applicant shall comply with all previous conditions of approval associated with this 

development: H-2022-0064 (AZ, PP) and DA Inst. #2023-023846. 

2. The final plat shown in Section V.B, prepared by Idaho Survey Group, LLC, stamped on 

1/3024 by Michael S. Byrns, shall be revised prior to signature on the final plat by the City 

Engineer, as follows: 

a. Note #10: Include the recorded instrument number of the City of Meridian water 

easement. 

b. Note #11: Include the recorded instrument number of the City of Meridian sewer and 

water easement. 

c. Note #12: Include the instrument number for the ACHD permanent easement.  

d. Note #13: Include the instrument number for the temporary blanket ACHD access 

easement. 

e. Note #14: Include the instrument number for the ACHD license agreement.  

f. Consistent with ACHD conditions of approval, provide traffic calming measures along E. 

Hadler Drive to help mitigate its long and straight design. 

3. The landscape plan prepared by Jensenbelts Associates, dated March 13, 2024, is approved as 

submitted. 

4. All common driveways shall meet the requirements of 11-6C-2-D including a perpetual 

ingress/egress easement being filed with the Ada County Recorder, which shall include a 

requirement for maintenance of a paved surface capable of supporting fire vehicles and 

equipment. 

5. Future development shall be consistent with the minimum dimensional standards listed in 

UDC Table 11-2A-7 for the R-15 zoning district.  

6. All fencing shall be installed in accordance with UDC 11-3A-7.  

7. Off-street parking is required to be provided in accord with the standards listed in UDC Table 

11-3C-6 for single-family dwellings based on the number of bedrooms per unit.  

8. The Applicant shall comply with all ACHD conditions of approval. 

9. The Applicant shall ensure the irrigation ditch along the north boundary is tiled and/or 

relocated consistent with UDC 11-3A-6 standards. 

10. Provide a pressurized irrigation system consistent with the standards as set forth in UDC 11-

3A-15, UDC 11-3B-6 and MCC 9-1-28. 

11. Prior to the City Engineer’s signature on each final plat, a 14-foot wide public pedestrian 

easement shall be submitted to the Planning Division and recorded for the multi-use pathways 

along S. Locust Grove and E. Via Roberto as required by the Park’s Department, unless 

ACHD requires an easement within their right-of-way. 

12. Prior to applying for building permits, Administrative Design Review is required to be 

submitted and approved by the Planning Division for the proposed single-family attached 

units. 



 

 
Page 12 

 
  

13. Upon completion of the landscape installation, a written Certificate of Completion shall 
be submitted to the Planning Division verifying all landscape improvements are in 
substantial compliance with the approved landscape plan as set forth in UDC 11-3B-14. 
 

B. PUBLIC WORKS 

 https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=341618&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity 

C. DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (DEQ) 

 https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=343052&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity 

D. IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT (ITD) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=278590&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity 

E. BOISE PROJECT BOARD OF CONTROL 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=343659&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCi

ty 

 

 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=341618&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=341618&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=343052&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=343052&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=342029&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=342029&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=343659&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=343659&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Keep West Subdivision No. 2 (H-
2023-0047) by Jarron Langston, located at 2625 E. Lake Hazel Rd. and 6519 S. Raap Ranch Ln.



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (KEEP WEST SUBDIVISION – FILE #H-2023-0047) 
 - 1 - 

          CITY OF MERIDIAN 
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW  

AND DECISION & ORDER 

 

In the Matter of the Request for annexation, zoning and preliminary plat approval, by Jarron 
Langston. 

Case No(s). H-2023-0047 

For the City Council Hearing Date of: April 9, 2024 (Findings on April 23, 2024) 
 
A. Findings of Fact 
 

1. Hearing Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of April 9, 2024, incorporated by 
reference) 

 
2.   Process Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of April 9, 2024, incorporated by 

reference) 
 
3.  Application and Property Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of April 9, 2024, 

incorporated by reference) 
 
4.  Required Findings per the Unified Development Code (see attached Staff Report for the hearing 

date of April 9, 2024, incorporated by reference) 
 

B.  Conclusions of Law 
 

1. The City of Meridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use 
Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503). 

 
2. The Meridian City Council takes judicial notice of its Unified Development Code codified as 

Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of Meridian has, by 
ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Comprehensive Plan of the City of Meridian, 
which was adopted December 17, 2019, Resolution No. 19-2179 and Maps. 

 
3. The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code § 11-5A. 
 
4. Due consideration has been given to the comment(s) received from the governmental 

subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction. 
 
5. It is found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose 

expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed. 
 
6. That the City has granted an order of approval in  accordance with this Decision, which shall be 

signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk upon the applicant, the 
Community Development Department, the Public Works Department and any affected party 
requesting notice.  

 
7. That this approval is subject to the Conditions of Approval all in the attached Staff Report for the 

hearing date of April 9, 2024, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to be 



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (KEEP WEST SUBDIVISION – FILE #H-2023-0047) 
 - 2 - 

reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the 
application. 

 
C.  Decision and Order   

 
Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11-5A and based upon 
the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby ordered that:  

 
1. The applicant’s request for annexation, zoning and preliminary plat approval is hereby 

approved per the conditions of approval in the Staff Report for the hearing date of April 9, 
2024, attached as Exhibit A. 

 
D.  Notice of Applicable Time Limits  
 

Notice of Preliminary Plat Duration 
 

Please take notice that approval of a preliminary plat, combined preliminary and final plat, or 
short plat shall become null and void if the applicant fails to obtain the city engineer’s signature 
on the final plat within two (2) years of the approval of the preliminary plat or the combined 
preliminary and final plat or short plat (UDC 11-6B-7A). 
 
In the event that the development of the preliminary plat is made in successive phases in an 
orderly and reasonable manner, and conforms substantially to the approved preliminary plat, 
such segments, if submitted within successive intervals of two (2) years, may be considered for 
final approval without resubmission for preliminary plat approval (UDC 11-6B-7B).  
 
Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord 
with 11-6B-7.A, the Director may authorize a single extension of time to obtain the City 
Engineer’s signature on the final plat not to exceed two (2) years. Additional time extensions up 
to two (2) years as determined and approved by the City Council may be granted. With all 
extensions, the Director or City Council may require the preliminary plat, combined 
preliminary and final plat or short plat to comply with the current provisions of Meridian City 
Code Title 11. If the above timetable is not met and the applicant does not receive a time 
extension, the property shall be required to go through the platting procedure again (UDC 11-
6B-7C).  

Notice of Conditional Use Permit Duration  

Please take notice that the conditional use permit, when granted, shall be valid for a maximum 
period of two (2) years unless otherwise approved by the City. During this time, the applicant 
shall commence the use as permitted in accord with the conditions of approval, satisfy the 
requirements set forth in the conditions of approval, and acquire building permits and 
commence construction of permanent footings or structures on or in the ground.  For 
conditional use permits that also require platting, the final plat must be signed by the City 
Engineer within this two (2) year period.  

Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord 
with 11-5B-6.G.1, the Director may authorize a single extension of the time to commence the 
use not to exceed one (1) two (2) year period. Additional time extensions up to two (2) years as 
determined and approved by the City Council may be granted. With all extensions, the Director 
or City Council may require the conditional use comply with the current provisions of Meridian 



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (KEEP WEST SUBDIVISION – FILE #H-2023-0047) 
 - 3 - 

City Code Title 11(UDC 11-5B-6F). 

Notice of Development Agreement Duration 

The city and/or an applicant may request a development agreement or a modification to a 
development agreement consistent with Idaho Code section 67-6511A. The development 
agreement may be initiated by the city or applicant as part of a request for annexation and/or 
rezone at any time prior to the adoption of findings for such request. 

A development agreement may be modified by the city or an affected party of the development 
agreement. Decision on the development agreement modification is made by the city council in 
accord with this chapter. When approved, said development agreement shall be signed by the 
property owner(s) and returned to the city within six (6) months of the city council granting the 
modification. 

A modification to the development agreement may be initiated prior to signature of the 
agreement by all parties and/or may be requested to extend the time allowed for the agreement 
to be signed and returned to the city if filed prior to the end of the six (6) month approval 
period.  

E.  Judicial Review 

 Pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6521(1)(d), if this final decision concerns a matter enumerated in Idaho 
Code § 67-6521(1)(a), an affected person aggrieved by this final  decision may, within twenty-eight 
(28) days after all remedies  have been exhausted, including requesting reconsideration of this final 
decision as provided by Meridian City Code § 1-7-10, seek judicial review of this final decision as 
provided by chapter 52, title 67, Idaho Code. This notice is provided as a courtesy;  the City of 
Meridian does not admit by this notice that this decision is subject to judicial review under LLUPA.  

F.  Notice of Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis 

 Pursuant to Idaho Code §§ 67-6521(1)(d) and 67-8003, an owner of private property that is the 
subject of a final decision may submit a written request with the Meridian City Clerk for a regulatory 
takings analysis. 

G. Attached:  Staff Report for the hearing date of April 9, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER 
FOR (KEEP WEST SUBDIVISION – FILE #H-2023-0047) 
 - 4 - 

By action of the City Council at its regular meeting held on the ___________ day of ________________, 
2024. 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT LUKE CAVENER   VOTED_______ 

COUNCIL VICE PRESIDENT LIZ STRADER   VOTED_______   

COUNCIL MEMBER DOUG TAYLOR     VOTED_______ 

 COUNCIL MEMBER JOHN OVERTON    VOTED_______ 

COUNCIL MEMBER ANNE LITTLE ROBERTS   VOTED_______ 

MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON     VOTED_______ 
(TIE BREAKER) 

 
 

            
     Mayor Robert E. Simison 

   

 Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Chris Johnson 
City Clerk 

 

Copy served upon Applicant, Community Development Department, Public Works Department and City 
Attorney. 
 
 

By: __________________________________   Dated: ________________________ 
     City Clerk’s Office 
 
 



 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 
 

 
Page 1 

 
  

HEARING 

DATE: 

April 9, 2024 

 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Linda Ritter, Associate Planner 

208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: Keep West Subdivision – AZ, PP 

H-2023-0047 

LOCATION: 2625 E. Lake Hazel Rd. and 6519 S. 

Raap Ranch Ln., in the NE 1/4 of Section 

5, T.2N., R.1E. (Parcel # R7317670010 

and R7317670020) 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Annexation and zoning of 16.25 acres of land from RUT to R-2 (low "density residential") zoning 

district and a Preliminary Plat consisting of 212 buildable lots, one existing home and 8 common lots 

on 15.76 acres of land in the R-2 zoning district for Keep West Subdivision. 

II. SUMMARY OF REPORT 

A. Project Summary 

LAKE HAZEL

E
A

G
L

E

COLUMBIA

[Legend

Project Location

STAFF REPORT 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Description Details 

Acreage Annexation 16.25 acres / Preliminary Plat 15.76 

Future Land Use Designation Medium Density Residential (MDR) and Low Density Residental (LDR) 

Existing Land Use Rural Urban Transition (RUT) 

Proposed Land Use(s) Single-family detached dwellings  

Current Zoning Rural Urban Transition (RUT) in Ada County  

Proposed Zoning R-2 (Low Density Residential) 

Lots (# and type; bldg/common) 223 building (1 existing)/ 3 common/2 irrigation easement lots 

Phasing plan (# of phases) 1 

Number of Residential Units (type 

of units) 

223 single-family detached units, including one existing home 

Density (gross & net) 1.3946 units/acre (gross) 

Open Space (acres, total [%] / 

buffer / qualified) 

1.2630-acre (or 8%) consisting of street buffer and open space area. 

Amenities NA 

Physical Features (waterways, 

hazards, flood plain, hillside) 

The Farr and Grimmet Laterals run along the west & east boundaries of the 

site. 



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

 

B. Community Metrics 

Access (Arterial/Collectors/State 

Hwy/Local)(Existing and 

Proposed) 

Two (2) accesses exist via E. Wickham Street and S. Netherfield Way, local 

streets. The existing acees from E. Lake Hazel Road will be residential access 

will become an access for emergency vehicles only. No direct access is 

proposed via E. Lake Hazel Road. 

Proposed Road Improvements  

Fire Service This project currently falls in an area where we don’t have total response 

times for an effective firefighting force to meet NFPA 1710 standards or 

current City of Meridian adopted standards.  The first due station is Fire 

Station 7. This fire station is approximately 1.0 mile from the project which is 

good for the first due engine. See attached comments 

(https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330404&dbid=

0&repo=MeridianCity)  

Police Service No comments received  

 
West Ada School District No comments received 

Wastewater  
• Distance to Sewer Services Directly adjacent 

• Sewer Shed  

• Estimated Project Sewer ERU’s  See application 

• WRRF Declining Balance  

• Project Consistent with WW 

Master Plan/Facility Plan 

 Yes 

• Impacts/Concerns  Flow is committed 

  

Neighborhood meeting date  1/4/23  

History (previous approvals) Raap Ranch Subdivision recorded in 2013 

Description Details 

Ada County Highway District  

 • Staff report (yes/no) Yes  

 • Requires ACHD Commission 

Action (yes/no) 

No 

 • TIS (yes/no) No (not required) 

 

 • Level of Service (LOS) Better than “D” at PM peak hours,which is an acceptable LOS for a 5-lane 

principal arterial (Lake Hazel Road). 

 • Existing Conditions  There are three existing driveways serving the existing homes via E. Lake 

Hazel Road. 

 • CIP/IFYWP Capital Improvements Plan (CIP)/ Integrated Five Year Work Plan (IFYWP): 

• Lake Hazel Road is scheduled in the IFYWP to be widened to 5-lanes 

from Cloverdale Road to Eagle Road and is under construction with a 

completion date later in 2023. 

• The intersection of Lake Hazel Road and Eagle Road is scheduled in 

the IFYWP to be widened to 6-lanes on the north leg, 5-lanes on the 

south, 7-lanes east, and 6-lanes on the west leg, and signalized in 2024. 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330404&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330404&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


 

 
Page 3 

 
  

Water  

• Distance to Services Water is available at site 

• Pressure Zone   

• Estimated Project Water ERU’s See application 

• Water Quality Concerns None 

• Project Consistent with Water 

Master Plan 

Yes 

C. Project Maps 

  

Future Land Use Map 

 

Aerial Map 

 

  

Zoning Map 

 

Planned Development Map 

 

MU-C

Civic

Low Density

Residential

Medium Density

Residential

LAKE HAZEL

COLUMBIA

E
A

G
L

E

[Legend

Project Location

LAKE HAZEL

COLUMBIA

E
A

G
L

E

[Legend

Project Location

LAKE HAZEL

E
A

G
L

E

COLUMBIA

R-2

RUT

R1

RUT

R-15

R-2

R-15

M1

R-8

R-15
R-4

R-15

R-4

R-15

R-8
R-8

R1

R-8

RR RR

C-C
R-40

RUT

R-8

RUT

R-8

R-8
R-4 R-8

[Legend

Project Location

LAKE HAZEL

COLUMBIA

E
A

G
L

E

[Legend

Project Location

City Limits

Planned Parcels



 

 
Page 4 

 
  

III. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant: 

Jarron Langston – 9563 W. Harness Drive, Boise, ID 83709 

B. Owners: 

Brian D. and Mary L. Affleck – 6519 S Raap Ranch Lane, Meridian, ID 83642 

 

C. Representative: 

Ted Burke, EDM Partners – 2815 E 3300 S, Salt Lake City, UT, 84109 

IV. NOTICING 

 Planning & Zoning 

Posting Date 

City Council 

Posting Date 

Newspaper notification 

published in newspaper 2/20/2024 3/25/2024 

Radius notification mailed to 

property owners within 500 feet 2/16/2024 3/22/2024 

Public hearing notice sign posted 

on site 2/24/2024  3/27/2024  

Nextdoor posting 2/26/2024 3/25/2024 

V. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ANALYSIS 

LAND USE: This property is designated as Low Density Residential (LDR), which allows for 

dwelling units at gross densities of  3 dwelling units per acre; and Medium Density Residential 

(MDR), which allows for dwelling units at gross densities of  3 to 8 dwelling units per acre on the 

Future Land Use Map (FLUM) contained in the Comprehensive Plan. 

The Comprehensive Plan allows an adjacent, abutting designation, when appropriate and approved as 

part of a public hearing with a development application, to be  used.  Over half of the property has a 

future land use designation of low density residential, the applicant has proposed to continue that use 

for the entire development as allowed in the Comprehnsive Plan. 

The Applicant proposes a 22 23-lot subdivision for single-family residential detached homes at a 

gross density of 1.3946 units per acre, which meets the comprehensive plans desire of larger lots in 

the LDR designation. The property is surrounded by single-family residential homes zoned R-2 and 

R-4 (Low Density Residential), R-8 (Medium Low-Density Residential), and R-15 (Medium-High 

Density Residential) indicating a mix of low and medium density residential zones.   

Staff has considered multiple factors, including the surrounding mix of low and medium density 

residential zones, the presence of irrigation ditches on the east and west sides of the property, and the 

proposed gross density of 1.3946 units per acre. In light of these considerations, staff is supportive of 

the applicant's request to zone the property as Low Density Residential (LDR) for the proposed 2223-

lot subdivision.  

TRANSPORTATION: The Master Street Map (MSM) does not depict any collector streets across this 

property. Lake Hazel Road is scheduled in ACHD’s Integrated Five Year Work Plan (IFYWP) to be 

widened to 5-lanes from Cloverdale Road to Eagle Road and is under construction with a completion 

date later in 2023.  The intersection of Lake Hazel Road and Eagle Road is scheduled in the IFYWP 

https://meridiancity.org/planning/files/compplan/191217%20Meridian%20Comprehensive%20Plan.pdf


 

 
Page 5 

 
  

to be widened to 6-lanes on the north leg, 5-lanes on the south, 7-lanes east, and 6-lanes on the west 

leg, and signalized in 2024.  Lake Hazel Rd. is currently improved with 2 travel lanes (one in each 

direction) and has no curb, gutter or sidewalk. 

ACHD’s Roadways to Bikeways Master Plan (BMP) identifies Lake Hazel Road as Level 3 facilities 

that will be constructed as part of the aforementioned Lake Hazel Road IFYWP ACHD project. 

Goals, Objectives, & Action Items: Staff finds the following Comprehensive Plan policies to be 

applicable to this application and apply to the proposed use of this property (staff analysis in italics): 

• “Encourage a variety of housing types that meet the needs, preferences, and financial 

capabilities of Meridian’s present and future residents.” (2.01.02D) 

 The proposed single-family detached dwellings offers a mix of home and lot sizes that should 

contribute to the variety of housing options in this area and within the City as desired.  

• “Permit new development only where it can be adequately served by critical public facilities 

and urban services at the time of final approval, and in accord with any adopted levels of 

service for public facilities and services.” (3.03.03F) 

 City water and sewer service is available and can be extended by the developer with 

development in accord with UDC 11-3A-21.   

• “Require all new development to create a site design compatible with surrounding uses 

through buffering, screening, transitional densities, and other best site design practices.” 

(3.07.01A) 

The proposed site design with larger lot sizes abutting similar size lots to the east in the Keep 

Subdivision and smaller size lots to the west in the Vertex Subdivision No. 1 and 2 will 

provide a good transition in density and lot sizes to abutting parcels.  

Although the FLUM designation for the proposed preliminary plat is MDR and LDR, the 

applicant has chosen to move forward with LDR as it is located between two irrigation 

ditches (Farr and Grimmet laterals) and will be similar to the existing Keep Subdivison to the 

east.   

• “Encourage compatible uses and site design to minimize conflicts and maximize use of land.” 

(3.07.00) 

The proposed and existing adjacent uses are all single-family detached residential homes, 

which should be generally compatible with each other, thereby reducing conflicts and 

maximizing use of land.  

• “Support infill development that does not negatively impact the abutting, existing 

development. Infill projects in downtown should develop at higher densities, irrespective of 

existing development.” (2.02.02C) 

Development of the subject infill property will not negatively impact abutting existing 

development due to the similar lots sizes and density proposed. The property is separated 

from the adjacent developments by irrigation ditches on the east and west side of the 

property. The density is similar to the existing Keep Subdivision to the east. 

• “Ensure development is connected to City of Meridian water and sanitary sewer systems and 

the extension to and through said developments are constructed in conformance with the City 

of Meridian Water and Sewer System Master Plans in effect at the time of development.” 

(3.03.03A) 

 The proposed development, including the existing home, will connect to City water and sewer 



 

 
Page 6 

 
  

systems with development of the subdivision; services are required to be provided to and 

though this development in accord with current City plans. 

• “Require pedestrian access in all new development to link subdivisions together and promote 

neighborhood connectivity.” (2.02.01D) 

Per ACHD’s staff report, Lake Hazel Road is currently being improved to 5-travel lanes, 

vertical curb, gutter, 4-foot wide permable pavers, and a 10-foot wide concrete sidewalk 

abutting the site.  Sidewalks are proposed throughout the development along the proposed 

streets. The sidewalk along E. Wickham Street will provide a pedestrian connection to the 

development to the east and along S. Netherfiled Way to the west. Currently there are no 

pedestrian pathway stubs to this property from adjacent developments. 

• “Require urban infrastructure be provided for all new developments, including curb and 

gutter, sidewalks, water and sewer utilities.” (3.03.03G) 

 Urban sewer and water infrastructure and curb, gutter and sidewalks are required to be 

provided with development of the subdivision. 

• “Eliminate existing private treatment and septic systems on properties annexed into the City 

and instead connect users to the City wastewater system; discourage the prolonged use of 

private treatment septic systems for enclave properties.” 

With redevelopment of the site, the existing home is required to connect to City water and 

sewer service and the existing septic system and well should be abandoned. 

• “Reduce the number of existing access points onto arterial streets by using methods such as 

cross-access agreements, access management, and frontage/backage roads, and promoting 

local and collector street connectivity.” (6.01.02B) 

There are three (3) access points on E. Lake Hazel Road for this property (and an irrigation 

access). With development, this access will be closed and access will be provided internally 

from within the subdivision via the extension of E. Wickham Street and S. Netherfield Way. 

There is will an emergency access where the existing access for the remaining home is 

currently located.  

• “Maximize public services by prioritizing infill development of vacant and underdeveloped 

parcels within the City over parcels on the fringe.” (2.02.02) 

Development of the subject infill parcel will maximize public services. 

VI. STAFF ANALYSIS 

A. ANNEXATION (AZ) 

The Applicant proposes to annex 16.25 acres of land with an R-2 zoning district and develop 

15.76 acres of land with single-family homes at a gross density of 1.3946 units per acre, this is 

consistent with the LDR FLUM designation as discussed above in Section V. 

A legal description and exhibit map for the annexation area and property is included in Section 

VIII.A. This property is within the City’s Area of City Impact boundary. 

A preliminary plat and conceptual building elevations were submitted showing how the property 

is proposed to be subdivided and developed with twenty-onetwo (2122) new single-family 

residential detached dwellings and retention of the existing home (see Section VIII). 



 

 
Page 7 

 
  

Single-family detached dwellings are listed as a principal permitted use in the R-2 zoning district 

per UDC Table 11-2A-2. Future development is subject to the dimensional standards listed in 

UDC Table 11-2A-6 for the R-2 zoning district.   

The City may require a development agreement (DA) in conjunction with an annexation pursuant 

to Idaho Code section 67-6511A. To ensure the subject property develops as proposed, Staff 

recommends a DA is required with the provisions discussed herein and included in Section 

IX.A. 

B. PRELIMINARY PLAT (PP): 

The proposed preliminary plat consists of 2122 building lots and eight (8) common lots on 15.76 

acres of land in the proposed R-2 zoning district as shown in Section VIII.C. Proposed buildable 

lots range in size from 12,00899 square feet (s.f.) (or 0.28 acre) to 38,274 27,957 s.f. (or 0.87864 

acre). The subdivision is proposed to be developed in one (1) phase.  

Existing Structures/Site Improvements: There is an existing home and several other structures 

on the property. The existing home is proposed to remain on Lot 36, Block 1, all other structures 

are proposed to be removed. Prior to the City Engineer’s signature on the final plat, all 

existing structures that don’t comply with the setbacks of the district shall be removed. A 

new address will be required for the existing home.   

Dimensional Standards (UDC 11-2): The proposed plat, existing home and subsequent 

development is required to comply with the dimensional standards listed in UDC Table 11-2A-6 

for the R-2 zoning district. The proposed lots comply with the minimum dimensional standards. 

The existing home shall comply with the setback requirements of the district.  

Subdivision Design & Improvement Standards: The proposed subdivision is required to 

comply with the design and improvement standards listed in UDC 11-6C-3. 

 

Dead End Streets: Per UDC 11-6C-3B4, the City Council may approve a dead end street 

up to seven hundred fifty (750) feet in length where an emergency access is proposed; or 

where there is a physical barrier such as a steep slope, railroad tracks, an arterial 

roadway, or a large waterway that prevents or makes impractical extension; and where a 

pedestrian connection is provided from the street to an adjacent existing or planned 

pedestrian facility. See diagram below. 

The cul-de-sac for the proposed plat is greater than 900 feet which would exceed the 

maxium approval allowed by City Council of 750 feet in length.  The applicant needs to 

revise the plat map shortening the length of the cul-de-sac and  submit a revised plat 

map  fifteen days prior to the City Council meeting. The applicant revised the the plat 

map to shorten the length of the cul-de-sac and submitted the revised plat map 25 days 

prior to this meeting 

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH2DIRE_ARTAREDI_11-2A-2ALUS
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH2DIRE_ARTAREDI_11-2A-6MENSREDI
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH2DIRE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH2DIRE_ARTAREDI_11-2A-6MENSREDI
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH6SURE_ARTCSUDEIMST_11-6C-3ST


 

 
Page 8 

 
  

 

Access: There are three (3) access points on E. Lake Hazel Road, an arterial street, for the 

existing homes and structures.  The Irrigation District takes accesses to the property via the parcel 

to the west.  The driveway for the existing home will remain and be utilized as an emergency 

access only. 

Access is proposed via the extension of E. Wickham Street at the east boundary of the site, which 

terminates onto S. Netherfield Way. Direct access is not proposed or allowed via E. Lake Hazel 

Road. A common driveways areis proposed for access to Lots 22, 23, 27 and 28 An exhibit for 

the common driveway was submitted as shown in Section VIII.D that complies with the standards 

listed in UDC 11-6C-3D. A perpetual ingress/egress easement shall be filed with the Ada 

County Recorder, which shall include a requirement for maintenance of a paved surface 

capable of supporting fire vehicles and equipment. A copy of such should be submitted with 

the final plat for City Engineer signature; or, a plat note could be included on the plat that 

includes this information.  

Landscaping: A 25-foot wide street buffer is required along E. Lake Hazel Road., an arterial 

street, per UDC Table 11-2A-6, measured from back of the sidewalk. A buffer is depicted on the 

landscape plan that appears to meet this requirement. The buffer has been depicted on the plat 

in a common lot as proposed with landscaping per the standards listed in UDC 11-3B-7C.3. 

There are several existing trees on the site, where possible existing trees should be retained. 

Mitigation is required in accord with the standards listed in UDC 11-3B-10C.5; calculations 

demonstrating compliance with the aforementioned standards should be depicted on the 

landscape plan. 

  

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH6SURE_ARTCSUDEIMST_11-6C-3ST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH2DIRE_ARTAREDI_11-2A-6MENSREDI
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-7LABUALST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-10TRPR


 

 
Page 9 

 
  

Common Open Space & Site Amenities (UDC 11-3G-3): The applicant is proposing 1.3748-

acres of open space consisting of 50% of the street landscape buffer along E. Lake Hazel Road, 

parkway, pathway along emergency access, covered pavilion, sports court and grassy areas. The 

applicant provided 1.3748 acres of  open space (9.41%) exceeding the 8% (54,920 64,589 sf or 

1.2648 acres) requirement.   

Per UDC 11-3G-4, for each five (5) acres of gross land area, one (1) point of site amenity is 

required. As the property is 15.76 acres, a total of 3 amenties points is required.  The applicant is 

proposing a covered pavilion (picnic area – 2 points) and sports court for pickle ball (4 points) as 

amenities which totals 6 amenties points.  The amenity points are in excess of the required three 

(3) points. Staff recommends a provision to the Development Agreement requiring the 

installation of the amentities as proposed.  

Pathways:  All pathways should be constructed in accord with the standards listed in UDC 11-

3A-8. A 10-foot wide sidewalk is required along the northern boundary of the site in accord with 

the Pathways Master Plan. A 14-foot wide public pedestrian easement is required for the pathway 

(see Park’s Dept. comments in Section IX.G), unless ACHD requires with the construction of the 

Lake Hazel road widening project.  

Sidewalks (11-3A-17): Ten-foot wide detached multiple-use pathways (MUP) is required within 

street buffers along arterial streets.  

Parking: Off-street parking is required to be provided for each home based on the total number 

of bedrooms per unit as set forth in UDC Table 11-3C-6.  

Waterways: The Farr Lateral exists along the west boundary (within a 50-foot easement) and the 

Grimmet Lateral along the east boundary within a 40-foot wide easement, measured from 

centerline). The applicant shall submit documentation from the Irrigation District verifying the 

easements and any restrictions within the easement.  

The UDC (11-3A-6E) requires irrigation easements wider than 10 feet to be included in a 

common lot that is a minimum of 20-feet wide outside of a fenced area, unless modified by 

City Council at a public hearing with notice to surrounding property owners. The applicant 

proposes to place the Farr and the Grimmet Laterals within common lots as required.   

All other irrigation ditches crossing this site that aren’t being improved as a water amenity or 

linear open space as defined in UDC 11-1A-1 shall be piped or otherwise covered as set forth in 

UDC 11-3A-6B.3, unless otherwise waived by City Council.  

The applicant is proposing to tile a portion of the Grimmet Lateral pipe the Grimmett Lateral and 

has been working with the Boise Project Board of Control for approval. The Farr Lateral will 

remain open. If tiled piped, the Boise Project Board of Control will not approve any landscaping 

other than gravel within its 25-foot easement. No variances will be given. 

Fencing: All fencing is required to comply with the standards listed in UDC 11-3A-6C and 11-

3A-7, as applicable. The landscape plan depicts existing fencing along the north boundary of the 

site. A 6-foot tall privacy fence is depicted along the west, south and east boundaries of the site. 

A 4-foot tall privacy fence is proposed along internal common lots.   

Utilities (UDC 11-3A-21): Connection to City water and sewer services is required in accord with 

UDC 11-3A-21. The existing home is required to connect to City water and sewer service 

within 60 days of it becoming available and disconnect from private service, as set forth in 

MCC 9-1-4 and 9-4-8. 

Street lighting is required to be installed in accord with the City’s adopted standards, 

specifications and ordinances.  

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTGCOOPSPSIAMRE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-8PA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-8PA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-17SIPA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-6RENUOREPASP
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH1GERE_ARTADE_11-1A-1DETE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-6DILACADRCO
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-6DILACADRCO
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-7FE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-7FE
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165308#1165308
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT9WASE_CH1WAUSSE_9-1-4USWARE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT9WASE_CH4SEUSSE_9-4-8REUSSE


 

 
Page 10 

 
  

Pressurized Irrigation System (UDC 11-3A-15): Underground pressurized irrigation water is 

required to be provided to each lot within the subdivision as set forth in UDC 11-3A-15. 

Storm Drainage (UDC 11-3A-18): An adequate storm drainage system is required in all 

developments in accord with the City’s adopted standards, specifications and ordinances. Design 

and construction shall follow best management practice as adopted by the City as set forth in 

UDC 11-3A-18. A Geotechnical Report was submitted with this application. 

Building Elevations: Several conceptual building elevations of homes were submitted as shown 

in Section VIII.G. Building materials consist of a variety of stone/brick veneer accents and 

stucco. Design review is not required for single-family detached structures.  

VII. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed annexation with the requirement of a Development 

Agreement, and preliminary plat per the provisions in Section IX in accord with the Findings in 

Section X. 

B.  The Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission heard these items on March 7, 2024. At the 

public hearing, the Commission moved to recommend approval of the subject Annextion and 

Preliminary Plat  requests. 

 1. Summary of Commission public hearing: 

  a. In favor: Todd Lakey, Barton Lakey Law representing the applicant, Jarron 

Langston, Luke Gilbert, property owner 

  b. In opposition: None 

  c. Commenting: Jeff Lucky, Jeff Brown, Andrew Williams, Danny Blau, Melina 

Newell 

  d. Written testimony: Jeff Luckey 

  e. Staff presenting application: Bill Parson, Planning Supervisor 

  f. Other Staff commenting on application: None 

 2. Key issue(s) of public testimony: 

  a. 

 

Concerns with the proposed street connectivity that will bring additional traffic 

to the existing neighborhood (The Keep) to the east 

 3. Key issue(s) of discussion by Commission: 

  a. Bring the proposed cul-de-sac into compliance prior to the City Council hearing. 

 4. Commission change(s) to Staff recommendation: 

  a. None 

 5. Outstanding issue(s) for City Council: 

a.     None 

  

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-15PRIRSY
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-15PRIRSY
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-18STDR
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-18STDR


 

 
Page 11 

 
  

C.  The Meridian City Council heard these items on April 9, 2024. At the public hearing, the Council 

moved to approve the subject annexation, zoning and preliminary plat requests. 

 1. Summary of the City Council public hearing: 

  a. In favor: Todd Lakey, Barton Lakey Law representing the applicant, Jarron Langston 

  b. In opposition: None 

  c. Commenting: Todd Lakey, Barton Lakey Law representing the applicant, Jarron 

Langston  

  d. Written testimony: None 

  e. Staff presenting application: Linda Ritter, Associate Planner 

  f. Other Staff commenting on application: Bill Parsons, Planning Supervisor 

 2. Key issue(s) of public testimony: 

  a. None 

 3. Key issue(s) of discussion by City Council: 

  a. Lack of comments from West Ada School District and the overcrowding of the schools 

in the area. 

 4. City Council change(s) to Commission recommendation: 

  a. None 

 



 

 
Page 12 

 
  

VIII. EXHIBITS    

A. Property Description and Exhibit Map 

 



 

 
Page 13 

 
  

  



 

 
Page 14 

 
  

B. Annexation Description and Exhibit Map 

 



 

 
Page 15 

 
  

  



 

 
Page 16 

 
  

C. Preliminary Plat (dated: 3/25/24 2/15/24) 

 

  



 

 
Page 17 

 
  

D. Common Driveway Exhibit (dated: 2/15/24 3/25/24) 

 

  



 

 
Page 18 

 
  

E. Landscape Plan (dated: 1/9/2024 3/25/24) 

 
 

 



 

 
Page 19 

 
  

 
 

 



 

 
Page 20 

 
  

F. Open Space Exhibit (dated: 2/15/24 3/35/24) 

 

 

G. Conceptual Building Elevations 

  

  



 

 
Page 21 

 
  

     

 

  

 



 

 
Page 22 

 
  

IX. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS  

A. PLANNING DIVISION 

1. A Development Agreement (DA) is required as a provision of annexation of this property. 

Prior to approval of the annexation ordinance, a DA shall be entered into between the City of 

Meridian, the property owner(s) at the time of annexation ordinance adoption, and the 

developer.   

Currently, a fee of $303.00 shall be paid by the Applicant to the Planning Division prior to 

commencement of the DA. The DA shall be signed by the property owner and returned to the 

Planning Division within six (6) months of the City Council granting the annexation. The DA 

shall, at minimum, incorporate the following provisions IF City Council determines 

annexation is in the best interest of the City:  

a. Future development of this site shall be generally consistent with the preliminary plat, 

common driveway exhibit, landscape plan and conceptual building elevations included in 

Section VIII and the provisions contained herein. 

b. The applicant shall provide a covered pavilion (picnic area) and sports court for pickle 

ball as amenities for the Keep West subdivision as proposed in the preliminary plat. 

c. The existing home shall connect to City water and sewer service within 60 days of it 

becoming available and disconnect from private service, as set forth in MCC 9-1-4 and 9-

4-8. 

2. The final plat shall include the following notes and revisions: 

a. Lots 27, 30 and 39, Block 1 are non-buildable common lots and will be owned and 

maintained by the Keep No. 2 Subdivision Homeowners Association. 

b. Place the landscape buffer along E. Lake Hazel Road in a common lot. 

c. Identify the areas of the Farr and Grimmett Laterals and the common drive as common 

lots on the plat. 

 3. The landscape plan submitted with the final plat shall include the following revisions: 

a. Include mitigation information for all existing trees being removed from the site in 

accord with the standards listed in UDC 11-3B-10C.5. 

b. Provide landscaping along both sides of the pathway per UDC 11-3B-12.C 

c. Extend the pathway on Lot 34, Block 1 to the cul-de-sac instead of having it dead end at 

Lot 40, Block 1. 

4. The common driveways for Lot 22, and 23, 27 and 28 Block 3 shall comply with the 

standards listed in UDC 11-6C-3D and the exhibit in Section VIII.C. 

5. The address of the existing home shall change with development of the subdivision. 

6. The Applicant shall obtain a Council waiver to allow the Farr Lateral to remain open in a 

natural state at the Council hearing, per UDC 11-3A-6. Written documentation from the 

Boise Board of Project Control approving the tiling of the Grimmett Lateral is required prior 

to signature on the final plat OR leave it open in a natural state if allowed. This document 

shall be submitted 15 days prior to the City Council hearing.  

7. The applicant shall submit a revised plat map, fifteen days prior to the City Council 

meeting, showing the cul-de-sac does not exceed the required 750 feet in length.  

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT9WASE_CH1WAUSSE_9-1-4USWARE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT9WASE_CH4SEUSSE_9-4-8REUSSE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT9WASE_CH4SEUSSE_9-4-8REUSSE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-10TRPR
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH6SURE_ARTCSUDEIMST_11-6C-3ST


 

 
Page 23 

 
  

8. Except the existing home located at 6519 S. Raap Ranch Lane, all other existing structures 

shall be removed from the site prior to submittal of the final plat for City Engineer signature.  

9. Comply with the subdivision design and improvement standards listed in UDC 11-6C-3. 

10. Approval of a preliminary plat shall become null and void if the applicant fails to obtain the 

city engineer's signature on the final plat within two (2) years of the approval of the 

preliminary plat. Upon written request and filing by the applicant prior to the termination of 

the period, the director may authorize a single extension of time to obtain the city engineer's 

signature on the final plat not to exceed two (2) years. Additional time extensions up to two 

(2) years as determined and approved by the City Council may be granted. With all 

extensions, the director or City Council may require the preliminary plat, combined 

preliminary and final plat or short plat to comply with the current provisions of this title. 

 

B. PUBLIC WORKS 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330390&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity 

C. PARK’S DEPARTMENT 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330381&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity 

D. FIRE DEPARTMENT 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330404&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity 

E. DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (DEQ) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330749&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity 

F. ADA COUNTY  

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=331610&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity 

G. ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT (ACHD)  

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330390&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity 

H.  BOISE PROJECT BOARD OF CONTROL  

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=331610&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity 

 

  

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH6SURE_ARTCSUDEIMST_11-6C-3ST
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330390&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330390&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330381&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330381&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330404&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330404&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330749&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330749&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=331610&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=331610&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330406&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=330406&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=333137&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=333137&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


 

 
Page 24 

 
  

FINDINGS 

A. Annexation and/or Rezone (UDC 11-5B-3E) 

Required Findings: Upon recommendation from the commission, the council shall make a full 

investigation and shall, at the public hearing, review the application. In order to grant an 

annexation and/or rezone, the council shall make the following findings: 

1. The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the comprehensive 

plan; 

Commission finds the Applicant’s request to annex the subject property with R-2 zoning and 

develop single-family detached dwellings on the site at a gross density of 1.46 units per acre is 

generally consistent with the Comprehensive Plan per the analysis in Section V.  

2. The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed district, 

specifically the purpose statement; 

Commission finds the proposed map amendment to R-2 and development generally complies 

with the purpose statement of the residential districts in that it will contribute to the range of 

housing opportunities available in the City consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

3. The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, 

and welfare; 

Commission finds the proposed map amendment should not be detrimental to the public 

health, safety and welfare as the proposed residential uses should be compatible with 

adjacent single-family residential homes/uses in the area. 

4. The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services 

by any political subdivision providing public services within the city including, but not 

limited to, school districts; and 

Commission finds City services are available to be provided to this development.  

5. The annexation (as applicable) is in the best interest of city. 

Commission finds the proposed annexation is in the best interest of the city.  

B. Preliminary Plat (UDC 11-6B-6) 

In consideration of a preliminary plat, combined preliminary and final plat, or short plat, the 

decision-making body shall make the following findings: (Ord. 05-1170, 8-30-2005, eff. 9-15-

2005) 

1. The plat is in conformance with the comprehensive plan and is consistent with this unified 

development code; (Ord. 08-1372, 7-8-2008, eff. 7-8-2008) 

Commission finds the proposed plat is in conformance with the UDC and generally conforms 

with the Comprehensive Plan. 

2. Public services are available or can be made available and are adequate to accommodate the 

proposed development;   

Commission finds public services can be made available to the subject property and will be 

adequate to accommodate the proposed development. 



 

 
Page 25 

 
  

3. The plat is in conformance with scheduled public improvements in accord with the city's 

capital improvement program; 

Commission finds the proposed plat is in conformance with scheduled public improvements 

in accord with the City’s capital improvement program.  

4. There is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed development; 

 Commission finds there is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed 

development. 

5. The development will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare; and 

  Commission finds the proposed development will not be detrimental to the public health, 

safety or general welfare. 

6. The development preserves significant natural, scenic or historic features. (Ord. 05-1170, 8-

30-2005, eff. 9-15-2005) 

 Commission is unaware of any significant natural, scenic or historic features that need 

to be preserved with this development. 

  



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Approval of Construction Contract to Treasure Valley Drilling, LLC for 
Construction of Production Well #34 project for the Not-To-Exceed amount of $977,670.00



 
MEMO TO CITY COUNCIL 

Request to Include Topic on the City Council Agenda 

From: Darren Brasseur, Procurement Division Meeting Date: April 23, 2024 

Presenter: Consent Estimated Time: 5-10 Min. 

Topic: Approval of Construction Contract to Treasure Valley Drilling, LLC for Construction 
of Production Well# 34 project for the Not-To-Exceed amount of $977,670.00. 

 

Recommended Council Action: 

Approval of Construction Contract for Construction of Production Well# 34 with resulting 
Purchase Order and authorize the Procurement Manager to sign. 
 

Background: 

This contract is the result of Formal Bid# PW-2415-10634.e. Two (2) bids were received.  



CONTRACT CHECKLIST

Date: REQUESTING DEPARTMENT 

Project Name:

Project Manager: Contract Amount: 

Contractor/Consultant/Design Engineer:

Is this a change order? Yes  No Change Order No. 

Fund: Budget Available (Purchasing attach report):

Department: Yes  No Construction
GL Account: FY Budget: Task Order

Project Number: Enhancement: Yes  No Professional Service
Equipment

Will the project cross fiscal years? Yes No Grant 

Grant #: Wage Determination Received Wage Verification 10 Days prior to bid due date Debarment Status (Federal Funded)

Print and Attach the determination Print, attach and amend bid by addendum (if changed) www.sam.gov   Print and attach

Master Agreement Category
(Bid Results Attached) Yes No (Ratings Attached) Yes No Date MSA Roster Approved:

Typical Award Yes  No

If no please state circumstances and conclusion:

Date Award Posted: 7 day protest period ends:

PW License: Expiration Date: Corporation Status:  

Insurance Certificates Received (Date): Expiration Date: Rating: TBD

Payment and Performance Bonds Received (Date): Rating: TBD

Builders Risk Ins. Req'd: Yes No  

(Only applicabale for projects above $1,000,000)

Reason Consultant Selected 1 Performance on past projects
Check all that apply Quality of work On Budget

On Time Accuracy of Construction Est
2 Qualified Personnel
3 Availability of personnel
4 Local of personnel

Description of negotiation process and fee evaluation:

Date Submitted to Clerk for Agenda: By:

Purchase Order No.: Date Issued:  WH5 submitted:
(Only for PW Construction Projects)

NTP Date:  

Contract Request Checklist.5.24.2016.Final

N/A N/A N/A N/A

Active-Existing2/28/2025

I.                                                                                                  PROJECT INFORMATION

TBD TBD

N/A

FY24

3/8/2024 Public Works
Production Well #34 (Construction)

V.                                                                                                                 BASIS OF AWARD

Wednesday April 3, 2024 Thursday April 10, 2024

IV.                                                               GRANT INFORMATION - to be completed only on Grant funded projects

VI.                                                                          CONTRACTOR / CONSULTANT REQUIRED INFORMATION

         N/A

TBD

April 12, 2024 April 23, 2024 City Council
TBD TBD TBD

VIII.                                                                            AWARD INFORMATION 
Approval Date

Enter Supervisor Name Date Approved
Kyle Radek 3/8/2024

VII.                                          TASK ORDER SELECTION   (Project Manager to Complete)

Lowest responsive and qualified bid.

TBD

Award based on Low Bid Highest Ranked Vendor Selected

046777 & IDWRWD License: 560 

$977,670Brent Blake

If yes, has policy been purchased?

Treasure Valley Drilling, LLC

III.                  Contract TypeII.                      BUDGET INFORMATION   (Project Manager to Complete)
60

3490
96179

10634.e

TASK ORDER
N/A

RFP / RFQBID































AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Landscape Maintenance Services Amendment No.9 to Lawn Co. for 
Landscape Maintenance Services for Fiscal Year 2024 services for the Not-to-Exceed amount of 
$259,200.00



 

MEMO TO CITY COUNCIL 
Request to Include Topic on the City Council Agenda 

From: Sandra Ramirez, Procurement Div. Meeting Date: April 12, 2024 

Presenter: N/A Estimated Time: 0.00 

Topic: Landscape Maintenance Services Amendment No.9 for FY24 Services  
 

Recommended Council Action: 

Approve contract amendment to Lawn Co. for Landscape Maintenance services for FY24 for the 
Not-to-Exceed amount of $259,200.00 and authorize the Procurement Manager to sign the 
Purchase Order for the No-to-Exceed amount of $259,200.00.   

Background: 

FY24 is the final year to this service contract with Lawn Co.   



CONTRACT CHECKLIST

Date: REQUESTING DEPARTMENT 

Project Name:

Project Manager: Contract Amount: 

Contractor/Consultant/Design Engineer:

Is this a change order? Yes  No Change Order No. 

Fund: Budget Available (Purchasing attach report):

Department Yes  No Construction

GL Account FY Budget: Task Order

Project Number: Enhancement: Yes  No Professional Service
Equipment

Will the project cross fiscal years? Yes No Grant 

Grant #: Wage Determination Received Wage Verification 10 Days prior to bid due date Debarment Status (Federal Funded)

Print and Attach the determination Print, attach and amend bid by addendum (if changed) www.sam.gov   Print and attach

Master Agreement Category

(Bid Results Attached) Yes No (Ratings Attached) Yes No Date MSA Roster Approved:

Typical Award Yes  No

If no please state circumstances and conclusion:

Date Award Posted: 7 day protest period ends:

PW License Expiration Date: Corporation Status  

Insurance Certificates Received (Date): Expiration Date: Rating: 

Payment and Performance Bonds Received (Date): Rating: 

Builders Risk Ins. Req'd: Yes No  

(Only applicabale for projects above $1,000,000)

Reason Consultant Selected 1 Performance on past projects

Check all that apply Quality of work On Budget

On Time Accuracy of Construction Est

2 Qualified Personnel

3 Availability of personnel

4 Local of personnel

Description of negotiation process and fee evaluation:

Date Submitted to Clerk for Agenda: By:

Purchase Order No.: Date Issued:  WH5 submitted
(Only for PW Construction Projects)

NTP Date:  

Contract Request Checklist.5.24.2016.Final

$259,200Roger Norberg

If yes, has policy been purchased?

Lawn Co. 

III.                  Contract TypeII.                      BUDGET INFORMATION   (Project Manager to Complete)

1

5210

55704

10151.c

TASK ORDERRFP / RFQBID

VII.                                          TASK ORDER SELECTION   (Project Manager to Complete)

            

N/A

Award based on Low Bid Highest Ranked Vendor Selected

VIII.                                                                            AWARD INFORMATION 

Approval Date

Enter Supervisor Name Date Approved

4.12.2024

I.                                                                                                  PROJECT INFORMATION

N/A

2024

4/12/2024 Parks & Rec 

Landscape Maintenance Services 

V.                                                                                                                 BASIS OF AWARD

IV.                                                               GRANT INFORMATION - to be completed only on Grant funded projects

VI.                                                                          CONTRACTOR / CONSULTANT REQUIRED INFORMATION

N/a N/A N/A N/A

Active-Good StandingN/A N/A



City Of Meridian

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Rev and Exp Report - Sandra
5210 - Parks Division

01 - General Fund

From 10/1/2023 Through 9/30/2024

Amendments
Budget with 

Actual
Current Year 

Remaining
Budget 

OPERATING COSTS
55704 Contracted Services 363,836.52 95,505.13 268,331.39 

Total OPERATING COSTS 363,836.52 95,505.13 268,331.39 

DEPT EXPENDITURES 363,836.52 95,505.13 268,331.39 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 363,836.52 95,505.13 268,331.39 

Date: 3/21/24 09:48:11 AM Page: 1









CITY OF MERIDIAN
SHIP TO

 

SUGGESTED 

VENDOR

PROJECT MANAGER F.O.B. REQUESTOR

DESTINATION

QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE FUND
DEPT 

CODE

PROJECT / 

COMMITMENT #
TOTAL AMOUNT

1 ea 207,140.00$       1 5210 207,140.00$         

1 ea 52,060.00$         1 5210 52,060.00$           

-$                      

-$                      

-$                      

-$                      

-$                      

-$                      

-$                      

-$                      

NOTES:

Mike Barton

AUTHORIZED DEPARTMENT SIGNATURE

Council Approval Date:

Parks

LawnCo PC 1 and 3 2024 Maintenance Budget Conttact Ends 9/30/2024

Roger Norberg

PROJECT NAME: 

 

IS BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED?

No

CITY SUPPORT TICKET NO.

LawnCo

$288,231.39

CITY OF MERIDIAN

Purchasing Department

33 E BROADWAY AVE, STE 106

FAX: (208) 887-4813

MERIDIAN, ID 83642

TEL: (208) 489-0417

Purchase Requisition  

PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER MUST APPEAR ON ALL INVOICES, PACKING 

SLIPS, CARTONS AND CORRESPONDENCE RELATED TO THIS ORDER

2/8/2024
DATE OF 

REQUEST

AVAILABLE BUDGET AMOUNT

NET 30 PREPAID

PAYMENT TERMS FREIGHT TERMS

2581 Wildwood St Boise ID 83713

Roger Norberg

EXPENSE  OR  

GL ACCOUNT #
PART NUMBER / DESCRIPTION / COMMITMENT NAME  /                                                   

TASK ORDER / CONTRACT / PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Base Budget 2024 Price Code 1

Base Budget 2024 Price Code 3

ACCOUNTING CODESDescription of Purchase Quantity and Pricing

55704

55704

10/1/2023

$259,200.00



How to fill out the Purchase Requisition.   

Fill in the SHIP TO DEPARTMENT NAME.  
This is the name of the requesting department and where the product will be shipped
If the Ship To location is somewhere other than the department location, please enter that address in the lines below the department name and highlight it.

Fill in the DATE OF REQUEST located in the box on the right hand side of the form.
Fill in the amount of budget available for this commitment.
Is a budget amendment required to fund this request?  Answer YES or NO.

Enter the name  of the SUGGESTED VENDOR.
Please check with FINANCE to verify that the City of Meridian has the vendor set up as an account.
If the vendor is not set up, request that a W-9 form be submitted to FINANCE before placing the order.
If PURCHASING receives this Purchase Requisition and the vendor is not set up, an order processing delay occurs
If vendor will be determined by procurement process, enter "TBD" 

CITY SUPPORT (JITBIT) TICKET NO is entered by purchasing staff.
Enter the PROJECT NAME, TASK ORDER NAME AND NUMBER and/or PROJECT/COMMITMENT NUMBER
Enter the name of the PROJECT MANAGER and REQUESTOR.

Under "PART NUMBER / DESCRIPTION / COMMITMENT NAME  / TASK ORDER / CONTRACT / PROJECT DESCRIPTION
Enter the COMMITMENT NAME, TASK ORDER or PROJECT DESCRIPTION, Part Number or Description of Item being purchased
If you have more than one item, enter each on a separate line.

Enter the QUANTITY for each line item.
Enter the UNIT and UNIT PRICE for each line item.   (Task orders and contracts should be listed as QTY 1 and UNIT EA.  Unit price and total will be equal.)
ACCOUNTING CODES
Enter the FUND that you want the expense to impact

1)  The FUND number will be either:
       (a)    01, 07, 08, 20, 55, or 60 depending on what FUND the budget is in

Enter the DEPARTMENT CODE you want the expense to impact
1)  The DEPARTMENT CODE is a 4 digit number that corresponds to your department 

Enter the GL  ACCOUNT NUMBER (Expense Account) for each item.
1)   The GL ACCOUNT NUMBER (Expense Account) is the 5 digit number where the budgets are located

Enter the PROJECT CODE / COMMITMENT # you want the expense to impact
1)  The PROJECT CODE / COMMITMENT is an alpha numeric code that identifies a specific project or commitment to charge all expenses to

INFORMATION ONLY
The FUND, DEPARTMENT CODE, GL ACCOUNT NUMBER, AND PROJECT CODE make up the accounting code for your request.

 The accounting code will hold the budget dollars and actual expenses for your PO request.
Accuracy is important as the resulting PO encumbers this accounting code (budget line item).

Not all requests will have a project number.  Call Purchasing if you are unsure.
This form will automatically total your request.
In the NOTES field add any information that you feel is significant. 

AUTHORIZED DEPARTMENT SIGNATURE
Each department has a list of employees and amounts that they are authorized to sign for.  
Please make sure that the authorized department personnel signs the form.

The completed and signed form must be submitted to Purchasing, along with the required support documents via a CITY SUPPORT(JITBIT) ticket. 
PRINT AND SUBMIT ONLY PAGE 1 (NOT THESE INSTRUCTIONS)



How to fill out the Purchase Requisition.   

Fill in the SHIP TO DEPARTMENT NAME.  
This is the name of the requesting department and where the product will be shipped
If the Ship To location is somewhere other than the department location, please enter that address in the lines below the department name and highlight it.

Fill in the DATE OF REQUEST located in the box on the right hand side of the form.
Fill in the amount of budget available for this commitment.
Is a budget amendment required to fund this request?  Answer YES or NO.

Enter the name  of the SUGGESTED VENDOR.
Please check with FINANCE to verify that the City of Meridian has the vendor set up as an account.
If the vendor is not set up, request that a W-9 form be submitted to FINANCE before placing the order.
If PURCHASING receives this Purchase Requisition and the vendor is not set up, an order processing delay occurs
If vendor will be determined by procurement process, enter "TBD" 

CITY SUPPORT (JITBIT) TICKET NO is entered by purchasing staff.
Enter the PROJECT NAME, TASK ORDER NAME AND NUMBER and/or PROJECT/COMMITMENT NUMBER
Enter the name of the PROJECT MANAGER and REQUESTOR.

Under "PART NUMBER / DESCRIPTION / COMMITMENT NAME  / TASK ORDER / CONTRACT / PROJECT DESCRIPTION
Enter the COMMITMENT NAME, TASK ORDER or PROJECT DESCRIPTION, Part Number or Description of Item being purchased
If you have more than one item, enter each on a separate line.

Enter the QUANTITY for each line item.
Enter the UNIT and UNIT PRICE for each line item.   (Task orders and contracts should be listed as QTY 1 and UNIT EA.  Unit price and total will be equal.)
ACCOUNTING CODES
Enter the FUND that you want the expense to impact

1)  The FUND number will be either:
       (a)    01, 07, 08, 20, 55, or 60 depending on what FUND the budget is in

Enter the DEPARTMENT CODE you want the expense to impact
1)  The DEPARTMENT CODE is a 4 digit number that corresponds to your department 

Enter the GL  ACCOUNT NUMBER (Expense Account) for each item.
1)   The GL ACCOUNT NUMBER (Expense Account) is the 5 digit number where the budgets are located

Enter the PROJECT CODE / COMMITMENT # you want the expense to impact
1)  The PROJECT CODE / COMMITMENT is an alpha numeric code that identifies a specific project or commitment to charge all expenses to

INFORMATION ONLY
The FUND, DEPARTMENT CODE, GL ACCOUNT NUMBER, AND PROJECT CODE make up the accounting code for your request.

 The accounting code will hold the budget dollars and actual expenses for your PO request.
Accuracy is important as the resulting PO encumbers this accounting code (budget line item).

Not all requests will have a project number.  Call Purchasing if you are unsure.
This form will automatically total your request.
In the NOTES field add any information that you feel is significant. 

AUTHORIZED DEPARTMENT SIGNATURE You may remove the highlight in the signature boxes.  It makes it easier to write in the area.

Each department has a list of employees and amounts that they are authorized to sign for.  
Please make sure that the authorized department personnel signs the form.

The completed and signed form must be submitted to Purchasing, along with the required support documents via a CITY SUPPORT (JITBIT) ticket. 
PRINT AND SUBMIT ONLY PAGE 1 (NOT THESE INSTRUCTIONS)



If the Ship To location is somewhere other than the department location, please enter that address in the lines below the department name and highlight it.

If the vendor is not set up, request that a W-9 form be submitted to FINANCE before placing the order.
If PURCHASING receives this Purchase Requisition and the vendor is not set up, an order processing delay occurs

Under "PART NUMBER / DESCRIPTION / COMMITMENT NAME  / TASK ORDER / CONTRACT / PROJECT DESCRIPTION
Enter the COMMITMENT NAME, TASK ORDER or PROJECT DESCRIPTION, Part Number or Description of Item being purchased

Enter the UNIT and UNIT PRICE for each line item.   (Task orders and contracts should be listed as QTY 1 and UNIT EA.  Unit price and total will be equal.)

1)   The GL ACCOUNT NUMBER (Expense Account) is the 5 digit number where the budgets are located

1)  The PROJECT CODE / COMMITMENT is an alpha numeric code that identifies a specific project or commitment to charge all expenses to

The FUND, DEPARTMENT CODE, GL ACCOUNT NUMBER, AND PROJECT CODE make up the accounting code for your request.

You may remove the highlight in the signature boxes.  It makes it easier to write in the area.

The completed and signed form must be submitted to Purchasing, along with the required support documents via a CITY SUPPORT (JITBIT) ticket. 



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: License Agreement between Nampa Meridian Irrigation District and the City 
of Meridian for multi-use pathway along the Tenmile Sub Drain at Foxcroft Subdivision























AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Equipment agreement to ECB Solutions, LLC for the Not-to-Exceed amount of
$445,000.00 for five (5) Power Transformers at Wastewater Resource Recovery Facility



 
MEMO TO CITY COUNCIL 

Request to Include Topic on the City Council Agenda 

From: Sandra Ramirez, Procurement Div.  Meeting Date: 4/23/2024 

Presenter: N/A Estimated Time: 0.00 

Topic: Approval of Agreement and Purchase Order (PO) to ECB Solutions, LLC 
 

Recommended Council Action: 

Approval of equipment agreement to ECB Solutions, LLC for five (5) Power Transformers at WRRF 
and approval for Procurement Manager to sign the PO for the Not-to-Exceed amount of 
$445,000.00.  

Background: 

Agreement and Purchase Order Not-to-Exceed $445,000.00 to ECB Solutions, LLC.   



CONTRACT CHECKLIST

Date: REQUESTING DEPARTMENT 

Project Name:

Project Manager: Contract Amount: 

Contractor/Consultant/Design Engineer:

Is this a change order? Yes  No Change Order No. 

Fund: Budget Available (Purchasing attach report):

Department Yes  No Construction

GL Account FY Budget: Task Order

Project Number: Enhancement: Yes  No Professional Service
Equipment

Will the project cross fiscal years? Yes No Grant 

Grant #: Wage Determination Received Wage Verification 10 Days prior to bid due date Debarment Status (Federal Funded)

Print and Attach the determination Print, attach and amend bid by addendum (if changed) www.sam.gov   Print and attach

Master Agreement Category

(Bid Results Attached) Yes No (Ratings Attached) Yes No Date MSA Roster Approved:

Typical Award Yes  No

If no please state circumstances and conclusion:

Date Award Posted: 7 day protest period ends:

PW License Expiration Date: Corporation Status  

Insurance Certificates Received (Date): Expiration Date: Rating: A++

Payment and Performance Bonds Received (Date): Rating: A++

Builders Risk Ins. Req'd: Yes No  

(Only applicabale for projects above $1,000,000)

Reason Consultant Selected 1 Performance on past projects

Check all that apply Quality of work On Budget

On Time Accuracy of Construction Est

2 Qualified Personnel

3 Availability of personnel

4 Local of personnel

Description of negotiation process and fee evaluation:

Date Submitted to Clerk for Agenda: By:

Purchase Order No.: Date Issued:  WH5 submitted
(Only for PW Construction Projects)

NTP Date:  

Contract Request Checklist.5.24.2016.Final

$445,000David Briggs 

If yes, has policy been purchased?

Stantec

III.                  Contract TypeII.                      BUDGET INFORMATION   (Project Manager to Complete)

60

3590

96154

11281

TASK ORDER

N/A

RFP / RFQBID

VII.                                          TASK ORDER SELECTION   (Project Manager to Complete)

            

4.10.2024

Award based on Low Bid Highest Ranked Vendor Selected

VIII.                                           PROCUREMENT USE ONLY -   AWARD INFORMATION 

Approval Date

Enter Supervisor Name Date Approved

4.10.2024

N/A

I.                                                                                                  PROJECT INFORMATION

4.9.2024 1.12.2025

N/A

2024

4.10.2024 Public Works

WRRF Tertriary Filtration & Primary Power Transformers 

V.                                                                                                                 BASIS OF AWARD

4.2.2024 4.2.2024

IV.                                                               PROCUREMENT USE ONLY - GRANT INFORMATION (to be completed only on Grant funded projects)

VI.                                                            PROCUREMENT USE ONLY - CONTRACTOR / CONSULTANT REQUIRED INFORMATION 

Initial low bid was non-responsive

N/A N/A N/A N/A

UNKNOWNN/A N/A



City Of Meridian

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Rev and Exp Report - Sandra
3590 - WW Construction Projects

60 - Enterprise Fund

From 10/1/2023 Through 9/30/2024

Amendments
Budget with 

Actual
Current Year 

Remaining
Budget 

Capital Outlay
96154 Filter Upgrade Projects 17,365,696.92 5,726,834.00 11,638,862.92 

Total Capital Outlay 17,365,696.92 5,726,834.00 11,638,862.92 

DEPT EXPENDITURES 17,365,696.92 5,726,834.00 11,638,862.92 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 17,365,696.92 5,726,834.00 11,638,862.92 

Date: 2/13/24 08:09:40 AM Page: 1



WRRF Tertiary Filtration & Primary Power Transformers (BT-67DW)

Legend

The green cells with bolded numbers indicate that this bid was the lowest price.

The orange cells indicate that this item from that vendor was selected.

The green cells with orange outline indicate that this item from that vendor was selected, and 

has the lowest price.



$ 123The green cells with bolded numbers indicate that this bid was the lowest price.

The orange cells indicate that this item from that vendor was selected.

The green cells with orange outline indicate that this item from that vendor was selected, and 

has the lowest price.



Total Cost

# Items Quantity
Required Unit Unit
Price

0

1 75-kVA 208GrdY/120V Transformer 3 EA $ 49,000.0

2 2500-kVA 480GrdY/277V Transformer 2 EA $ 149,000.0

ECB Solutions LLC

$ 445,000.0



Total
Cost Unit
Price Total
Cost

$ 147,000.0

$ 298,000.0

ECB Solutions LLC Wisecom Technology

$ 445,000.0 NON-RESPONSIVE



WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS page 1 of 19 
Project #11281.f 

AGREEMENT FOR THE SUPPLY OF TRANSFORMERS 
PROJECT #11281.F 

THIS AGREEMENT FOR EQUIPMENT / SUPPLIES PROCUREMENT is made 
this   ____ day of April, 2024, and entered into by and between the City of Meridian, a 
municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho, hereinafter 
referred to as "CITY", 33 East Broadway Avenue, Meridian, Idaho 83642, and 
SUPPLIER, hereinafter referred to as “ECB SOLUTIONS LLC”, whose business 
address is 669 Centerpointe Cove, Oxford MS 38655. 

INTRODUCTION 

Whereas, the City has a need for POWER TRANSFORMERS; and 

WHEREAS, the SUPPLIER is specially trained, experienced and 
competent to provide and has agreed to provide such equipment; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, 
terms and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties agree as follows: 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Equipment / Supply Specifications & Requirements:

1.1     SUPPLIER shall supply the equipment, supplies and services to the
City upon execution of this Agreement and receipt of the City’s written notice
to proceed, all items, and comply in all respects, as specified in the Invitation
to Bid titled “WRRF Tertiary Filtration & Primary Power Transformers” and
suppliers bid dated by which by this reference are incorporated herein,
together with all addendums issued.

1.2 The SUPPLIER shall provide all equipment and services under this
Agreement consistent with the requirements and standards established by
applicable federal, state and city laws, ordinances, regulations and
resolutions and the UCC.  The SUPPLIER represents and warrants that it will
perform its work in accordance with generally accepted industry standards
and practices for the profession or professions that are used in performance
of this Agreement and that are in effect at the time of performance of this
Agreement.  Delivery shall take place within x weeks of



WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS page 2 of 19 
Project #11281.f 

2. Consideration

2.1 The SUPPLIER shall be compensated on a Fixed Price basis as
provided in Attachment B “Payment Schedule” attached hereto and by
reference made a part hereof, for the Not-To-Exceed amount of $445,000.00.

2.2     The SUPPLIER shall provide the City with a detailed invoice upon
delivery of all equipment and supplies, which the City will pay within 30 days
of receipt of a correct invoice and approval by the City Project Manager.  The
City will not withhold any Federal or State income taxes or Social Security
Tax from any payment made by City to SUPPLIER under the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other assessments
on such sums is the sole responsibility of SUPPLIER.

2.3 Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, SUPPLIER shall not
be entitled to receive from the City any additional consideration,
compensation, salary, wages, or other type of remuneration for services
rendered under this Agreement., including, but not limited to, meals, lodging,
transportation, drawings, renderings or mockups.  Specifically, SUPPLIER
shall not be entitled by virtue of this Agreement to consideration in the form of
overtime, health insurance benefits, retirement benefits, paid holidays or
other paid leaves of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

3. Invoices

Invoices shall be rendered in duplicate and shall include: (1) Purchase Order
number; (2) pricing; (3) quantity; (4) description; (5) any sales taxes or use
taxes as separate items, giving permit number authorizing collection of use
taxes; (6) point of shipment; (7) method and class of shipment; (8) complete
routing of shipment; and (9) whether transportation expense has been
prepaid.  Seller/Contractor/Contractor agrees to make a separate invoice for
each order and shipment.  Unless otherwise expressly provided in the
Purchase Order, all taxes, duties, tolls, fees, import charges, or other
governmental exactions shall be deemed included in the purchase price of
the supplies and services and the City shall have no liability to pay
Seller/Contractor/Contractor or any third party any amount in excess of the
specified purchase price.  City of Meridian, a local governmental entity of the
State of Idaho, is exempt from any Federal Manufacturer’s Excise Tax under
the provision of Section 4221(a)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code.  All
invoices shall exclude such excise tax.  All invoices shall be sent to the
following address:



WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS page 3 of 19 
Project #11281.f 

City of Meridian, Accounts Payable, 33. East Broadway Ave., Meridian, 
Idaho 83642. 

4. Term:

4.1  This agreement shall become effective upon execution by both parties,
and shall expire upon (a) completion of the agreed upon work, or (b) unless
sooner terminated as provided below or unless some other method or time of
termination is listed in Attachment A.

4.2 Should SUPPLIER default in the performance of this Agreement or
materially breach any of its provisions, City, at City’s option, may terminate
this Agreement by giving written notification to SUPPLIER.

4.3 Should City fail to pay SUPPLIER all or any part of the compensation
set forth in Attachment B of this Agreement on the date due, SUPPLIER, at
the SUPPLIER’s option, may terminate this Agreement if the failure is not
remedied by the City within thirty (30) days from the date payment is due.

5. Termination:

If, through any cause, SUPPLIER, its officers, employees, or agents fails to
fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under this Agreement,
violates any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this Agreement,
falsifies any record or document required to be prepared under this
agreement, engages in fraud, dishonesty, or any other act of misconduct in
the performance of this contract, or if the City Council determines that
termination of this Agreement is in the best interest of CITY, the CITY shall
thereupon have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice
to SUPPLIER of such termination and specifying the effective date thereof at
least fifteen (15) days before the effective date of such termination.

Notwithstanding the above, SUPPLIER shall not be relieved of liability to the
CITY for damages sustained by the CITY by virtue of any breach of this
Agreement by SUPPLIER, and the CITY may withhold any payments to
SUPPLIER for the purposes of set-off until such time as the exact amount of
damages due the CITY from SUPPLIER is determined.  This provision shall
survive the termination of this agreement and shall not relieve SUPPLIER of
its liability to the CITY for damages.

6. Independent SUPPLIER:

6.1     In all matters pertaining to this agreement, SUPPLIER shall be acting 
as an independent SUPPLIER, and neither SUPPLIER nor any officer, 



WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS page 4 of 19 
Project #11281.f 

employee or agent of SUPPLIER will be deemed an employee of CITY. 
Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, SUPPLIER has no authority 
or responsibility to exercise any rights or power vested in the City and 
therefore has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of the City. 
 The selection and designation of the personnel of the CITY in the 
performance of this agreement shall be made by the CITY. 

6.2 SUPPLIER, its agents, officers, and employees are and at all times 
during the term of this Agreement shall represent and conduct themselves as 
independent SUPPLIERs and not as employees of the City. 

6.3     SUPPLIER shall determine the method, details and means of 
performing the work and services to be provided by SUPPLIER under this 
Agreement.  SUPPLIER shall be responsible to City only for the requirements 
and results specified in this Agreement and, except as expressly provided in 
this Agreement, shall not be subjected to City’s control with respect to the 
physical action or activities of SUPPLIER in fulfillment of this Agreement.  If in 
the performance of this Agreement any third persons are employed by 
SUPPLIER, such persons shall be entirely and exclusively under the direction 
and supervision and control of the SUPPLIER. 

7. Indemnification and Insurance:

a. SUPPLIER shall indemnify and save and hold harmless CITY from and for
any and all losses, claims, actions, judgments for damages, or injury to
persons or property and losses and expenses and other costs including
litigation costs and attorney’s fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in
connection with the performance of this Agreement  by the SUPPLIER, its
servants, agents, officers, employees, guests, and business invitees, and not
caused by or arising out of the tortuous conduct of CITY or its employees.
SUPPLIER shall maintain, and specifically agrees that it will maintain,
throughout the term of this Agreement, liability insurance, in which the CITY
shall be named an additional insured in the minimum amounts as follow:
General Liability One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per incident or occurrence,
Automobile Liability Insurance One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per incident
or occurrence and Workers’ Compensation Insurance, in the statutory limits
as required by law..  The limits of insurance shall not be deemed a limitation
of the covenants to indemnify and save and hold harmless CITY; and if CITY
becomes liable for an amount in excess of the insurance limits, herein
provided, SUPPLIER covenants and agrees to indemnify and save and hold
harmless CITY from and for all such losses, claims, actions, or judgments for
damages or injury to persons or property and other costs, including litigation
costs and attorneys’ fees, arising out of, resulting from , or in connection with
the performance of this Agreement by the SUPPLIER or SUPPLIER’s



WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS page 5 of 19 
Project #11281.f 

officers, employs, agents, representatives or subSUPPLIERs and resulting in 
or attributable to personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible 
or intangible property, including use of.  SUPPLIER shall provide CITY with a 
Certificate of Insurance, or other proof of insurance evidencing SUPPLIER'S 
compliance with the requirements of this paragraph and file such proof of 
insurance with the CITY at least ten (10) days prior to the date SUPPLIER 
begins performance of it’s obligations under this Agreement. In the event the 
insurance minimums are changed, SUPPLIER shall immediately submit proof 
of compliance with the changed limits.  Evidence of all insurance shall be 
submitted to the City Purchasing Agent with a copy to Meridian City 
Accounting, 33 East Broadway Avenue, Meridian, Idaho 83642. 

7.2 Any deductibles, self-insured retention, or named insureds must be 
declared in writing and approved by the City.  At the option of the City, either: 
the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles, self-insured retentions 
or named insureds; or the SUPPLIER shall provide a bond, cash or letter of 
credit guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim 
administration and defense expenses. 

7.3 To the extent of the indemnity in this contract, SUPPLIER’s Insurance 
coverage shall be primary insurance regarding the City’s elected officers, 
officials, employees and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the City or the City’s elected officers, officials, employees and 
volunteers shall be excess of the SUPPLIER’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with SUPPLIER’s insurance except as to the extent of City’s 
negligence. 

b. The SUPPLIER’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against
whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the
insurer’s liability.

7.4 All insurance coverages for Suppliers subs shall be subject to all of the
insurance and indemnity requirements stated herein.

7.5 The limits of insurance described herein shall not limit the liability of
the Supplier and Supplier’s agents, representatives, employees or
subcontractors.

7.6 The limits of insurance described herein shall not limit the liability of
the Contractor and Contractor’s agents, representatives, employees or
subcontractors.



WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS page 6 of 19 
Project #11281.f 

8. Bonds:  Payment, Warranty and Performance Bonds are required.

9. Warranty:  In addition to any warranty required in the specifications, all
equipment, coatings, valves, controls, and other components provided under
this agreement shall be guaranteed for two (2) years against defects in
workmanship and materials from the notice of acceptance.

10. Notices:  Any and all notices required to be given by either of the parties
hereto, unless otherwise stated in this agreement, shall be in writing and be
deemed communicated when mailed in the United States mail, certified,
return receipt requested, addressed as follows:

City of Meridian 
Procurement Manager 
33 E. Broadway Avenue 
Meridian, Idaho 83642 
Ph. (208) 489-0417 
Email:  kwatts@meridiancity.org 

Either party may change their address for the purpose of this paragraph by 
giving written notice of such change to the other in the manner herein 
provided. 

11. Attorney Fees:  Should any litigation be commenced between the parties
hereto concerning this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled, in
addition to any other relief as may be granted, to court costs and reasonable
attorneys' fees as determined by a Court of competent jurisdiction.  This
provision shall be deemed to be a separate contract between the parties and
shall survive any default, termination or forfeiture of this Agreement.

12. Time is of the Essence:  The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that
time is strictly of the essence with respect to each and every term, condition
and provision hereof, and that the failure to timely perform any of the
obligations hereunder shall constitute a breach of, and a default under, this
Agreement by the party so failing to perform.

13. Assignment:  It is expressly agreed and understood by the parties hereto,
that SUPPLIER shall not have the right to assign, transfer, hypothecate or
sell any of its rights under this Agreement except upon the prior express
written consent of CITY.

14. Discrimination Prohibited:  In performing the Work required herein,
SUPPLIER shall not unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state

mailto:kwatts@meridiancity.org


WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS page 7 of 19 
Project #11281.f 

or local law, rule or regulation against any person on the basis of race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin or ancestry, age or disability. 

15. Reports and Information:

15.1     At such times and in such forms as the CITY may require, there shall
be furnished to the CITY such statements, records, reports, data and
information as the CITY may request pertaining to matters covered by this
Agreement.

15.2     SUPPLIER shall maintain all writings, documents and records
prepared or compiled in connection with the performance of this Agreement
for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of this or
Agreement.  This includes any handwriting, typewriting, printing, photo static,
photographic and every other means of recording upon any tangible thing,
any form of communication or representation including letters, words,
pictures, sounds or symbols or any combination thereof.

16. Audits and Inspections:  Subject to applicable laws respecting the
protection of privacy and the City’s requirement to comply with the Idaho
Public Records Act, at any time during normal business hours and as often
as the CITY may deem necessary, there shall be made available to the CITY
for examination all of SUPPLIER’S records with respect to all matters
covered by this Agreement.  SUPPLIER shall permit the CITY to audit,
examine, and make excerpts or transcripts from such records, and to make
audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel,
conditions of employment and other data relating to all matters covered by
this Agreement.

17. Publication, Reproduction and Use of Material:  No material produced in
whole or in part under this Agreement shall be subject to copyright in the
United States or in any other country.  The CITY shall have unrestricted
authority to publish, disclose and otherwise use, in whole or in part, any
reports, data or other materials prepared under this Agreement.

18. Compliance with Laws:  In performing the scope of work required
hereunder, SUPPLIER shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, and
codes of Federal, State, and local governments.

Certifications.

Pursuant to Idaho Code §§ 67-2359 and 67-2346,Contractor hereby certifies:



WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS page 8 of 19 
Project #11281.f 

A. That Contractor is not currently owned or operated by the government
of China and will not, for the duration of this Contract, be owned or
operated by the government of China. 

B. That Contractor is not currently engaged in, and will not for the
duration of the Contract engage in, a boycott of goods or services
from Israel or territories under its control. 

19. Changes: The CITY may, from time to time, request changes in the Scope of
Work to be performed hereunder.  Such changes, including any increase or
decrease in the amount of SUPPLIER’S compensation, which are mutually
agreed upon by and between the CITY and SUPPLIER, shall be incorporated
in written amendments which shall be executed with the same formalities as
this Agreement.

20. Construction and Severability: If any part of this Agreement is held to be
invalid or unenforceable, such holding will not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other part of this Agreement so long as the remainder of
the Agreement is reasonably capable of completion.

21. Waiver of Default:  Waiver of default by either party to this Agreement shall
not be deemed to be waiver of any subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of
any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any
other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification
of the terms of this Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided
above.

22. Advice of Attorney:  Each party warrants and represents that in executing
this Agreement. It has received independent legal advice from its attorney’s
or the opportunity to seek such advice.

23. Entire Agreement:  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the
parties and supersedes any and all other agreements or understandings, oral
of written, whether previous to the execution hereof or contemporaneous
herewith.

24. Order of Precedence: The order or precedence shall be the contract
agreement, the Invitation for Bid document, then the winning bidders
submitted bid document.

25. Applicable Law: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho, and the
ordinances of the City of Meridian.



WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS page 9 of 19 
Project #11281.f 

26. Approval Required:  This Agreement shall not become effective or binding
until approved by the City of Meridian.

CITY OF MERIDIAN ECB SOLUTIONS LLC 

BY:___________________________ BY:  
Keith Watts, Procurement Manager 

Dated: Dated: 

Ellis Bledsoe, Principal 

4/3/2024



  

ATTACHMENT 1 

SPECIFICATIONS / SCOPE OF WORK

SECTION 26 12 19 

PAD-MOUNTED, LIQUID-FILLED, MEDIUM-VOLTAGE TRANSFORMERS 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.1 SUMMARY 

A. Section includes pad-mounted, liquid-filled, medium-voltage distribution transformers,
with primary and secondary bushings within air-terminal enclosures.

1.2 DEFINITIONS 

A. BIL: Basic Impulse Insulation Level.

B. Bushing: An insulating structure including a central conductor, or providing a central
passage for a conductor, with provision for mounting on a barrier, conducting or
otherwise, for the purpose of insulating the conductor from the barrier and conducting
current from one side of the barrier to the other.

C. Bushing Elbow: An insulated device used to connect insulated conductors to separable
insulated connectors on dead-front, pad-mounted transformers and to provide a fully
insulated connection. This is also called an "elbow connector."

D. Bushing Insert: That component of a separable insulated connector that is inserted into a
bushing well to complete a dead-front, load break or nonload break, separable insulated
connector (bushing).

E. Bushing Well: A component of a separable insulated connector, either permanently
welded or clamped to an enclosure wall or barrier, having a cavity that receives a
replaceable component (bushing insert) to complete the separable insulated connector
(bushing).

F. Elbow Connector: See "bushing elbow" above.

1.3 REFERENCES 

A. The following is a list of standards which may be referenced in this section:
1. The Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineer, Inc. (IEEE):

WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS         
Project #11281.f page 10 of 19



a. 386 - IEEE Standard for Separable Insulated Connector Systems for Power
Distribution Systems Rated 2.5 kV through 35 kV.

b. C2 - National Electric Safety Code.
c. C37.47 - IEEE Standard Specifications for High-Voltage (>1000 V)

Distribution Class Current-Limiting Type Fuses and Fuse Disconnecting
Switches.

d. C57.12.00 - IEEE Standard for General Requirements for Liquid-Immersed
Distribution, Power, and Regulating Transformers.

e. C57.12.26 - IEEE Standard for Pad-Mounted, Compartmental-Type, Self-
Cooled, Three-Phase Distribution Transformers for Use with Separable
Insulated High-Voltage Connectors (34 500 GrdY/19 920 Volts and Below,
2500 kVA and Smaller).

f. C57.12.28 - IEEE Standard for Pad-Mounted Equipment - Enclosure
Integrity.

g. C57.12.36 - IEEE Standard Requirements for Liquid-Immersed Distribution
Substation Transformers.

h. C57.12.70 - IEEE Standard for Standard Terminal Markings and
Connections for Distribution and Power Transformers.

i. C57.12.90 – IEEE Standard Test Code for Liquid-Immersed Distribution,
Power, and Regulating Transformers.

j. C62.11 - IEEE Standard for Metal-Oxide Surge Arresters for AC Power
Circuits (>1 kV).

2. InterNational Electrical Testing Association (NETA):
a. ATS - Standard for Acceptance Testing Specifications for Electrical Power

Equipment and Systems.
3. Nationally Recognized Testing Laboratories (NRTL).
4. American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE):

a. SEI 7 – 10 - Minimum Design Loads for Buildings and Other Structures.
5. Department of Energy (DOE):

a. 10 CFR 431, Subpart K – Distribution Transformers.
6. National Fire Protection Association (NFPA): 70
7. International Organization for Standardization (ISO):

a. 9001, Quality Management Systems Requirements.
8. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM):

a. A 167 - Specification for stainless steel and heat-resisting chromium-nickel
steel plate, sheet, and strip

b. D 117 - Standard Guide for Sampling, Test Methods, and Specifications for
Electrical Insulating Oils of Petroleum Origin.

c. D 877 - Standard Test Method for Dielectric Breakdown Voltage of
Insulating Liquids Using Disk Electrodes.

d. D 923 - Standard Practices for Sampling Electrical Insulating Liquids.
e. D 971 - Standard Test Method for Interfacial Tension of Oil Against Water

by the Ring Method.
f. D 974 - Standard Test Method for Acid and Base Number by Color-

Indicator Titration.

WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS         
Project #11281.f 

page 11 of 19



g. D 1500 - Standard Test Method for ASTM Color of Petroleum Products
(ASTM Color Scale).

h. D 1524 - Standard Test Method for Visual Examination of Used Electrical
Insulating Liquids in the Field.

i. D 1816 - Standard Test Method for Dielectric Breakdown Voltage of
Insulating Liquids Using VDE Electrodes.

j. D 3487 - Standard Specification for Mineral Insulating Oil Used in
Electrical Apparatus.

9. Underwriters Laboratories (UL):
a. 1562 - Standard for Transformers, Distribution, Dry-Type - Over 600 Volts.

10. National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA):
a. TR 1 – Transformers, Regulators, and Reactors.

11. Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA):
a. 29 CFR 1910.269 - Electric Power Generation, Transmission, and

Distribution.
12. Uniform Building Code (UBC): Section 1630, Lateral Force on Elements of

Structures, Non-Structural Components, and Equipment Supported by Structures.

1.4 ACTION SUBMITTALS 

A. Product Data: For each type of product include:

1. Rated capacities.
2. Operating characteristics.
3. Furnished specialties.
4. Accessories.

B. Shop Drawings: For liquid-filled, medium-voltage transformers:

1. Descriptive information for the transformer and all specified components.

2. Dimensional drawings, plans and elevations showing major components and
features.
a. Plan view.
b. Cross-section of equipment base.
c. Clearances.
d. Required workspace.
e. Locations of penetrations for grounding and conduits.

3. Details of equipment assemblies and indicate:
a. Dimensions.
b. Weights.
c. Loads.
d. Required clearances.
e. Method of field assembly.
f. Components.
g. Location and size of each field connection.

WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS         
Project #11281.f page 12 of 19



4. Single-line diagram.
5. List of materials.
6. Nameplate data.
7. Nameplate data.
8. High voltage switch arrangement (one-line diagram) for each transformer,
9. Manufacturer's published time-current curves of the transformer high-voltage

fuses, with transformer damage curve, inrush curve, and thru fault current
indicated.

1.5 INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS 

A. Qualification Data: For testing agency.

B. Product Certificates: For transformers:
1. Signed by product manufacturer.

C. Quality Control Submittals:
1. Factory quality control reports.
2. Field quality control reports.

1.6 QUALITY ASSURANCE 

A. Electrical Components, Devices, and Accessories: Listed and labeled as defined in
NFPA 70, by a qualified testing agency, and marked for intended location and
application.

B. Design, test, and assemble in accordance with applicable standards of IEEE C57.12.00,
C57.12.22, C57.12.26, C57.12.70, C57.12.80, C57.12.90, and C57.12.92.

1.7 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS 

A. Operation and Maintenance Data for transformer and accessories:
1. Operation manual.
2. Maintenance manual.
3. Emergency manual.
4. Manufacturer’s written instructions for preventative maintenance.
5. Time-current curves of overcurrent protective devices.
6. Local Representatives

a. Where to order parts:  Name, Address, Telephone.
b. Service Problems:

1) Who to call.
2) How to get emergency help.

WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS         
Project #11281.f 

page 13 of 19



1.8 EXTRA MATERIALS 

A. Furnish, tag, and box for shipment and storage the following spare parts, special tools,
and materials.
1. One quart of paint to match color and quality of equipment final shop finish.
2. Two spare fuses for each transformer.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

2.1 MANUFACTURERS: 

A. Eaton

B. ABB

C. Square D Co.

D. General Electric

E. Howard Industries, Inc.

2.2 TRANSFORMER SCHEDULE 

A. Provide three-phase transformers as follows:

QUANTITY SIZE 
PRIMARY 
VOLTAGE 

SECONDARY 
VOLTAGE 

3 75-kVA 12,470GrdY/7,200V 208GrdY/120V 
2 2500-kVA 12,470GrdY/7,200V 480GrdY/277V 

2.3 GENERAL 

A. Transformer Locations: Outdoors.

B. Winding Connections: The connection of windings and terminal markings shall comply
with IEEE C57.12.70.

C. Efficiency: Comply with 10 CFR 431, Subpart K (DOE 2016).

D. Insulation: Transformer kVA rating shall be as follows: The average winding
temperature rise above a 30 deg C ambient temperature shall not exceed 65 deg C and
80 deg C hottest-spot temperature rise at rated kVA when tested according to
IEEE C57.12.90, using combination of connections and taps that give the highest
average winding temperature rise.

WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS         
Project #11281.f 

page 14 of 19



E. Tank: Sealed, with welded-on cover.

F. Enclosure Integrity: Comply with IEEE C57.12.28 for pad-mounted enclosures that
contain energized electrical equipment in excess of 600 V that may be exposed to the
public.

G. Mounting: An integral skid mounting frame, suitable to allow skidding or rolling of
transformer in any direction, and with provision for anchoring frame to pad.

H. Insulating Liquids:

1. Mineral Oil: ASTM D 3487, Type II, and tested for compliance with
ASTM D 117.
a. Retro fillable with homogeneous biodegradable fluid if the Owner decides

to do so in the future.

I. Sound level shall comply with NEMA TR 1 requirements.

J. Corrosion Protection:

1. Transformer coating system shall be factory applied, complying with
requirements of IEEE C57.12.28, in manufacturer's standard color Munsell
7GY3.29/1.5 green.

K. Warning Labels and Signs:
1. High-Voltage Warning Label: Provide self-adhesive warning signs on outside of

high-voltage compartment door(s). Sign legend shall be "DANGER HIGH
VOLTAGE" printed in two lines of nominal 2-inch (50-mm) high letters. The
word "DANGER" shall be in white letters on a red background and the words
"HIGH VOLTAGE" shall be in black letters on a white background.

2. Arc Flash Warning Label: Provide self-adhesive warning signs on outside of
high-voltage compartment door(s), warning of potential electrical arc flash
hazards and appropriate personal protective equipment required.

L. Service Conditions
1. Transformers shall be suitable for operation under service conditions specified as

usual service conditions in IEEE C57.12.00.

2.4 THREE PHASE TRANSFORMERS 

A. Capacities and Characteristics:
1. Self-Cooled Rating, Class ONAN.  Comply with IEEE C57.12.00 for cooling

class.
2. Power Rating (kVA): As specified herein.
3. Primary Voltage Ratings: 12,470GrdY/7,200V, three-phase, 60-Hz.
4. Secondary Voltage Ratings:  480GrdY/277V and 208GrdY/120V, 60-Hz as

specified herein.

WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS         
Project #11281.f 

page 15 of 19



5. Taps:  Comply with IEEE C57.12.26 requirements.
a. 480GrdY/277V Units:  Full capacity, two 2-1/2 percent below and two 2-

1/2 percent above, rated voltage.
b. 208GrdY/120V Units:  Full capacity, four 2-1/2 percent below rated

voltage.
c. Externally operated no-load tap changer.
d. Provisions for locking handle in any position.

6. Transformer BIL (kV):  Comply with IEEE C57.12.26 requirements.
a. Primary: 95-kV BIL.
b. Secondary:  30-kV BIL (600V or less).

B. Windings Material:  Copper.

C. Impedance:  Manufacturer’s standard.

D. Wye-wye transformers wound on four-or five legged cores.

E. Terminal Compartments
1. General: ANSI C57.12.28, enclosed high and low voltage compartments side by

side, separated by steel barrier, bolted to transformer tank. Terminal compartment
enclosure shall have no exposed screws, bolts, or other fasteners which are
externally removable.
a. Doors:

1) Individual, full-height, air-filled.
2) Low voltage door with three-point latching mechanism, vault type

handle, and single padlocking provision.
3) High voltage door fastenings inaccessible until low voltage door has

been opened.
4) Door bolts: Hex-head type.
5) Lift-off, stainless steel hinges and door stops.
6) Removable front sill to facilitate rolling of skidding over conduit

stubs.
7) Recessed lock pocket, with steel door release bolt adjacent to

secondary compartment door handle.
2. High Voltage Compartment:

a. Dead-front in accordance with ANSI C57.12.26 type construction.
b. Protective fuses.
c. High voltage bushings.
d. Transformer grounding pad.
e. High voltage switch.

3. Low Voltage Compartment:
a. Live front in accordance with ANSI C57.12.26 type construction.
b. Low voltage bushings.
c. Stainless steel grounding pad.
d. Stainless steel equipment nameplate.
e. Magnetic liquid level indicator with high and low alarm contacts.

WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS         
Project #11281.f 

page 16 of 19



f. 1-inch upper filter press and filling plug.
g. Drain valve with sampling device.
h. Dial type thermometer and alarm contacts.
i. Pressure relief valve.
j. Pressure relief device, self-resealing with indicator.
k. Pressure-vacuum gauge.
l. Machine-engraved nameplate, made of anodized aluminum or stainless

steel.

F. Bushings
1. High Voltage:

a. Dead-front termination:
1) Universal bushing wells and bushing well inserts rated 15 kV in

accordance with IEEE 386.
2) Bushings externally clamped and front removable.
3) Rated for 200 amperes continuous.
4) Standoff brackets located to bushings.
5) Terminations arranged for loop feed.

2. Low Voltage (below 600V):
a. Molded epoxy bushing clamped to tank. 6-hole spade-type terminals for

units 2,000 kVA and smaller. 8-hole spade-type terminals for 2,500 kVA
units.

b. Rated 150 percent of continuous full-load current.
c. Internally connected neutral extended to neutral bushing.

G. High Voltage Switch
a. Provide OFF-ON load break, gang operated, oil-immersed switch.
b. Hot stick operated handle located in high voltage compartment.
c. Capable of operating at full-load current.
d. Switch Configuration: Radial.

H. High Voltage Protection
a. Bayonet-type, liquid-immersed, expulsion fuses in series with liquid-

immersed, partial-range, current-limiting fuses. Bayonet fuse shall sense
both high currents and high oil temperature to provide thermal protection to
the transformer. Connect current-limiting fuses ahead of radial-feed load-
break switch.

b. Provide oil retention valve and an external drip shield inside the housing to
eliminate or minimize oil spills. Valve shall close when fuse holder is
removed, and an external drip shield is installed.

c. Provide a conspicuously displayed warning adjacent to bayonet fuse(s),
cautioning against removing or inserting fuses unless transformer has been
de-energized and tank pressure has been released.

I. Surge Arresters
1. Comply with IEEE C62.11, Distribution Class; metal-oxide-varistor type, fully

shielded, separable-elbow type, suitable for plugging into the inserts provided in

WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS         
Project #11281.f 

page 17 of 19



the high-voltage section of the transformer. Connected in each phase of incoming 
circuit and ahead of any disconnecting device. 

J. Tank Grounding Pads
1. High and Low Voltage Compartments:

a. Connected together with bare No. 2/0 stranded copper conductors.
b. Wye-wye high and low voltage neutrals internally connected with link and

brought out to insulated low voltage bushing externally grounded to tank.
c. Low voltage neutral connected to externally mounted insulating bushing in

low voltage compartment and grounded to tank with removable strap.

K. Tap Changer Warning Sign
1. Red laminated plastic, engraved to white core.
2. Engrave to read DO NOT OPERATE WHEN TRANSFORMER ENERGIZED.
3. Mount above tap changer handle.

2.5 SOURCE QUALITY CONTROL 

A. Provide manufacturer's certificate that the transformer design tests comply with
IEEE C57.12.90.

1. Perform the following factory-certified routine tests:

a. Resistance.
b. Turns ratio, polarity, and phase relation.
c. Transformer no-load losses and excitation current at 100 percent of ratings.
d. Transformer impedance voltage and load loss.
e. Operation of all devices.
f. Lightning impulse.
g. Low frequency.
h. Leak.
i. Transformer no-load losses and excitation current at 110 percent of ratings.
j. Induced potential.
k. Resistance measurements of all windings on rated voltage connection and at

tap extreme connections.
l. Ratios on rated voltage connection and at tap extreme connections.
m. Polarity and phase relation on rated voltage connection.
n. No-load loss at rated voltage on rated voltage connection.
o. Exciting current at rated voltage on rated voltage connection.
p. Impedance.

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED) 

END OF SECTION 

WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS         
Project #11281.f 

page 18 of 19 



WRRF POWER TRANSFORMERS page 19 of 19 
Project #11281.f 

Attachment B 

MILESTONE  /  PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

A. Total and complete compensation for this Agreement shall not exceed $445,000.

MILESTONE SCHEDULE ESTIMATED 
PAYMENT 

SCHEDULE 
Milestone 1 Submission of all 

Submittals 
14 Days from Conditional Notice of 
Award 10% 

Milestone 2 Approval of all Submittals 28 Days from Notice to Proceed 20% 
Milestone 3 Equipment Delivery 880 Days from Notice to Proceed 60% 

Milestone 4 
Approval of Operation & 
Maintenance Manual 
Submittal 910 Days from Notice to Proceed 5% 

Milestone 5 Final Completion 910 Days from Notice to Proceed 5% 

PRICING SCHEDULE
Furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and incidentals as required for the above-named 
project, per the attached drawings and specifications.  

Equipment and Manufacturer’s Services 

ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE 
EXTENDED 

PRICE 
1 75-kVA 208GrdY/120V Transformer 3 EA $49,000.00 $147,000.00 
2 2500-kVA 480GrdY/277V Transformer 2 EA $149,000.00 $298,000.00 

TOTAL $445,000.00_



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Resolution No. 24-2448: A resolution vacating the five foot (5’) public 
utilities, pressurized irrigation, and drainage easement located along the interior side lot line of 
Lots 11 and 12, Block 7 of The Oaks North No. 1 Subdivision, being more particularly described in
Exhibit “A”; and providing an effective date.



Easement Vacation – The Oaks North No. 1 Subdivision L11&12 B7 H-2024-0004   

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF MERIDIAN RESOLUTION NO.  24-2448 

 

BY THE CITY COUNCIL: CAVENER, LITTLE ROBERTS, 

OVERTON, STRADER, TAYLOR 

 

  

A RESOLUTION VACATING THE FIVE FOOT (5’) PUBLIC UTILITIES, 

PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION, AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT LOCATED ALONG THE 

INTERIOR SIDE LOT LINE OF LOTS 11 AND 12, BLOCK 7 OF THE OAKS NORTH NO. 

1 SUBDIVISION, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A”; AND 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 WHEREAS, on April 9, 2024, the City Council of the City of Meridian held a hearing on 

the vacation of the five foot (5’) public utilities, pressurized irrigation, and drainage easement 

located along the interior side lot line of Lots 11 and 12, Block 7 of The Oaks North No. 1 

Subdivision; and 

 WHEREAS, after such hearing, the City Council, by formal motion, did approve said 

described vacation; and  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN CITY, IDAHO: 

Section 1.  That the five foot (5’) public utilities, pressurized irrigation, and drainage 

easement located along the interior side lot line of Lots 11 and 12, Block 7 of The Oaks North No. 

1 Subdivision, as fully described in Exhibit “A”, is hereby vacated.  

Section 2.  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption and approval. 

Passed by the City Council of the City of Meridian, Idaho, this 23rd day of April, 2024. 

Approved by the Mayor of the City of Meridian, Idaho, this 23rd day of April, 2024. 

  



Easement Vacation – The Oaks North No. 1 Subdivision L11&12 B7 H-2024-0004   

      Attest: 

 

 

_________________________________   __________________________________ 

Mayor Robert E. Simison    Chris Johnson, City Clerk 
 

 

 

 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 

   )  ss: 

County of Ada         ) 

 

 On this ____ day of_______________, 2024, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public 

in and for said State, personally appeared Robert E. Simison and Chris Johnson, known to me 

to be the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of Meridian, Idaho, and who executed 

the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that the City of Meridian executed the same. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the 

day and year first above written.   

 

     

 

     _______________________________________  

 (SEAL)   Notary Public  

     My Commission Expires: _____________  



EXHIBIT A











AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Resolution No. 24-2449: A Resolution of the Mayor and the City Council of 
the City of Meridian Approving City Council President’s Appointments of City Council Members 
to Serve as Department Liaisons; and Providing an Effective Date



APRIL 2024 RESOLUTION APPOINTING CITY COUNCIL DEPARTMENT LIAISONS PAGE 1 OF 1 

 

CITY OF MERIDIAN RESOLUTION NO. _24-2449___________ 

 

BY THE CITY COUNCIL: CAVENER, LITTLE ROBERTS,  

OVERTON, STRADER, TAYLOR 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN 

APPROVING CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT’S APPOINTMENTS OF CITY COUNCIL 

MEMBERS TO SERVE AS DEPARTMENT LIAISONS, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Meridian City Code section 1-7-6(A), the president of the City Council is 

to appoint a city council member to serve as liaison between Meridian City Council and each of the City 

departments, and at the City Council meeting on April 23, 2024, City Council President Luke Cavener did 

make such appointments; 

 

WHEREAS, by this resolution, the City Council of the City of Meridian seeks to effectuate and 

memorialize these appointments; 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF MERIDIAN CITY, IDAHO: 

  

Section 1.  That the City Council members appointed by City Council President Cavener to serve 

as liaisons to the respective departments, as follows, shall fulfill the duties of such function as enumerated 

in Meridian City Code section 1-7-6(B). 

  

Luke Cavener: City Clerk 

Mayor’s Office 

Police Department 

Anne Little Roberts: Fire Department 

John Overton: Community Development Department 

Parks & Recreation Department 

  Liz Strader: 

 

Finance Department 

Human Resources Department 

Information Technology Department 

Legal Department 

Doug Taylor: Public Works 

 

Section 2. That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption and 

approval.   

 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Meridian, Idaho, this 23rd day of April, 2024. 

 

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Meridian, Idaho, this 23rd day of April, 2024. 

  

  

 APPROVED:      ATTEST: 

 

        ______________________________ 

 Mayor Robert E. Simison    Chris Johnson, City Clerk 



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Idaho Gives Week Proclamation





AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Denim Day for Sexual Assault Awareness Month Proclamation





AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Public Hearing to Consider the Purchase of Approximately 11.365 Acres of 
Real Property Owned by West Ada School District and Described as Lot 11, Block 25 of Cedar 
Springs Subdivision No. 3 for the Purchase Price of $4,261,875.00



 

MEMO TO CITY COUNCIL 
Request to Include Topic on the City Council Agenda 

From: Steve Siddoway, Parks & Recreation 
Director 

William L. M. Nary, City Attorney/Risk 
Manager 

Meeting Date: April 23, 2024 

Presenter: Steve Siddoway, Parks & Recreation 
Director 

Estimated Time: 15 Minutes 

Topic: Public Hearing Concerning Purchase and Sale Agreement Between the City and West 
Ada School District for Lot 11, Block 25, Cedar Springs Subdivision No. 3 

 

Recommended Council Action: 

Hold a public hearing concerning a proposed Purchase and Sale Agreement (“Agreement”) 
between the City and Joint School District No. 2 dba West Ada School District (“District”) to 
facilitate the City’s purchase of approximately 11.365 acres of real property. If, after considering all 
public testimony, the City wishes to proceed with the Agreement, it is further recommended that 
the City Council adopt the related budget amendment and resolution included on this same agenda. 

Background: 

The District owns approximately 11.365 acres of real property identified as Lot 11, Block 25, 
Cedar Springs Subdivision No. 3 (“Property”). The Property, which is located immediately to the 
west of Settlers Park, is no longer needed for school purposes. The City is interested in acquiring 
the Property for park and recreation purposes, including a community center. The City and the 
District deem the value of the Property to be $4,261,875 ($375,000 per acre). Funding for the 
acquisition of the Property would come from the General Fund. 

The Board of Trustees of the District will hold a public hearing on April 22, 2024, to consider the 
attached Agreement. The Agreement must be approved by a two-thirds vote of the Board of 
Trustees and the City Council. 

Attachments: 

Location Map 
Purchase and Sale Agreement 



Real Estate Purchase Agreement Page 1 
 

REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

CITY OF MERIDIAN 

AND 

JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 2 DBA WEST ADA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

THIS PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into and made 

effective on April 23, 2024 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the City of Meridian, an Idaho 

municipal corporation, whose address is 33 E. Broadway Avenue, Meridian, Idaho 83642 (the “Buyer” or 

“City”), and Joint School District No. 2 dba West Ada School District, whose address is 1303 E. Central 

Drive, Meridian, Idaho 83642  (the “Seller” or “District”). City and District may be referred to individually 

as a “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.” 

WHEREAS, the District owns 11.365+/- acres of real property more particularly described 

as Lot 11 in Block 25 of CEDAR SPRINGS SUBDIVISION NO. 3, according to the official plat 

thereof, filed in Book 88 of Plats at Pages 10198, 10199, 10200, and 10201, and amended by Affidavit 

recorded November 23, 2007 as Instrument No. 107156693, Records of Ada County, Idaho (the 

“Property”); and, 

WHEREAS, the Property is no longer needed for school purposes; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the Property is located adjacent to Settlers Park, which is owned and maintained 

by the City; and, 

WHEREAS, the City desires to purchase the Property for park and recreation purposes, including 

a community center; and, 

WHEREAS, the City and the District have entered into that certain Interagency Governmental 

Agreement dated November 6, 2019 (as amended on May 11, 2021, and April 9, 2024), which authorizes 

the District to convey real property to the City; and, 

WHEREAS, the City and the District deem the fair market value of the Property to be $4,261,875.00; 

and, 

WHEREAS, it would be in the best interests of the District, the City, and the community for the City to 

acquire the Property for public purposes; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, covenants, representations, and 

warranties set forth in this Agreement, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, Seller and Buyer agree as set forth below. 

 

1. Definitions. The following terms have the following meanings when used in this Agreement: 



Real Estate Purchase Agreement Page 2 
 

“Agreement”. This Purchase and Sale Agreement, including all exhibits attached to this 

Agreement, if any. 

“Business Day”. A day other than a Saturday, Sunday, or any federal holiday. 

“Closing”. The consummation of the Transaction, as evidenced by the delivery of all required 

funds and documents to Escrow Agent and the disbursement or delivery of such funds and 

documents by Escrow Agent in accordance with this Agreement and any other consistent 

instructions. 

 

“Closing Date”. Closing of this Transaction shall occur as soon as practicable at a date agreed to 

by the Parties, but in any event no later than May 31, 2024. 

 

“Effective Date”. The effective date set forth on page one of this Agreement. 

“Escrow”. The escrow to be created in accordance with this Agreement.  

“Escrow Agent”. First American Title and Escrow Company. 

“Property”. Lot 11 in Block 25 of CEDAR SPRINGS SUBDIVISION NO. 3, according to the 

official plat thereof, filed in Book 88 of Plats at Pages 10198, 10199, 10200, and 10201, and amended by 

Affidavit recorded November 23, 2007 as Instrument No. 107156693, Records of Ada County, Idaho. 

“Purchase Price”. The total purchase price to be paid by Buyer for the Property, as set forth in 

Section 3 of this Agreement. 

“Transaction”. The purchase and sale of the Property contemplated by this Agreement. 

 

2. Definitive Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Property. Upon full execution, this Agreement 

shall be a binding agreement between Buyer and Seller for the purchase and sale of the Property on the 

terms, conditions and provisions set forth in this Agreement. This Agreement supersedes all other written 

or oral agreements between Buyer and Seller concerning the Transaction. If Buyer and Seller execute any 

separate escrow instructions with respect to the Transaction on Escrow Agent’s form, as may be modified 

by Buyer and/or Seller in the sole discretion of each, and if there is any conflict or inconsistency between 

any provision of such escrow instructions and any provision of this Agreement, the provision of this 

Agreement shall control. 

 

3. Purchase Price. The Purchase Price shall be $4,261,875.00 to be paid in full at Closing. 

 

4. Title Commitment. Within three (3) days from the Effective Date, Escrow Agent shall issue and 

deliver to Buyer and Seller a commitment for title insurance with respect to the Property disclosing all 

matters of record and other matters of which Escrow Agent has knowledge which relate to the title to the 

Property, detailing Escrow Agent’s requirements for closing the Escrow, committing to issue to Buyer an 

ALTA Standard Owner’s Policy of Title Insurance with respect to the Property, and providing legible 

copies of all instruments referred to in the report (collectively, the “Commitment”). 



Real Estate Purchase Agreement Page 3 
 

 

Buyer has fourteen (14) days after the Effective Date or after receipt of the Commitment, 

whichever occurs later, to review and to object in writing to any easements, liens, encumbrances 

or other exceptions or requirements in the Commitment (the “Title Objections”). If Buyer does not approve 

the Commitment or object within the time specified, then the condition of title to the Property reflected 

on the Commitment shall be deemed approved. If the Title Objections are made within the time specified, 

Seller may, but shall not be required to, attempt to eliminate the matters covered by the Title Objections 

by or before the Closing Date. If Seller is unable or unwilling, in its sole discretion, to eliminate the matters 

covered by the Title Objections by or before the Closing Date upon terms acceptable to Buyer, Seller shall 

so notify Buyer, and Buyer may either waive the Title Objections that Seller was unable or unwilling to 

eliminate or terminate this Agreement. 

 

4.1 Amendments to Title Commitment. If the Commitment is amended by Escrow Agent, 

Escrow Agent shall immediately deliver to Buyer and Seller the amendment and provide legible copies of 

all additional instruments referred to in the amendment (collectively, the “Amendment”). Buyer has 

fourteen (14) days from the date of Buyer’s receipt of the Amendment or through the Closing Date, 

whichever occurs earlier, to review and to object in writing to any easements, liens, encumbrances, or 

other exceptions or requirements in the Amendment which were not disclosed by the Commitment or a 

previous Amendment (the “Additional Title Objections”). 

 

If Buyer does not approve the Amendment or object within the time specified, then the condition 

of title to the Property reflected on the Amendment shall be deemed approved. If the Additional Title 

Objections are made within the time specified, Seller may attempt to eliminate the matters covered by the 

Additional Title Objections by or before the Closing Date. If Seller is unable or unwilling to eliminate the 

matters covered by the Additional Title Objections by or before the Closing Date upon terms acceptable 

to Buyer, Seller shall so notify Buyer, and Buyer may either waive the Additional Title Objections that 

Seller was unable or unwilling to eliminate or terminate this Agreement. 

 

4.2 Title Insurance Policy. At Closing, Escrow Agent shall commit to issue to and in favor of 

Buyer or its assigns an ALTA Standard Owner’s Policy of Title Insurance with respect to the Property in 

the amount of the Purchase Price, insuring fee simple title to the Property in Buyer effective on the Closing 

Date, subject to the standard exclusions and exceptions in such form of policy and any additional 

exclusions and exceptions approved by Buyer (the “Title Policy”). 

 

4.3 Buyer’s Inspection of Property. Buyer and/or their designee have thirty (30) days after 

the Effective Date (the “Inspection Review Period”) to inspect the Property and to conduct, review and 

approve any investigations, tests, analyses or studies deemed necessary by Buyer to determine the 

condition and feasibility of the Property for Buyer's purpose (the “Inspection Review”). Seller hereby 

grants to Buyer and Buyer’s agents, employees, and contractors a nonexclusive right and license to enter 

upon the Property after giving reasonable advance notice to Seller to conduct the Inspection Review. Upon 

completion of the Inspection Review, Buyer shall restore the Property to its condition existing 

immediately prior to the Inspection Review. To the extent permitted by Idaho law, Buyer shall indemnify 

and hold Seller harmless from any loss incurred by Seller resulting from damage to the Property caused 

by the Inspection Review. If for any reason Buyer determines that the Property is not in a suitable 

condition or not feasible for Buyer’s purpose, Buyer may terminate this Agreement within the Inspection 



Real Estate Purchase Agreement Page 4 
 

Review Period. If Buyer does not either approve or disapprove the Inspection Review, or otherwise 

terminate this Agreement prior to the expiration of the Inspection Review Period, then the Inspection 
Review shall be deemed approved. 

 

5. Closing. 

5.1 Time and Place. Closing shall take place in the offices of Escrow Agent, or any other place 

the Parties mutually select, on the Closing Date. 

 

5.2 Seller’s Closing Deliveries. At Closing, Seller shall deliver to Escrow Agent: 

 

5.2.1 A Warranty Deed fully executed and properly acknowledged by Seller, conveying 

the Property to Buyer, free and clear of any mortgages, liens or deeds of trust. 

 

5.3 Buyer’s Closing Deliveries. At Closing, Buyer shall deliver to Escrow Agent: 

 

5.3.1 Payment in full for the Purchase Price. 

 

5.4 Closing Costs. Buyer shall pay the premium for the Title Policy. Buyer shall pay any 

additional premiums required for any extended coverage or endorsements requested by Buyer. Escrow 

and Closing fees shall be split equally between Buyer and Seller. Each Party shall bear its own costs 

(including attorneys’ fees) in connection with its negotiation, due diligence investigation, and conduct of 

the Transaction. All other costs associated with the Transaction shall be borne by the Parties in accordance 

with custom in Ada County, Idaho, as determined by Escrow Agent, unless otherwise specified in this 

Agreement. 

 

5.5 Possession. Buyer shall be entitled to possession of the Property on the Closing Date. 

 

6. Seller’s Representations and Warranties. Seller represents and warrants to Buyer that: 

 

6.1 Authority. Seller has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and complete 

the Transaction. 

 

6.2 Binding Agreement. Upon Seller’s execution of this Agreement, this Agreement shall be 

binding and enforceable against Seller in accordance with its terms, and upon Seller’s execution of any 

additional documents contemplated by this Agreement, they shall be binding and enforceable against 

Seller in accordance with their terms. 

 

6.3 Title. Seller has fee title to the Property. Seller represents that Seller owns the property free 

and clear of any mortgages or deeds of trust. 

 

6.4 No Violations. Seller has not received notice of any violation with regard to any applicable 

law, regulation, ordinance, requirement, covenant, condition or restriction relating to the present use, 

occupancy or condition of the Property from any person, authority or agency having jurisdiction over the 

Property. 



Real Estate Purchase Agreement Page 5 
 

 

6.5 Compliance with Law. Seller has not received any notices of violation of any law, 

regulation, condition of permit or license, order, ordinance, or any requirement noted in or issued by 

any federal, state, or local agency or department having jurisdiction over or affecting the Property which 

has not been corrected, resolved, or withdrawn, and to the knowledge of Seller, the Property is in 

compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations in all material respects. 

7. Buyer's Representations and Warranties. Buyer represents and warrants to Seller that: 

7.1 Authority. Buyer has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and complete 

the Transaction. 

7.2 Binding Agreement. Upon Buyer’s execution of this Agreement, this Agreement shall be 

binding and enforceable against Buyer in accordance with its terms, and upon Buyer’s execution of any 

additional documents contemplated by this Agreement, they shall be binding and enforceable against 

Buyer in accordance with their terms. 

 

7.3 Investigation of Property. Buyer has been or will be permitted access to the Property and 

will have actually inspected the Property prior to Closing. Buyer’s consummation of the Transaction is 

based upon such inspection and not on any representations or warranties of Seller outside of this 

Agreement. 

7.4 No Oral Representations. Buyer hereby acknowledges that neither Seller nor any person 

acting on behalf of Seller has made any representation, warranty, guaranty or promise concerning the 

Property, oral or written, outside of this Agreement. 

 

8. Broker’s Commission. Seller and Buyer warrant, each to the other, that they have not dealt 

with any broker, realtor or finder in connection with the Transaction. 

 

9. Risk of Loss. The risk of loss shall be upon Seller until Closing. In the event of any material loss 

or damage to or condemnation of the Property prior to Closing, Buyer may terminate this Agreement. If 

Buyer waives any material loss or damage to or condemnation of the Property and proceeds to 

consummate this Transaction, or in the event of an immaterial loss, damage or condemnation, Seller shall, 

at Closing and as a condition precedent to Closing, pay to Buyer the amount of any insurance or 

condemnation proceeds attributable to the Property which have been received by Seller and assign to 

Buyer as of Closing all rights or claims to proceeds payable thereafter. 

 

10. Remedies. 

10.1 If Seller fails to perform any of Seller’s obligations under this Agreement and that failure 

continues for five (5) days after Seller’s receipt of written notice from Buyer, Buyer may, as Buyer’s sole 

remedy for Seller’s failure, either: (i) terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 11, or (ii) bring 

an action for specific performance of this Agreement. 

 

10.2 If Buyer fails to perform any of Buyer’s obligations under this Agreement and that failure 



Real Estate Purchase Agreement Page 6 
 

continues for five (5) days after Buyer’s receipt of written notice from Seller, Seller may, as Seller’s sole 

remedy for Buyer’s failure, either: (i) terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 11, or (ii) bring 

an action for specific performance of this Agreement. 

 

11. Termination. If Buyer or Seller elects to terminate this Agreement as provided under this 

Agreement, the terminating party shall give written notice of the termination to the other Party and Escrow 

Agent. Upon termination by a Party as provided in this Agreement, Escrow Agent shall return all 

documents deposited in the Escrow to the Seller. Upon delivery of such documents, this Agreement and 

the Escrow shall be deemed terminated, and except as provided in this Agreement neither Party shall have 

any further liability or obligation under this Agreement. 

 

12. Attorneys’ Fees. If there is any litigation or other action taken by a Party to enforce or interpret 

any provisions of or rights arising under this Agreement, the defaulting Party shall pay to the other Party 

all costs and expenses, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, which the other 

Party may incur in enforcing this Agreement or in pursuing any remedy allowed by law, whether such is 

incurred by the filing of suit or otherwise. 

13. Escrow Cancellation Charges. If the Escrow fails to close because of Buyer’s default, Buyer 

shall be liable for any escrow and title commitment cancellation charges by Escrow Agent. If the Escrow 

fails to close because of Seller’s default, Seller shall be liable for any such cancellation charges by Escrow 

Agent. If the Escrow fails to close through no fault of either Seller or Buyer, any such cancellation charges 

by Escrow Agent shall be divided equally between Seller and Buyer. 

 

14. Additional Acts. The parties agree to execute promptly all other documents and perform all other 

acts as may be reasonably necessary to carry out the purpose and intent of this Agreement. 

 

15. Business Days. If this Agreement requires any act to be done or action to be taken on a date which 

is not a Business Day, that act or action will be deemed to have been validly done or taken if done or taken 

on the next succeeding Business Day. 

 

16. Waiver. The waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any right granted to it under this Agreement 

is not a waiver of any other right granted under this Agreement, nor may any waiver be deemed to be a 

waiver of a subsequent right obtained by reason of the continuation of any matter previously waived. 

 

17. Survival. All of the covenants, agreements, representations and warranties set forth in this 

Agreement shall survive Closing, and shall not merge into any deed or other instrument executed or 

delivered under this Agreement. 

 

18. Counterparts/Facsimile. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which is 

deemed an original but all of which constitute one and the same instrument. The signature pages may be 

detached from each counterpart and combined into one instrument. This Agreement may be signed and 

delivered by facsimile which shall be effective as an original. 

 

19. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the Parties 

to this Agreement and their respective successors and assigns. 



Real Estate Purchase Agreement Page 7 
 

 

20. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the Parties with respect 

to the matters set forth in this Agreement as of the Effective Date; it supersedes all prior oral or written 

agreements of the Parties as to the matters set forth in this Agreement; and it cannot be altered or amended 

except by an instrument in writing, signed by Buyer and Seller. 

 

21. Construction. This Agreement is the result of negotiations between the Parties, neither of whom 

has acted under any duress or compulsion, whether legal, economic or otherwise. Accordingly, the terms 

and provisions of this Agreement must be construed in accordance with their usual and customary 

meanings. Seller and Buyer hereby waive the application of any rule of law which otherwise would be 

applicable in connection with the construction of this Agreement that ambiguous or conflicting terms or 

provisions should be construed against the Party who (or whose attorney) prepared the executed 

Agreement or any earlier draft of this Agreement. 

 

22. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for reference only and do not limit or define the 

meaning of any provision of this Agreement. 

 

23. No Third-Party Beneficiary. No term or provision of this Agreement is intended to be, nor may 

any term or provision be construed to be, for the benefit of any person, firm, corporation or other entity 

not a party to this Agreement (including, without limitation, any broker), and no other person, firm, 

corporation or entity has any right or cause of action under this Agreement. 

24. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or any portion of any provision of this Agreement  

is  determined  to  be  invalid,  illegal  or  unenforceable,  the  invalidity,  illegality or 

unenforceability may not alter the remaining portion of such provision, or any other provision of this 

Agreement, as each provision of this Agreement is deemed severable from all other provisions of this 

Agreement. 

 

25. Timely Performance. Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. 

 

26. Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance 

with, the laws of the State of Idaho. Venue shall be Ada County, Idaho. 

 
 

<END OF TEXT – SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWNG PAGE> 
  



Real Estate Purchase Agreement Page 8 
 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement to be effective as of the 

date first written above. 

 

 

BUYER: 

City of Meridian 
 

 

 

By: Robert E. Simison, Mayor Attest: Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

 

 

SELLER: 

Joint School District No. 2 dba West Ada School District 
 

 

 

By: Jonathan Gillen, Chief Financial Officer  

 

 



E USTICK RDW USTICK RD

N
 M

ER
ID

IA
N

 R
D

N
 B

LA
IR

M
O

RE
 W

AY

N
 E

LS
IN

O
RE

 W
AY

W APPLE PINE ST

W ASHTON DR

W ASHBY DR N
 B

A
RR

O
N

 W
AY

N
CO

O
PE

R
AV

E

ECARVER

DR

N
FR

A
N

D
O

N
AV

E

N
BR

YC
E

C
A

N
YO

N
AV

E

N
G

R
EEN

W
ICH

W
AY

E
MOSKEE

ST

E
CORNELL

DR

N PRICE W
AY

W ASHBY DR

E CASSIDY

DR

N
 A

N
FI

EL
D

 A
VE

N
VE

N
A

BL
E

AV
E

W WOODPINE ST

N
LE

ZA
N

A
AV

E

N
FA

IR
G

LE
N

AV
E

N
LE

ZA
NA

AV
E

N
BU

CK
ST

O
N

E
AV

E

E
EASTBROOK

CT

N
ST

A
N

FO
R

D
AV

E

N
 G

RE
EN

W
IC

H
W

AY

N
RH

O
D

ES
AV

E

N STAUNTO
N

PL

N
ALEXIS

W
AY

N
W

A
RM

CR
EE

K
AV

E

N
 C

O
O

PE
R 

LN

E ASHBY DR

N
 V

EN
A

BL
E 

LN N
W

3
RD

ST

W BLAKE ST

WEST ADA
SCHOOL
DISTRICT CITY OF

MERIDIAN

CITY OF
MERIDIAN

Legend

Meridian City Limits

Parcels

Subject Property

Subject Property 0 2,0001,000

Feet [
The information shown on this map is compiled from various sources and is subject to constant revision. The City of
Meridian makes no warranty or guarantee as to the content, accuracy, timeliness, or completeness of any of the data
provided, and assumes no legal responsibility for the information contained on this map. Print Date: 3/20/2024

User: bmcclure



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Fiscal Year 2024 Budget Amendment in the Amount of $4,272,130.00 for the 
Purchase of Property Described as Lot 11, Block 25 of Cedar Springs Subdivision No. 3 (N. 
Venable Ln.)



3/29/2024   3:12 PM City of Meridian FY2024 Budget Amendment Form

Personnel Costs Full Time Equivalent (FTE):
Fund# Dept.# G/L# Proj.# G/L# Description Total

01 5290 41200 10355

01 5290 41206 10355

01 5290 41210 10355

01 5290 41304 10355

01 5290 42021 10355 -$                  Amendment Details
01 5290 42022 10355 -$                  Title:

01 5290 42024 10355 -$                  Department Name:

01 5290 42025 10355 -$                  Presenting Department Name:
Total Personnel Costs -$                  Department #: 5290

Operating Expenditures Primary Funding Source: 1
Fund# Dept.# G/L# Proj.# G/L# Description One-Time On-Going Total CIP#:

01 5290 0 -$                Project #: 10355
01 5290 10355 -$                

01 5290 10355 -$                Is this for an Emergency?         Yes          No

01 5290 10355 -$                New Level of Service?         Yes          No

01 5290 10355 -$                

01 5290 10355 -$                

01 5290 10355 -$                

01 5290 10355 -$                

01 5290 10355 -$                

01 5290 10355 -$                

01 5290 10355 -$                

01 5290 10355 -$                

01 5290 10355 -$                

Total Operating Expenditures -$                  -$                -$                

Capital Outlay
Fund# Dept.# G/L# Proj.# G/L# Description Total

01 5290 91000 10355 4,261,875
01 5290 10355 10,255$            

01 5290 10355

01 5290 10355

01 5290 10355

01 5290 10355

Total Capital Outlay 4,272,130$      

Revenue/Donations
Fund# Dept.# G/L# Proj.# G/L# Description Total

01 5290 10355

01 5290 10355

01 5290 10355

Total Revenue/Donations -$                  

Total Amendment Request

PERSI 

Worker's Comp

Employee Insurance

Property Purchase

Closing Costs

Wages

PT/Seasonal Wages

Overtime

Uniform Allowance

FICA

Parks & Recreation

Property Purchase for Community Center

Parks & Recreation

4,272,130$                 

Please only complete the fields
highlighted in Orange.

Clerks Office Stamp

Date of Council Approval_____________

Acknowledgement Date

  Department Director

  Chief Financial Officer

  Council Liaison

  Mayor

City of Meridian FY2024 Budget Amendment Form H:\Property Purchase for Community Center

3/29/24

jfields 4.1.24

Approved Liz Strader via email 4.1.24

4-1-24

tlavoie
Reviewed



3/29/2024   3:12 PM City of Meridian FY2024 Budget Amendment Form

Total Amendment Cost - Lifetime
Prior Year(s) Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Department Name:

Funding 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Title:

Personnel -$                -$                -$                              -$                 -$                  

Operating -$                -$                -$                              -$                 -$                  

Capital 4,272,130$    

Total -$                 4,272,130$    -$                -$                              -$                 -$                  

Total Estimated Project Cost: 4,272,130$      

Evaluation Questions
Please answer all Evaluation Questions using the financial data referenced above.

Total Amendment Request

Parks & Recreation

4,272,130$                 

Property Purchase for Community Center

1.  Describe what is being requested?

on Monday, February 26, the West Ada School District (WASD) board approved a non-binding letter of intent (LOI) for the sale of the property immediately west of Settlers Park.  A copy of the 
signed LOI is attached. WASD has agreed to sell  11.365 acres of land to the City for $4,261,875 (based on $375,000 per acre).  We are excited to be able to move forward with this location as a 
site that will provide a home for our future community center, as well as help solve the parking challenges at Settlers Park and provide additional desired park amenities.

4. Describe the proposed method of funding?   If funding is split between Funds (i.e. .General ,Enterprise, Grant), please include the percentage split.  List the amounts and 
sources of anticipated additional revenue that will result from approval of this request. 

Funding would come from the general fund. 

6.  Does this request require resources to be provided by other departments? If yes, please describe the necessary resources to be provided by other departments.

Yes. Legal has been helping with the purchase and sale agreement and will continue to assist with the closing process.

7. Does this Amendment include any needed Equipment or Software that will utilize the City's network? (Yes or No) No

9. Any additional comments?

Every effort should be made to avoid reopening the budget for an amendment.  Departments will need to provide back up and app ear before the City Council to justify budget amendments.   
Budget amendments are intended for emergency or mandatory changes to the original balanced budget.  Changes to the original balanced budget may cause a funding shortfall. 

5. Does this request align with the Department/City's strategic plan?  If not, please explain how this request was not included in the Department/City strategic plan?

Yes.

2.  Why was this budget request not submitted during the current fiscal year budget cycle? 

During the FY24 budget process, the community center was discussed and noted that a budget amendment would be processed for the project when applica ble.

3.  What is the explanation for not submitting this budget request during the next fiscal year budget cycle?

We would like to purchase the property from the school district and move forward this summer with design development.  

8. Is the amendment going to result in the disposal of an asset? (Yes or No) No

City of Meridian FY2024 Budget Amendment Form H:\Property Purchase for Community Center



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Resolution No. 24-2446: A Resolution Approving that Certain Purchase and 
Sale Agreement Between the City of Meridian and Joint School District No. 2 dba West Ada 
School District Concerning the City's Acquisition of Lot 11, Block 25 of Cedar Springs Subdivision 
No. 3; Authorizing the Mayor to Execute Said Purchase and Sale Agreement, Authorizing the 
Mayor to Execute All Other Documents and Perform All Other Acts Reasonably Necessary to 
Effectuate the Purchase of Lot 11, Block 25 of Cedar Springs Subdivision No. 3; and Providing an 
Effective Date 



RESOLUTION CONCERNING ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY  Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF MERIDIAN              RESOLUTION NO. 24-2446  

 

BY THE CITY COUNCIL:            CAVENER, LITTLE ROBERTS,  

OVERTON, STRADER, TAYLOR 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THAT CERTAIN PURCHASE AND SALE 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF MERIDIAN AND JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NO. 2 DBA WEST ADA SCHOOL DISTRICT CONCERNING THE CITY’S 

ACQUISITION OF LOT 11, BLOCK 25, CEDAR SPRINGS SUBDIVISION NO. 3; 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID PURCHASE AND SALE 

AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE ALL OTHER 

DOCUMENTS AND PERFORM ALL OTHER ACTS REASONABLY NECESSARY TO 

EFFECTUATE THE PURCHASE OF LOT 11, BLOCK 25, CEDAR SPRINGS 

SUBDIVISION NO. 3; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, Joint School District No. 2 dba West Ada School District (“District”)  owns 

approximately 11.365 acres of real property described as Lot 11, Block 25, Cedar Springs 

Subdivision No. 3 (“Property”); and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Property is no longer needed for school purposes; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Property is located adjacent to Settlers Park, which is owned, 

operated, and maintained by the City; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to purchase the Property for park and recreation purposes, 

including a community center; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City and the District have entered into that certain Interagency 

Governmental Agreement dated November 6, 2019 (as amended on May 11, 2021, and April 9, 

2024), which authorizes the District to convey real property to the City; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City and the District deem the fair market value of the Property to be 

$4,261,875.00; and, 

 

WHEREAS, after conducting public hearings, the City and the District have determined 

that it is in the best interest of the public for the City to purchase the Property for public purposes; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF MERIDIAN, IDAHO: 

  

Section 1.  That the City Council hereby approves that certain Purchase and Sale 

Agreement between the City and the District concerning the Property; 

 

Section 2.  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute said Purchase and Sale 

Agreement; 

 

Section 3.  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute all other documents and 

perform all other acts reasonably necessary to effectuate the purchase of the Property; and, 



RESOLUTION CONCERNING ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY  Page 2 of 2 

 

Section 4.  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption and approval.   

 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Meridian, Idaho, this 23rd day of April, 

2024 

 

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Meridian, Idaho, this 23rd day of April, 2024 

 

       APPROVED: 

 

 

             

       Robert E. Simison, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:       

 Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

  



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Public Hearing for Shamrock Foods Easement Vacation (H-2024-0003) by 
Kristen McNeill, Givens Pursley, LLP., located at 1495 N. Hickory Ave.
Application Materials: https://bit.ly/H-2024-0003

A.  Request: Vacation to vacate the ten-foot (10') irrigation easement along the west side of the 

property boundary of Lots 4 and 5, Block 2 of the Treasure Valley Business Center - Phase 1 

Subdivision.



 
 

 
Page 1 

 
  

HEARING 

DATE: 
April 23, 2024 

 

 

 

TO: Mayor & City Council  

FROM: Linda Ritter, Associate Planner 

 208-884-5533 

 

SUBJECT: H-2024-0003 

Shamrock Foods Vacation of Irrigation 

Easement - VAC 

 

LOCATION: 1495 N. Hickory Avenue, in the NE ¼ of 

Section 8 T.3N. R.1E.  

 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Request to vacate the ten-foot (10’) irrigation easement located along the west side of the property 

boundary of Lots 4 and 5, Block 2, of the Treasure Valley Business Center – Phase 1 Subdivision.   

II. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant: 

Kristen McNeill, Givens Pursley, LLP– 601 Bannock Street, Boise, ID 83702 

B. Owner: 

Keeley Smith – Shamrock Foods, 3900 E. Camelback Rd, Ste 300, Phoenix, AZ 85018 

C. Representative: 

Same as Applicant 

III. UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE  

Per UDC Table 11-5A-2, vacation of a utility easement falls under “all others”, which requires 

approval from City Council at a public hearing. 

  

FAIRVIEW

PINE

E
A
G
L
E

R-15

R-40

RUT

I-L

R-15

C-C

I-L

I-L

R-8

R-4

C-G

L-O

L-O

R1

R-40

C-G

C-G
C-G

R-15

R-4

[Legend

Project Location

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH5AD_ARTAGEPR_11-5A-2DUAU


 

 
Page 2 

 
  

IV. NOTICING 

 City Council Posting Date 

Newspaper Notification 4/7/2024 

Radius notification mailed to 

properties within 500 feet 
4/5/2024 

Next Door posting 4/3/2024 

V. STAFF ANALYSIS 

The Applicant requests approval to vacate the ten-foot (10’) irrigation easement located along the 

west side of the property boundary of Lots 4 and 5, Block 2, of the Treasure Valley Business Center – 

Phase 1 Subdivision.  

The property went through a property boundary adjustment (PBA-2023-0010) to consolidate Lots 4 

and 5, Block 2 of the Treasure Valley Business Center- Phase 1 Subdivision and Lot 1 of the Pleasant 

Valley Subdivision to the west. The consolidation of the lots created a need for the irrigation 

easement to be relocated from its current location.  The easement will be relocated to the west side of 

the consolidated properties. No other utilities exist in the easement. 

A legal description and exhibit map of the portion of the easement proposed to be vacated and 

relocated is included in Section VI below.  

The Applicant states there are no underground or overhead utilities in the subject easement area. 

Relinquishment letter from the Highline Lateral Users Association was received from stating they 

have no issue with the easement being relocated to the rear of the property as they are the sole users 

of the easement.    

VI. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the vacation of the irrigation easement as proposed by the 

Applicant and as agreed upon by the easement holder. 

  



 

 
Page 3 

 
  

VII. EXHIBIT 

Legal Description & Exhibit Map of the Irrigation Easement Proposed to be Vacated  

  



 

 
Page 4 

 
  

 

  



 

 
Page 5 

 
  

Legal Description & Exhibit Map of the Irrigation Easement Proposed to be Relocated 

 

  



 

 
Page 6 

 
  

 



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Public Hearing for Taylor Annexation (H-2023-0062) by Robert Taylor, 
located at 3840 E. Overland Rd.
Application Materials: https://bit.ly/H-2023-0062

A. Request: Annexation of 1.01 acres of land with an R-2 (Low-Density Residential) zoning district

for the purpose of connecting to City utilities.



HEARING 
DATE: 

April 23, 2024 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Stacy Hersh, Associate Planner 
208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: Taylor Annexation AZ 
H-2023-0062 

LOCATION: 3840 E. Overland Road in the Southeast 
1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 16, 
Township 3N, Range 1E (Parcel 
#R4626240475) 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Annexation of 1.01 acres of land with an R-2 zoning district for the purpose of complying with the terms 
outlined in the consent to annex agreement for the existing home that is already connected to City utilities. 

II. SUMMARY OF REPORT 

A. Project Summary 
 

Description Details Page 
Acreage 1.01 acres Annexation  
Future Land Use Designation Mixed Use Regional (MU-R)  
Existing Land Use No change, continue existing single-family residential use  
Proposed Land Use(s) Single-Family detached residential  
Current Zoning Single-Family residential zone (R1) in Ada County  
Proposed Zoning R-2 (Low Density Residential)  
Lots (# and type; bldg/common) 1 building lot  

Phasing plan (# of phases) N/A  
Number of Residential Units (type 
of units) 

N/A  

Neighborhood meeting date 08/24/2023  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/Browse.aspx?id=311492&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


Page 2  

B. Community Metrics 
 

Description Details Page 

Ada County Highway 
District 

• Staff report 
(yes/no) 

No  

• Requires 
ACHD 
Commission 
Action 
(yes/no) 

No  

• Existing 
Conditions 

Existing curb, gutter, and sidewalk.  

• CIP/IFYWP 

 

 

 
Access (Arterial/Collectors/State 
Hwy/Local)(Existing and Proposed) 

Overland Road is classified as a principal arterial roadway.  

Proposed Road Improvements None  
Fire Service No comments received  

Police Service No comments received.  

 
   

Wastewater  
• Distance to Sewer Services No changes in public sewer infrastructure shown in record. Any changes must 

be approved by Public Works. 
 

• Sewer Shed  

• Estimated Project Sewer 
ERU’s 

 

• WRRF Declining Balance   

• Project Consistent with WW 
Master Plan/Facility Plan 

Yes 

• Impacts/Concerns None  
Water  
• Distance to Services Water available at site.  

• Pressure Zone 4 
• Estimated Project Water 

ERU’s 
See application  

• Water Quality Concerns None 



Page 3  

• Project Consistent with 
Water Master Plan 

Yes 

• Impacts/Concerns None 

 
C. Project Maps 

 

Future Land Use Map Aerial Map 
 

  
 

Zoning Map Planned Development Map 

  
 
 

 
III. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant: 

Robert Taylor, Owner – 3840 E. Overland Road, Meridian, ID 83642 



Page 4  

B. Owner: 

Robert Taylor, Owner – 3840 E. Overland Road, Meridian, ID 83642 

C. Representative: 

Same as Applicant 

IV. NOTICING 
 

 Planning & Zoning 
Posting Date 

City Council 
Posting Date 

Newspaper notification 
published in newspaper 2/5/2024 

4/3/2024 

Radius notification mailed to 
property owners within 500 feet 3/1/2024 

4/5/2024 

Public hearing notice sign posted 
on site 3/10/2024 

4/11/2024 

Nextdoor posting 3/4/2024 4/3/2024 

 
V. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ANALYSIS 

LAND USE: This property is designated as Mixed Use Regional (MU-R) on the Future Land Use Map 
(FLUM) contained in the Comprehensive Plan. 

The purpose of this designation is to provide a mix of employment, retail, and residential dwellings and 
public uses near major arterial intersections. The intent is to integrate a variety of uses together, including 
residential, and to avoid predominantly single-use developments such as a regional retail center with only 
restaurants and other commercial uses. Developments should be anchored by uses that have a regional draw 
with the appropriate supporting uses. For example, an employment center should have supporting retail uses; 
a retail center should have supporting residential uses as well as supportive neighborhood and community 
services. The standards for the MU-R designation provide an incentive for larger public and quasi-public 
uses where they provide a meaningful and appropriate mix to the development. The developments are 
encouraged to be designed consistent with the conceptual MU-R plan depicted. 

Due to the presence of an existing home on this property with the intention to maintain its residential use, an 
R-2 zoning district is requested as a “placeholder” zoning district until the property redevelops in the future. 
Opting for a zoning district within the Mixed-Use Regional (MU-R) designation would create a non- 
conforming use. For example, a single-family residential dwelling on an acre is not a permitted use in a 
commercial zoning district and it fails to meet density requirements for an R-15 or R-40 zoning district, 
which is not preferred. Prior to re-development, a rezone should be requested and development proposed 
consistent with the Commercial FLUM designation. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN POLICIES (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan): 

Goals, Objectives, & Action Items: Staff finds the following Comprehensive Plan policies to be applicable 
to this application and apply to the proposed use of this property (staff analysis in italics): 

• Encourage diverse housing options suitable for various income levels, household sizes, and lifestyle 
preferences. (2.01.01) 

The Plan aims to integrate mixed-use by incorporating a variety of uses, including residential. 
Residential uses should comprise a minimum of 10% of the development area, with gross densities 

https://meridiancity.org/community-development/planning/comprehensive-plan/
https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan


Page 5  

ranging from 6 to 40 units/acre. The current application seeks annexation of the property into the City to 
comply with the terms outlined in the consent to annex agreement, particularly due to the existing home 
already connected to City utilities. Specifics regarding the housing types and density will be addressed 
with future development. Given that the residential would be in a mixed-use center and at a higher 
density, it would likely lead to diversity in housing satisfying this goal. 

• “Permit new development only where it can be adequately served by critical public facilities and urban 
services at the time of final approval, and in accord with any adopted levels of service for public 
facilities and services.” (3.03.03F) 

City water and sewer service is available and the existing home is already connected to City utilities in 
accordance with UDC 11-3A-21. 

• “Support infill development that does not negatively impact the abutting, existing development. Infill 
projects in downtown should develop at higher densities, irrespective of existing development.” 
(2.02.02C) 

The proposed development will not likely impact the existing abutting developments to the east, west, 
and north, as they are all residential uses currently zoned R1 in Ada County. 

• “Eliminate existing private treatment and septic systems on properties annexed into the City and instead 
connect users to the City wastewater system; discourage the prolonged use of private treatment septic 
systems for enclave properties.” 

The existing home has already abandoned the existing septic system and is connected to the City 
wastewater system. 

VI. STAFF ANALYSIS 

A. ANNEXATION (AZ) 

The Applicant proposes to annex 1.01 acre parcel, including the adjacent right-of-way to the section line 
of E. Overland Road with an R-2 (Low-Density Residential) zoning district. A legal description and 
exhibit map for the annexation area is included in Section VIII.A. This property is within the City’s Area 
of City Impact boundary. The reason for annexation is the water table for the existing well on the single- 
family residential property failed late last year and the Applicant had to hook-up to City water and sewer 
service. No new development or redevelopment of the property is proposed at this time and the use will 
remain residential for the foreseeable future. 

The Applicant entered into an agreement with the City for extension of domestic water and sewer service 
outside Meridian city limits for the subject property (Inst. #2023-037612). This agreement allowed the 
property to hook up to City water and sanitary sewer service with disconnection from the private well 
and septic system. A provision of the agreement requires the property owner to apply for annexation of 
the property into the City as proposed with this application. 

Single-family detached dwellings are listed as a principally permitted use in the R-2 zoning district per 
UDC Table 11-2A-2. 

The City may require a development agreement (DA) in conjunction with an annexation pursuant to 
Idaho Code section 67-6511A. To ensure future development is consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and the land use desired for this property, Staff recommends a Development Agreement as a 
provision of annexation pursuant to Idaho Code Section 67-6511A, which requires the property to 
be rezoned and the agreement modified to include a conceptual development plan prior to any 
change in use and/or development of the property. 



Page 6  

Dimensional Standards (UDC 11-2): The proposed existing house appears to comply with the 
dimensional standards of the district. 

Access: Access to this property is currently from E. Overland Road. With future redevelopment of the 
property, access via E. Overland Road and interconnectivity with adjacent properties will be evaluated in 
accordance with the provisions listed in UDC 11-3A-3. 
Parking (UDC 11-3C): Off-street parking is required to be provided in accord with the standards listed 
in UDC Table 11-3C-6 for single-family dwellings based on the number of bedrooms per unit. The 
existing home does not meet the required number of off-street parking spaces per UDC Table 11-3C-6 
for a three (3) bedroom home; four (4) parking spaces are required, at least 2 in an enclosed garage, other 
spaces may be enclosed or a minimum 10-foot by 20-foot parking pad. The existing home does not have 
an enclosed two-car garage; however, there is an existing 30-foot by 20-foot driveway. 

The existing home is recognized as non-conforming due to the off-street parking requirements in 
UDC 11-3C-6. Per UDC 11-1B-4, no existing structure containing a nonconforming use may be 
enlarged, extended, constructed, reconstructed, moved, or structurally altered except through 
the approval of a conditional use permit. As a result of the non-conformity, the Applicant is 
required to apply for a Conditional Use Permit for any future expansions on the property or 
attain compliance by constructing a new two-car garage (see figure below). 

 

 
 

Sidewalks (11-3A-17): Overland Road is improved with an existing 7-foot wide attached concrete 
sidewalk abutting the site in accordance with UDC standards. Staff is not recommending that this 
sidewalk be replaced with and 7-foot detached sidewalk. 

Pathways (UDC 11-3A-8): The Meridian Pathways Master Plan Map indicates a planned pathway on 
the north side of the Five Mile Creek to be constructed by the City in the future. The Applicant should 
submit a dedicated easement for the pathway to the City. Easements shall be a minimum of 14’ 
wide (10’wide pathway + 2’ shoulder on each side). 

Utilities (UDC 11-3A-21): Connection to City water and sewer services is required in accordance with 
UDC 11-3A-21. The Applicant entered into an agreement with the City for extension of domestic 
water and sewer service outside Meridian city limits for the subject property (Inst. #2023-037612). 
The Applicant is currently connected to City utilities. 

Fencing (UDC 11-3A-6, 11-3A-7): All fencing is required to comply with the standards listed in UDC 
11-3A-7. The Applicant is not proposing fencing with this application. 

https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH2DIRE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-6RENUOREPASP
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-6RENUOREPASP
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH1GERE_ARTBNOPRUSSTSI_11-1B-4NOUS
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-17SIPA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-8PA
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id&section_id=1165308&1165308
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-6DILACADRCO
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-7FE


Page 7  

VII. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed annexation with the requirement of a Development 
Agreement per the provisions in Section IX in accord with the Findings in Section X. 

 

B. The Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission heard these items on March 21, 2024. At the 
public hearing, the Commission moved to recommend approval of the subject Annexation 
requests. 

 1. Summary of Commission public hearing: 
  a. In favor: Robert Taylor 
  b. In opposition: None 
  c. Commenting: None 
  d. Written testimony: None 
  e. Staff presenting application: Stacy Hersh, Associate 
  f. Other Staff commenting on application: None 
 2. Key issue(s) of public testimony: 
  a. None 
 3. Key issue(s) of discussion by Commission: 
  a. None 
 4. Commission change(s) to Staff recommendation: 
  a. None 
 5. Outstanding issue(s) for City Council: 
  a. None 



Page 8  

VIII. EXHIBITS 

A. Annexation Legal Description and Exhibit Map 
 
 
 
 
 

CE:NTURIOH  E:NGrnE:E:RS,   INC. 
Consullling Engineers, Larid Survlilyors, Planners 
2323 S. Vista Av@ St!! 2OS Bohs,e, ID 83705 
T!!lephon!l 209.:34:3.3:381 I www.oenlengr.com 

 
 
 

Annexation & Zone Land Description For: 
Robert Taylor 

D;,oember 27, 2023 

Lot 3, Brock 2 of Jewell SUbdivlslon as shown in Book: 34 of Pf!ats at Pages 2056 & 2057 
recotds, Ada County, Idaho and i:idjQining rigllt-of-way. Situale in the Southeast Quarter or the 
Southwest Quarter of Section 16, TownshEp 3 Norttl, Range 1 IEast, Boise Meridian, Ada 
County, Idaho being m,ore particularly desc,ibed as follows: 

Commencing at the south qua1rter corner of said Section 16: !hence S89"5914s-\l\/, 483.11 feet 
along the southenly boundary of the soulhwest quarter of said Se ion 16 to1he Poirrl·of 
Beginning; 

 
Thence f'400"00'00"E,.439.85 feet along the easter1y boundary of said Lot 3 (as extended 
10 Nie soulherty 1bounoory or the r.oulhea.st quarler of the soiuthwtWt quarter) to tho 
northeast wrner of said Lot 3: 

Thence N90"00'00'W. t 00 feel along the nol'lherly boundary or sald Loi.3 to he 
nonhwesl com.er of said lot 3; 

Thernce SOO"'OO'OO"E, 439.86 1eet along tile westerly bo1,,mi;lary of said !.o"l 3 (as 
extended to the soutnerly boundary of lhe soulheast quarter of the soulhwesl quarter) lo 
a point which bears N89'59145"E, 749.26 fii!el i1om the southwest comer of the 
w1.1theast qua.rte, of he soulhwe-sl quarter of said Seclion 1,s,and which point also bears 
589°59'1o"E, 1,332..50 fest from the southwest section corner of saict Section 16: 

ihence NB9"5!t45"E, i 00.00 feet to the Point of B innir,g. 

Containing 1.01 acres, more or ress. 

This descripti.on was prepared from info1malion of record in the office of the Ada County, 
recorder. Jewell Subdivision Book: 34, Pages 2056 & 2057 and Recon:1 of Survey No. 8191. A 
nsw land survey was riot performed. 

11he basis of bearing for 11lis desoript n is said Jewell Subdi11ision. / 

http://www.oenlengr.com/


 

- 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Notes 
1. Ttiis slielc't, 'ltlas prepare-d 

fr,om inf,onmJtion of r d 
[n 1h11 office of the Ada 
County, recorder. Jewell 
St1bdiliis,cin Boe, .34, F'Gges 
2056 & 2057. Rc.:01\:1 of 
S"-"""Y No, 8,191. A 1U1,r 
land survey wa• not 
p4'rlorm8d. 

,:t Tho t,01:i, of bearing f<ir 
this al<•tch ia •aid .le:w8II 
SubdM$ion, 

Annexation Description 
Sketch 

 
 

SCALE: 1•:,ao• 

 
 

 
 

 
 

SouSec iolnh'it'e t 
17 1B_Corner • 1/16 th Corner 

 

 ----  r: : , 
20 21 - _ ---- u 

55!i59'Hn  1,33:2.50" NB!J59'45"E 748'.26' West Overland Road S89'Ml 5"W -laJ.11 

:at' 
""01J(e:6,,... 

 
 
 

CE:.HnJIUON £-NOINE: JtS. INC. 
CO!llllllti Er,,eineetL I.In S1,1r,q., .Pl 1111e,; 
Ill;'! . \rl•ta ;, •••- mt; I Bolw, II) 83105 
211B-..J4:l!.3381 I .,..-,,,..,n1lt0f!r,t<1m 

 
lo-! 3, Block 2. of Jewell SUbdi'lisi011 cs $M'ill in IBaok 34 Gf Plcts al Po s 2056 

& 2057 records, Ma County, Idaho. Situote i the Sootli!eo!il Ooorter of the 
Soulhw!SI Qlitlrltr of Section 16) l0'111.Ship 3N., Rl:lnge 1E., Baise r..idicn, Ma 

County, kxlho 

l):]le: Oec,ember 27, 2023 
Or<1,,m Ely: DA Cn:iwford 

J(!b N mb r: ffl07 
 

Pa
ge

 9
 

 
 
 
 

.,. 
i - 
7 ..... 

-:; 
NIQ 

Q;Jol!j 
 

- 5• <O 

a:i_:i U')

 

-•;:", "I'I) ....J In 0. ............. , 0  :::I g 
,oo 
,.c.., n 

 

§ 
81 
b" 
:7l 

QOiOO'OO"W 100.QO' 
 
 
 
 

 

l ."..' ..!!;::t,._ JI!
 :s 

--Q-" OI n  ..... g"' !o, 

ti
• CD ..S .E.  c <t> m.1ii!:g :! 

r<):' N -li ..., }: :g, 

..9 J: if 9 .,,,;, 
"'f, 

1 I 

 
 
 
 

 
,:; 

-iC 
-;i Jr':". 

.,., 
C...!11!:0 

ON 

:£15 
c:=i ■ (0 

Q-·!.... 
C'<,I;:::, ,m 
-0 ..QC, _J  (I) a.. :::II ICJ 

 

 
 
----'-'tm.;;;;..;..;;"5 

 
 

'.1'45"E  100.00· 

 

 



Page 10  

B. Site Map 
 



Page 11  

C. Existing Home 
 
 



Page 12  

IX. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. PLANNING DIVISION 

1. A Development Agreement (DA) is required as a provision of annexation of this property. Prior to 
approval of the annexation ordinance, a DA shall be entered into between the City of Meridian, the 
property owner(s) at the time of annexation ordinance adoption, and the developer. 

Currently, a fee of $303.00 shall be paid by the Applicant to the Planning Division prior to 
commencement of the DA. The DA shall be signed by the property owner and returned to the 
Planning Division within six (6) months of the City Council granting the annexation. The DA shall, 
at minimum, incorporate the following provisions IF City Council determines annexation is in the 
best interest of the City: 

a. Prior to any change in use or redevelopment of the subject property, a rezone to a commercial 
and/or a higher density residential zoning district and a modification to this agreement shall be 
requested to include a conceptual development plan consistent with the Mixed-Use Regional 
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation and guidelines in the Comprehensive Plan. 

b. Future development of this site shall be consistent with the applicable standards in the city of 
Meridian’s Unified Development Code. 

c. As a result of the non-conformity to the existing home due to the off-street parking requirements 
in UDC 11-3C-6, the Applicant/Owner is required to apply for a Conditional Use Permit for 
any future expansions on the property or attain compliance by constructing a new two-car 
garage. 

d. The Applicant shall submit a dedicated easement for the future pathway along the north side of 
the Fivemile Creek for the length of the property to the City. Easements shall be a minimum of 
14’ wide (10’wide pathway + 2’ shoulder on each side). 

B. PUBLIC WORKS 

No comments, Applicant has signed the agreement for extension of domestic water and sewer service 
outside Meridian City Limits (Inst. #2023-037612) and connected to City utilities. 

C. PARK’S DEPARTMENT 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=331534&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity 
 

D. ADA COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES (ACDS) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=332238&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity&cr 
=1 

 
E. DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (DEQ) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=331968&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity 
 

F. IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT (ITD) 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=332554&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity 

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=331534&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=332238&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity&cr=1
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=332238&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity&cr=1
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=331968&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=332554&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity


Page 13  

X. FINDINGS 

A. Annexation and/or Rezone (UDC 11-5B-3E) 

Required Findings: Upon recommendation from the commission, the council shall make a full 
investigation and shall, at the public hearing, review the application. In order to grant an annexation 
and/or rezone, the council shall make the following findings: 

1. The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the comprehensive plan; 

Staff finds annexation of the subject property with an R-2 zoning district and requirement for the 
property to redevelop in the future consistent with the Mixed-Use Regional future land use map 
designation in the Comprehensive Plan is appropriate for this property (see Section V for more 
information). 

2. The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed district, 
specifically the purpose statement; 

Staff finds the proposed map amendment to the R-2 zoning district is consistent with the purpose 
statement for the residential districts in UDC 11-2B-1, in that it will contribute to the range of 
housing opportunities available in the City consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

3. The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and 
welfare; 

Staff finds the proposed map amendment should not be detrimental to the public health, safety and 
welfare as the proposed residential use should be compatible with adjacent single-family residential 
homes/uses in the area. 

4. The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services by any 
political subdivision providing public services within the city including, but not limited to, 
school districts; and 

Staff finds that the proposed zoning amendment will not result in any adverse impact upon the delivery 
of services by any political subdivision providing services to this site. 

5. The annexation (as applicable) is in the best interest of city. 

Staff finds the proposed annexation is in the best interest of the City. 



Public Hearing for Taylor Annexation (H-2023-0062) by Robert Taylor,  
 located at 3840 E. Overland Rd.  
 
  A. Request: Annexation of 1.01 acres of land with an R-2 (Low-  
   Density Residential) zoning district for the purpose of connecting to  
   City utilities.   
 
Lorcher:  Tonight I would like to open the public hearing for Item No. H-2023-0062, 
annexation of 1.1 acre in an R-2 zoning district for the purpose of connecting city utilities.  
We will begin with the staff report.   
 
Hersh:  Good evening, Members of the Commission.  The applicant has submitted an 
application for annexation and zoning.  The site consists of 1.01 acres of land, currently 
zoned R-1 in Ada county, located at 3840 East Overland Road.  History on the property 
is none.  The Comprehensive Plan FLUM designation is mixed use regional.  The 
applicant proposes to annex a 1.01 acre parcel, including the adjacent right of way to the 
section line of East Overland Road with an R-2 zoning district.  A legal description and 
exhibit map for the annexation area is included with the application.  The property has 
been what -- is within the city -- the city's area of city impact boundary.  The reason for 
the annexation is the water table for the existing well on the single family residential 
property failed late last year and the applicant had to hook up to city water and sewer 
service.  No -- no development or redevelopment of the property is proposed at this time 
and the use will remain residential for the foreseeable future.  The applicant has entered 
into an agreement with the city for extension of domestic water and sewer service outside 
Meridian city limits for the subject property.  This agreement allowed the property to hook 
up to city water and sanitary service with this connection for the private -- private well and 
septic system.  A provision of the agreement requires the property owner to apply for 
annexation of the property into the city as proposed with this application.  Due to the 
presence of an existing home on the property with the intention to maintain its residential 
use, an R-2 zoning district is requested as a place holder zoning district until the property 
redevelops in the future.  Opting for a zoning district within the mixed use regional 
designation would create a nonconforming use.  For example, a single family residence 
dwelling on an acre is not a permitted use in a commercial zoning district and it fails to 
meet density requirements for an R-15 or R-40 zoning district, which is not preferred.  
Prior to redevelopment a rezone should be requested and development proposed 
consistent with the commercial FLUM designation.  Single family detached dwellings are 
listed as a personally permitted use in the R-2 zoning district.  To ensure future 
development is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan in the land use desired for this 
property staff recommends a development agreement as a provision of the annexation 
pursuant to the Idaho Code section, which requires the property to be rezoned and the 
agreement modified to include a conceptual development plan prior to any change in use 
and/or development of the property.  The proposed existing home appears to comply with 
the dimensional standards of the district.  Access to the property is currently from East 
Overland Road, with future redevelopment of the property access via East Overland Road 
and interconnectivity with adjacent properties will be evaluated in accordance with the 
provisions listed in the UDC.  Off-street parking is required to be provided in accordance 



with the standards in the UDC for single family dwellings based on the number of 
bedrooms per unit.  The existing home does not meet the required off-street parking 
spaces per the UDC Table for a three bedroom.  Four parking spaces are required, at 
least two in the enclosed garage and other spaces may be enclosed or a minimum of a 
ten by 20 foot parking pad.  The existing home does not have an enclosed two car garage, 
whoever there is an existing 30 by 20 foot driveway.  The existing home is recognized as 
nonconforming due to the off-street parking requirements in the UDC.  Per the UDC no 
existing structure containing a nonconforming use may be enlarged, extended, 
constructed, reconstructed, moved or structurally altered, except through the approval of 
a conditional use permit.  As a result of the nonconformity, the applicant is required to 
apply for a conditional use permit for any future expansions on the property or attain 
compliance by constructing a new two car garage.  Overland is improved with an existing 
seven foot wide attached concrete sidewalk abutting the site in accordance with the UDC 
standards.  Staff is not recommending that the sidewalk be replaced with any -- with a 
seven foot detach sidewalk.  The Meridian Pathways Master Plan map indicates a 
planned pathway on the north side of the Five Mile Creek to be constructed by the city in 
the future.  The applicant should submit a dedicated easement for the pathway to the city.  
Connection to city water and sewer services is required in accordance with the UDC.  The 
applicant has entered into an agreement with the city for the extension of these water and 
sewer services outside of Meridian city limits for the subject property.  The applicant is 
currently connected to these city utilities.  Written testimony is none and staff does 
recommend approval of the annexation subject to the conditions and findings outlined in 
the staff report and that concludes staff's presentation and I stand for any questions.   
 
Lorcher:  Commissioners, do you have any questions for staff?  Would the applicant like 
to come forward?   
 
Starman:  Sir, if you do want to speak you are welcome to come to the podium.  You are 
not required to do so.  I see you shaking your head.  So, for the record -- for the record I 
will note the applicant has declined to comment and so, Madam Chair, you may proceed.   
 
Lorcher:  Is there anybody signed up for public testimony?   
 
Lomeli:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  We do not have anybody signed up in person.  There 
are a few attendees online if they would like to raise their hand and give testimony.   
 
Lorcher:  We haven't had this before, so -- so you don't wish to speak.  There is nobody 
here in Chambers, so can we close the public hearing?  May I have a motion to close the 
public hearing?   
 
Garrett:  So moved.   
 
Grace:  Second.   
 
Sandoval:  Second.   
 



Lorcher:  It's been moved and seconded to close the public hearing.  All those in favor 
say aye.  Any opposed?  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  THREE ABSENT.  
 
Lorcher:  All right.  Commissioners, do you have anything to say about this application?  
Or a motion?   
 
Grace:  Madam Chair, can I -- can I get a clarification?  Is -- this is a -- I don't have the 
benefit of the -- the sheet that we normally get when I'm present in the City Hall  spaces.  
So, this is -- this is a recommendation, as I understand it, to City Council; is that accurate?   
 
Lorcher:  Commissioner Grace, no, this is -- an annexation -- we are not -- 
 
Starman:  Madam Chair, Commissioners, Commissioner Grace, that's -- your comment,  
Commissioner Grace, is accurate.  This is a recommendation to the City Council relative 
to the annexation request.  So, you are a recommending body for this -- for this particular 
application.   
 
Grace:  Okay.  With that, Madam Chair, I would take stab at a motion here, if that's 
appropriate.   
Lorcher:  Okay.   
 
Grace:  So, after considering all staff and applicant and public testimony, I move to 
recommend approval of File No. H-2023-0062 as presented in the staff report for the 
hearing date of March 21st, 2024, with no modifications.   
 
Sandoval:  Second.  
 
Lorcher:  It's been moved and seconded to approve File No. H-2023-0062, annexation to 
Meridian City Council.  All those in favor say aye.  Any opposed?  Motion carries.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  THREE ABSENT. 
 
 


	Top
	Item #1.	MIN WS 2024-04-09
	Minutes

	Item #2.	MIN RM 2024-04-09
	Minutes

	Item #3.	ESMT-2023-0035 Movado
	Easement

	Item #4.	FP Foxcroft Sub. No. 3 (FP-2023-0032)
	Staff Report

	Item #5.	FP Hadler Subdivision (FP-2024-0002)
	Staff Report

	Item #6.	FFCL Keep West Subdivision (H-2023-0047)
	Findings

	Item #7.	Approval of Construction Contract to Treasure Valley Drilling, LLC for Construction of Production Well# 34 project for the Not-To-Exceed amount of $977,670.00.
	Memo to Council
	Contract Request Checklist
	Contractor Signed Construction Contract - Construction of Production Well# 34

	Item #8.	Landscape Maintenance Services Amendment No.9 for FY24 Services
	Memo to Council
	Contract Request Checklist
	Budget
	Contract Amendment #9 Lawn Co signed
	Purchase Order Request

	Item #9.	AGMT - Parks Foxcroft Sub Multi Use Pathway
	Agreement

	Item #10.	WRRF Tertiary Filtration & Primary Power Transformers
	Memo to Council
	Contract Request Checklist
	Budget
	Final Bid Result
	Agreement for Equipment

	Item #11.	RESO 24-2448 Vacation - The Oaks North No. 1 Subdivision L11&12, B7 PUDI Easement
	Resolution
	Exhibit A

	Item #12.	RESO 24-2449 City Council Liaison Appointments April 2024
	Resolution

	Item #13.	Idaho Gives Week Proclamation
	Proclamation

	Item #14.	Denim Day Proclamation
	Proclamation

	Item #15.	PH COM Land Purchase from WASD - N. Venable Ln.
	Memo
	Purchase and Sale Agreement
	Settlers Park Property Location Map

	Item #16.	BUDGET Budget Amendment for purchase of WASD property at N. Venable Ln
	Budget Amendment

	Item #17.	RESO 24-2446 Land Purchase from WASD N Venable Ln (L11 B25 Cedar Springs Sub #3)
	Resolution

	Item #18.	PHCC Shamrock Foods VAC (H-2024-0003)
	Staff Report

	Item #19.	PHCC Taylor Annexation (H-2023-0062)
	Staff Report
	Minutes from Planning and Zoning Commission

	Bottom



